Tod Moody, President Catharine Benediktsson, Director
John Carapiet, Vice President Richard Snyder, Director
Michael Lasky, Secretary

NOTICE AND AGENDA
Regular Board Meeting
at Sanitary District No. 5 of Marin County Meeting Room
2001 Paradise Drive, Tiburon, CA 94920
Thursday, December 19, 2019

5:00 P.M. REGULAR BOARD MEETING
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS: The public is invited to address the Board on items that do not appear
on the agenda and that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. The Brown Act
does not allow the Board to take action on any public comment. Please limit public comments to
no more than three minutes.

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND/OR AGENDA REQUESTS

CONSENT CALENDAR:
1. Approval of November 17, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes (Dohrmann)

2. Review and Receive all Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) and Approve Warrants for November
15 through December 12, 2019; JP Morgan Chase Bank Check No. 7239 through Check No.
7284, all transactions totaling in the amount of $141,648.00; and Review and Receive
November 2019 Payroll, in the amount of $131,120.14 (Dohrmann)

3. Receipt of Financial Reports for November 2019 (Dohrmann)

4. Receive & Accept 2019 Sewer Rehabilitation Project — Tiburon & Belvedere, Change Orders
#4 - #10 (Rubio)

MANAGEMENT REPORTS:
5. District Management Summary Report (Rubio)

NEW BUSINESS:
6. Review & Approve SD5 FY2018-2019 Audit, presented by Kathryn Harris of Perotti &
Carrade — Action (Rubio)

7. Review & Consider Refinancing MPR Bond and Provide Recommendation to District Manager
with Action (Rubio) — Action
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8. Review & Discuss Ordinance No. 2014-02 re Lateral Inspections (Rubio) — Action

9. Review & Discuss CSDA December 12, 2019 Marin Chapter Formation Committee Meeting
(Rubio) - Action

10. Review & Accept Final GASB 75 OPEB Valuation Report, Measurement Date as of June 30,
2018, Updated on 7.18.19 (Rubio) — Action

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

11. Capital Improvement Program Committee (Lasky/Carapiet)

12. Governance Committee (Snyder/Benediktsson)

13. Finance & Fiscal Oversight Committee (Benediktsson/Carapiet)
14. Personnel Committee (Moody/Snyder)

OTHER BUSINESS:

ENVIRONMENTAL:

CORRESPONDENCE:

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION:

15.) Convene to Closed Session (the public may provide comments regarding the closed session
item(s) just prior to the Board beginning the Closed Session. Closed sessions are not open to
the public.)

a) Closed Session pursuant to Section 54957(b) (1) — Employee Performance Evaluation

i. Employee — District Manager

16.) Report out of Closed Session
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RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION:

17. Consider increase to District Manager’s compensation under Employment Contract and
award of a one-time payment to District Manager

ADJOURNMENT

The Board will be asked to adjourn the meeting to a Regular Board Meeting on January 16,
2020, at 5:00 p.m. at the Main Plant of Sanitary District No. 5 of Marin County, located at 2001
Paradise Drive, Tiburon, California.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, consider agenda items out of the order in which they appear above.

Accessible public meetings: Upon request, the District will provide written agenda materials in appropriate alternate
Jormats, or disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services to enable individual with
disabilities to participate in public meetings. Requests are to be submitted in writing to the District at P.O. Box 227,
Tiburon, CA 94920 or rdohrmann@sani5.org at least two days prior to the meeting.

T:\Board\Agendas\2019 12 19 Regular Board Agenda RLD TR TM BLS.doc



Tod Moody, President Catharine Benediktsson, Director
John Carapiet, Vice President Richard Snyder, Director
Michael Lasky, Secretary

Minutes of a Regular Board Meeting
at Sanitary District No. 5 of Marin County Meeting Room
2001 Paradise Drive, Tiburon, CA 94920
Thursday, November 21, 2019

CALL TO ORDER by President Tod Moody at 5:00 P.M.

ROLL CALL Directors present: Tod Moody, President
John Carapiet, Vice President
Michael Lasky, Secretary
Catharine Benediktsson, Director
Richard Snyder, Director

Staff present: Tony Rubio, District Manager
Robin Dohrmann, Office Manager

Consultants present: Benjamin Stock, Burke, Williams, Sorensen, LLP

Others present: Jane Jacobs, Tiburon Resident

PUBLIC COMMENTS: The public is invited to address the Board on items that do not appear
on the agenda and that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. The Brown Act
does not allow the Board to take action on any public comment. Please limit public comments to
no more than three minutes.

There were no public comments at this time.

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND/OR AGENDA REQUESTS

¢ Director Benediktsson inquired into the consequences of the PG&E PSPS (5-day) Power
Outage at SD5

CONSENT CALENDAR:

1. Approval of October 17, 2019, Regular Board Meeting Minutes and November 12, 2019
Special Board Meeting Minutes (Dohrmann)

2. Review and Receive all Electronic Fund Transfers (EFT) and Approve Warrants for October 11
through November 14, 2019; JP Morgan Chase Bank Check No. 7179 through Check No. 7237,
all transactions totaling in the amount of $688,743.64; and Review and Receive October 2019
Payroll, in the amount of $109,186.32 (Dohrmann)

3. Receipt of Financial Reports for October 2019 (Dohrmann)

Discussion by the Board. Motion (Snyder/Carapiet) to approve Items No. 1 through No. 3 on the
Consent Calendar. Passed unanimously.
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MANAGEMENT REPORTS:

4. District Management Summary Report (Rubio)

District Manager, Tony Rubio, presented a written and verbal report on current District issues,
responding to questions from the Board. Discussion by the Board.

NEW BUSINESS:

5. Review & Approve 2019 Sewer Rehab Project — Tiburon & Belvedere, Change Order #3
(Rubio) — Action

Discussion by the Board. Motion (Benediktsson/Snyder) to Approve 2019 Sewer Rehab
Project — Tiburon & Belvedere, Change Order #3

6. Review & Accept Bio-Solids Hauling Proposal, and Authorize District Manager to Negotiate
Contract with Mill Valley Refuse (Rubio) — Action

Discussion by the Board. Motion (Benediktsson/Snyder) to Accept Bio-Solids Hauling
Proposal, and Authorize District Manager to Negotiate Contract with Mill Valley Refuse

7. Review & Approve Resolution No. 2019-12: A Resolution Expressing Official Intent
Regarding Potential Refinancing Certain 2012 Revenue Bonds and Retaining a Municipal
Advisor and Bond Counsel (Rubio) — Action

Discussion by the Board. Motion (Carapiet/Snyder) to Approve Resolution No. 2019-12: A
Resolution Expressing Official Intent Regarding Potential Refinancing Certain 2012 Revenue
Bonds and Retaining a Municipal Advisor and Bond Counsel

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
COMMITTEE REPORTS:

8. Capital Improvement Program Committee (Lasky/Carapiet) — CIP Action Item Log & brief verbal
report provided

9. Governance Committee (Snyder/Benediktsson) — None
10. Finance & Fiscal Oversight Committee (Benediktsson/Carapiet) — Brief verbal report provided
11. Personnel Committee (Moody/Snyder) — None

OTHER BUSINESS: None

ENVIRONMENTAL: None

CORRESPONDENCE: None

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: None
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CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION (5:53 p.m.):

CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION:

12. Convene to Closed Session (the public may provide comments regarding the closed session
item(s) just prior to the Board beginning the Closed Session. Closed sessions are not open to

the public.)
a) Closed Session pursuant to Section 54957(b)(1) — Employee Performance Evaluation

i. Employee — District Manager

b) Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation

Initiation of Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (4) of Subdivision (d) of Government Code Section
54956.9: (One potential case)

13. Report out of Ciosed Session at 6:28 p.m.

No action, Direction given to Counsel.

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION (6:30 p.m.):

ADJOURNMENT

The Board adjourned at 6:32 p.m. to a Regular Board Meeting on January 16%, 2020, at 5:00 p.m.
at the Main Plant of Sanitary District No. 5 of Marin County, located at 2001 Paradise Drive,
Tiburon, California.

2Nt A e

dMoody v \\ Michael Lasky
President, Board of Directors Secretary, Board of Dirdctdrs
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.
Warrant List Summary

Item #2

12110119
November 15 through December 12, 2019
Date Num Name Memo Amount

JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
12/05/119 EFT PERS EFT PERS Retirement, Spec Comp for Holidays (9.2.19, 10.14.18, 11.11.19) -1,010.39
12/05/19 EFT CalPERS #4163206459, SSA 218 Annual Reporting Fee - SSA , FY19-20 -250.00
12/05/19 EFT CalPERS EFT Health Premium, Dec '19, Cust #4163206459 -14,699.45
12/05/19 EFT PERS EFT PERS Ratirement, Nov '19 -15,877.54
11/21/19 7239 Mill valley Refuse Service, Inc. Acct #032945, Garbage Service + 1 yd rental, Nov 19 -234.60
11/2119 7240 North Bay Petroleum Generator Fuel for Work done at FY 19-20 Viztazo West Washout Final Rep... -3,004.78
11/21/19 7241 Recology Sonoma Marin Cust #A1810470401, Cust ID: SANI#S5, Sludge Disposal, Sept '19 -700.00
11/21/19 7242 Staples, Inc. Acct #601110007 14, Office Supplies, Oct 19 -88.19
11/21/19 7243 SWRCB FEES SWRCB Permit (Threat/Complexity 3C) Permit, Nov '19 -156,033.00
11/21119 7244 Town of Tiburon Fuel, Oct"19 -1,954.91
11/21119 7245 Wintersun Chemical M.P. Chemicals, Oct '19 -2,315.63
112119 7246 Verizon Wireless Acct #0342125502-00001: IPhones, Oct-Nov '19 -388.64
11/21/19 7247 Driscoll, Stephen PG&E PSPS/Diem + Boot Reimb. for S Driscoil, Oct - Nov '19 -325.18
12112119 7248 Access Answering Service Acct #4080C, Answering Service, Dec '19 -60.00
12/12/19 7249 Alhambra Acct #547945611762129, Water, Oct-Nov 19 -145.91
1212119 7250 APG Neuros, Inc. Lab Supplies, Nov 19 -6,095.90
12/12119 7251 Brelje and Race Laboratories, Inc. M.P./P.C. Plant Samples, Oct ‘19 -1,095.00
12/1219 7252 Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP Legal Advice, Oct "19 -7,479.00
12112119 7253 California Motor Controls Corp. BPS Control Panels, Sept '19 -15,194.48
12112119 7254 California Special Districts Assoc. ID#294, Membership Renewal, Dec "19 (AJE FY20-21) -7,615.00
1212119 7255 Califomia State Disbursement Unit CSE Caset# 200000002184580; Court Case# SFL 81271, Nov - Dec '19 -600.00
1212119 7256 Caltest Analytical Laboratory M.P./P.C. Lab Sampling, Nov '19 -1,844.85
12/12/19 7257 Caltronics Business Systems, Inc. Acct #5D15, Multi-purpose Copier Contract Fee, Nov *19 -163.14
12/12/19 7258 Comeast Business Acct# 8155 30 011 0149465, Bus. Voice, Intemet & Cable, Nov - Dec 19 -561.07
12/12119 7259 County of Marin - Central Collections 2019 Hazardous Materials Permit No. 60-0310 - CUPA Fee, Dec "19 (AJE F... -1,346.00
12112119 7260 CWEA R Cottrell, Jan ‘20 (AJE FY20-21) -89.00
12/12/19 7261 DKF Solutions Group, LLC My Safety Officer Monthly Subscription, Dec *19 -350.00
12112119 7262 E & M Electric & Machinery, Inc. Cusi #SANI5, SCADA Sys. Maint.& iT Support Contract Renewal, Dec "9 (... -8,565.00
12/12/19 7263 Friedman's Home Improvement Acct #20070, PPE/Safetywear, Nov '19 -479.59
12112119 7264 Harrington Industrial Plastics LLC Cust #:044227, M.P. Supplies, Nov "19 -397.83
12/12/19 7265 Home Depot Credit Services Acct #6035 3220 0516 4334, P&L, M.P. Maint., Dec '19 -133.68
12/12119 7266 Jackson's Hardware, Inc. Acct #7601, Safetywear/PPE, Nov '19 -483.21
1211219 7267 Maltby Electric Supply Co., Inc. Cust No.15953, BPS P&L + M.P. Supplies, Nov ‘19 -3,623.86
12112119 7268 Marin Resource Recovery Center Cust #02-1527 0, M.P. Disposal, Nov '19 -40.00
12/12/19 7269 Martin Bros. Supply BPS#9, Nov '19 -88.17
1211219 7270 Medical Center of Marin, ES A/R Acct #:SDN5_B1, J Alvarez, Oct 19 -116.00
12/12/19 7271 Roy's Sewer Service, Inc. Belv P&L, Nov '19 -975.00
12/12/19 7272 Special District Risk Management Authorit Member #7665, Life, Vislon, DDS & LTD Ins., Dec '19 -1,499.31
12/12/119 7273 SWRCB - ELAP Fees Cert# 2164, Annual ELAP Fees, Dec 19 -3,289.00
12/12/19 7274 Telstar Instrument, Inc. Cust #SANDI, BPS Comm Panel Parts, Oct - Nov 19 -4,674.16
12112119 7275 Terminix Processing Center Acct #327163, Pest Control, FY19-20 (AJE FY20-21) -1,676.16
12112119 7276 The Ark Publishing Co. Inc. Annual Newspaper Subscription Renewal, 2020 (AJE FY20-21) -69.50
1211219 7277 U.S. Bank Acct#:4246-0441-0158-3635, Oct-Nov 19 -2,838.27
12112119 7278 Univar Cust ID #STDT001, Chemicals, Nov '19 -8,013.99
12112119 7279 Waste Management of Redwood Landfill Acct #507-0000190-1507-2, Sludge Disposal, Nov '19 -1,742.16
12112119 7280 Water Components & Building Supply Acct #454, P.C. Maint. parts & supplias, Nov 18 -610.81
12112119 7281 Water Environment Federation Member ID #01812507, Tony Rubio, Dec "19 (AJE FY20-21) -332.00
12/1219 7282 XMR Fire Emergency Services Consulting Website Hosting, Maint & Support, Contract Renewal 2020, Dec "19 -1,431.50
12/12/19 7283 Biisborough, Chad Reimb. for PPE + EE incentive, Dec '19 -1,196.18
12112119 7284 Driscoll, Stephen Reimb. for S/B Mileage, Dec '19 ~470.96

Total JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399 -141,648.00
TOTAL -141,648.00
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

121019 Warrant List Detail
November 15 through December 12, 2019
Date Num Name Memo Account Class Paid Amount
12/0519 EFT PERS EFT PERS Retirement, Spec Comp for Holidays (9.2.19, 10.14.19, 11.11.19)  JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Special Comp - 9.2.19, Labor Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Belvedere -116.38
Special Comp - 9.2.19, Labor Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon:Paradise Cove -7.83
Special Comp - 9.2.19, Labor Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon -199.43
Special Comp - 10.14.19, Columbus Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Belvedere -100.04
Special Comp - 10.14.19, Columbus Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon:Paradise Cove -8.73
Special Comp - 10.14.19, Columbus Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon -171.44
Special Comp - 10.14.19, Columbus Day (PEPRA 27151 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Belvedere -25.75
Special Comp - 10.14.19, Columbus Day (PEPRA 27151 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon:Paradise Cove -1.73
Special Comp - 10.14.19, Columbus Day (PEPRA 27151 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon 4412
Special Comp - 11.11.18, Veteran's Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Belvedere -77.59
Special Comp - 11.11.19, Veteran's Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon:Paradise Cove -5.22
Special Comp - 11.11.19, Veteran's Day (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon -132.95
Special Comp - 11.11.19, Veteran's Day (PEPRA 27151 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Belvedere -43.58
Special Comp - 11.11.19, Veteran's Day (PEPRA 27151 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon:Paradise Cove -2,93
Special Comp - 11.11.19, Veteran's Day (PEPRA 27151 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon -74.67
TOTAL -1,010.39
12/05119 EFT CalPERS #4163206459, SSA 218 Annual Reporting Fee - SSA , FY19-20 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #100000015878297, SSA 218 Annual Admin Fee, FY19-20 8019 - PERS Retirement Belvedere -89.90
Inv #100000015878297, SSA 218 Annual Admin Fee, FY19-20 8019 - PERS Retirement Tiburon:Paradise Cove -6.05
Inv #100000015878297, SSA 218 Annual Admin Fee, FY19-20 8019 - PERS Retirement Tiburon -154.056
TOTAL -250.00
12/0519 EFT CalPERS EFT Health Premium, Dec "19, Cust #4163206459 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Active Employee Health Premium - Dec'19 8020.05 - Employee Health Belvedere -4,972.73
Active Employee Health Premium - Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon:Paradise Cove -334.65
Active Employee Health Premium - Dec ‘19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon -8,521.12
Retiree Health Premium - Dec '19 8022.05 - Reitree Health Belvedere -293.43
Retiree Health Premium - Dec '19 8022.05 - Reitree Health Tiburon:Paradise Cove -19.75
Retiree Health Premium - Dec '19 8022.05 - Reitree Health Tiburon -502.82
Active Employee Health Premium - Dec 19 - Admin Fee 8020.05 - Employee Health Belvedere -13.43
Active Employee Health Premium - Dec '19 - Admin Fee 8020.05 - Employee Heaith Tiburon:Paradise Cove -0.90
Active Employee Health Premium - Dec '19 - Admin Fee 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon -23.01
Retiree Health Premium - Dec 18 - Admin Fee 8022.05 - Reitree Health Belvedere -6.33
Retiree Health Premium - Dec '19 - Admin Fee 8022.05 - Reitree Health Tiburan:Paradise Cove -0.43
Retiree Health Premium - Nov '18 - Admin Fee 8022.05 - Reitree Health Tiburon -10.85
TOTAL -14,699.45
12/05119 EFT PERS EFT PERS Retirement, Nov '19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Retirement Nov 2019 (Classic 1600 Rate): ER @ 13.182 %; EE @ 3.0% 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Belvedere -4,250.45
Retirement Nov 2019 (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon:Paradise Cove -286.04
Retirement Nov 2019 (Classic 1600 Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon -7,283.44
Retirement Nov 2019 (PEPRA Rates: ER @ 6.985%; EE @ 6.75% 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Belvedere -1,459.12
Retirement Nov 2019 (PEPRA Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon:Paradise Cove -98.19
Retirement Nov 2019 (PEPRA Rate) 8019.05 - PERS Retirement Tiburon
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

1210M9 Warrant List Detail
November 15 through December 12, 2019
Date Num Name Memo Account Class Paid Amount
TOTAL -15,877.54
11/21119 7239  Mill Valley Refuse Service, Inc. Acct #032945, Garbage Service + 1 yd rental, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Garbage Service, Including 1 yd trash + 1 yd cardboard rental, 11.1.19~11.3... 7023 - Janitorial Supplies & Service Belvedere -86.45
Garbage Service, Including 1 yd trash + 1 yd cardboard rental, 11.1.19-11.3... 7023 - Janitorial Supplies & Service Tiburon -148.15
TOTAL -234.60
11/21/19 7240  North Bay Petroleum Generator Fuel for Work done at FY19-20 Viztazo West Washout Final Re... JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #1195942, Generator Fuel for Work done at FY19-20 Viztazo West Wash... 7071 - Fuel Tiburon -3,004.78
TOTAL -3,004.78
112119 7241 Recology Sonoma Marin Cust #A1810470401, Cust ID: SANHES, Sludge Disposal, Sept “19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #24498, 2 loads, 20Yd Debris Box/Sludge Disposal, 9.21.19, 9.30.19 7029 - Main Plant Sludge Disposal Belvedere -251.72
Inv #24498, 2 loads, 20Yd Debris Box/Sludge Disposal, 9.21.19, 9.30.19 7043 - Paradise Sludge Disposal Tiburon:Paradise Cove -16.94
Inv #24498, 2 loads, 20Yd Debris Box/Sludge Disposal, 9.21.19, 9.30.19 7029 - Main Plant Sludge Disposal Tiburon -431.34
TOTAL -700.00
112119 7242  Staples, Inc. Acct #60111000714, Office Supplies, Oct 19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #1382710571, Office Supplies, 10.5.19 6047 - Office Supplies Belvedere -12.64
Inv #1382710571, Office Supplies, 10.5.19 6047 - Office Supplies Tiburon:Paradise Cove -0.85
Inv #1382710571, Office Supplies, 10.5.19 6047 - Office Supplies Tiburon -21.66
Inv #2376930461, Office Supplies, 10.22.19 8025 - Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -19.07
Inv #2376930461, Office Supplies, 10.22,19 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove -1.28
Inv #2376930461, Office Supplies, 10.22.19 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -32.69
TOTAL -88.19
11/2119 7243 SWRCB FEES SWRCB Permit (Threat/Complexity 3C) Permit, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Facility #: 265010151, Inv #WD-0162135, Index No. 385672: SWRCB Permit... 7062 - Permits/Fees - General Belvedere -967.31
Facility #: 288010151, Inv #WD-0162135, Index No. 385672: SWRCB Permit... 7062 - Permits/Fees - General Tiburon -1,657.69
Facility #: 2 215021001, Inv #WD-0167505, Index No. 391042; SWRCB Perm... 7061 * Main Plant NPDES Renewal Belvedere -2,590.19
Facility #: 2 215021001, Inv #WD-0167505, Index No. 391042: SWRCB Perm... 7061 - Main Plant NPDES Renewal Tiburon -4,438.81
Facility #: 2 215021002, Inv #WD-0167415, Index No. 390952: SWRCB Perm... 7063 - Paradise Cove Permits/Fees Tiburon:Paradise Cove -2,754.00
Facility #: 255010152, Inv #WWD-0165709, Index No. 389246, SWRCB Permi... 7063 - Paradise Cove Pemmits/Fees Tiburon:Paradise Cove -2,625.00
TOTAL -15,033.00
1121119 7244 Town of Tiburon Fuel, Oct *19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Fuel, Oct 19 7071 - Fuel Belvedere -702.99
Fuel, Oct"19 7071 - Fuel Tiburon:Paradise Cove -47.31
Fuel, Oct '19 7071 - Fuel Tiburon -1,204.61
TOTAL -1,954.91
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

1210119 Warrant List Detail
November 15 through December 12, 2019
Date Num Name Memo Account Class Pald Amount
11/21119 7245 Wintersun Chemical M.P. Chemicals, Oct "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #1904170.06, M.P. Odor Control - Ferrous Chloride Solution, 10.24.19 7024 : Main Plant Chemicals Belvedere -853.31
Inv #1904170.06, M.P. Odor Control - Ferrous Chloride Solution, 10.24.19 7024 - Main Plant Chemicals Tiburon -1,462.32
TOTAL -2,315.63
1121119 7246  Verizon Wireless Acct #0342125502-00001: iPhones, Oct-Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #9841693957: Equipment charges(w/ data plan $55.41), 10.9.18 - 11.8.19 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Belvedere -19.93
Inv #9841693957: Equipment charges(w/ data plan $55.41), 10.9.18 - 11.8.19 8532 - Paradise Cove Telephones Tiburon:Paradise Cove -1.34
Inv #9841693957: Equipment charges(w/ data plan $55.41), 10.9.18 - 11.8.19 8531 + Main Plant Telephones Tiburon -34.14
Inv #9841693957: Monthly Charges ($303.60) 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Belvedere -109.17
Inv #9841693957: Monthly Charges ($303.80) 8532 - Paradise Cove Telephones Tiburon:Paradise Cove -7.35
Inv #9841693957: Monthly Charges ($303.80) 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Tiburon -187.08
Inv #9841693957: Taxes, Gov't Surcharges & Fees 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Belvedere -10.66
Inv #9841693957: Taxes, Gov't Surcharges & Fees 8532 - Paradise Cove Telephones Tiburon:Paradise Cove -0.71
Inv #9841693957: Taxes, Gov't Surcharges & Fees 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Tiburon -18.26
TOTAL -388.64
11/21119 7247  Driscoll, Stephen PG&E PSPS/Diem + Boot Reimb. for S Driscoll, Oct - Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Meals/diem for PG&E PSPS Outage, 10.26.19-10.29.19 6018.1 - Meetings & Travel Belvedere -64.73
Meals/diem for PG&E PSPS Outage, 10.26.19-10.29.19 6018.1 - Meetings & Travel Tiburon:Paradise Cove -4.36
Meals/diem for PG&E PSPS Outage, 10.26.19 -10.29.19 6018.1 ' Meetings & Travel Tiburon -110.92
FY19-20 Boot Reimb, 11.12.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Belvedere -52.21
FY19-20 Boot Reimb, 11.12.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon:Paradise Cove -3.51
FY19-20 Boot Reimb, 11.12.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon -89.45
TOTAL -325.18
1212119 7248  Access Answering Service Acct #4080C, Answering Service, Dac "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #22017, Answering Service, December ‘19 - SSO & Alarm Notifications 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Belvedere -21.58
Inv #22017, Answering Service, December '19 - SSO & Alarm Notifications 8510 + Data/AlarmsAT Supp & Licensing Tiburon:Paradise Cove -1.45
Inv #22017, Answering Service, December '19 - S50 & Alarm Notifications 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon -36.97
TOTAL -60.00
12112119 7248 Alhambra Acct #547945611762129, Water, Oct-Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #12012314 111519 Water, 10.18.19-11.13.19 7023 - Janitorial Supplies & Service Belvedere -52.47
Inv #12012314 111519 Water, 10.18.19-11.13.19 7042 - Paradise Supplies & Chemicals Tiburon:Paradise Cove -3.53
Inv #12012314 111519 Water, 10.18.19 - 11.13.19 7023 - Janitorial Supplies & Service Tiburon -89.91
TOTAL ~145.91
121219 7250 APG Neuros, Inc. Lab Supplies, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #11221, M.P. Lab Supplies, 11.26.19 7025 - Lab Supplies & Chemicals Belvedere -2,188.89
Inv #11221, M.P. Lab Supplies, 11.26.19 7025 - Lab Supplies & Chemicals Tiburon -3,751.11
Inv #10299 - Sales tax applied (post-facto @ 5.3.19 invoice), 11.15.19 7025 - Lab Supplies & Chemicals Belvedere -57.45
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

1211019 Warrant List Detail
November 15 through December 12, 2019
Date Num Name Memo Account Class Pald Amount
Inv #10299 - Sales tax applied (post-facto @ 5.3.19 invoice), 11.15.18 7025 - Lab Supplies & Chemicals Tiburon -98.45
TOTAL -6,095.90
12112119 7251 Brelje and Race Laboratories, Inc. M.P./P.C. Plant Samples, Oct "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #123576, M.P. samples for October ‘19 7051 - Main Plant Lab Monitoring Belvedere -357.45
Inv #123576, M.P. samples for October '19 7062 - Paradise Cove Monitoring Tiburon:Paradise Cove -125.00
Inv #123576, M.P. samples for October '19 7051 - Main Plant Lab Monitoring Tiburon -812.55
TOTAL -1,085.00
12112119 7252  Burke, Willlams & Sorensen, LLP Legal Advice, Oct "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #247697, SD5 DCS, Oct '19 6039 - Legal Belvedere -2,191.04
Inv #247697, SD5 DCS, Oct '19 6039 - Legal Tiburon:Paradise Cove -147.45
Inv #247697, SD5 DCS, Oct'19 6039 - Legal Tiburon -3,754.51
Inv #247697, SD5 WHC/MPR, Oct '19 6039 - Legal Belvedere -29.02
Inv #247697, SD5 WHC/MPR, Oct '19 6039 - Legal Tiburon -49.73
Inv #247697, Tib BTL, Oct '19 6039 - Legal Tiburon -330.75
Inv #247697, Tib LFRD, Oct '19 6039 - Legal Tiburon -976.50
TOTAL -7,479.00
1211219 7253 California Motor Controls Corp. BPS Control Panels, Sept "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #119-9481, BPS#2, Control Panel, 9.11.19 9302 - PS Control Panel Upgrades Belvedere -15,194.48
TOTAL -15,194.48
12M2H9 7254  California Special Districts Assoc.  1D#294, Membership Renewal, Dec 19 (AJE FY20-21) JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
CSDA Member ID#294, Membership Renewal - 1.1.20 - 6.30.20 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -1,369.18
CSDA Member |D#294, Membership Renewal - 1.1.20 - 6,30.20 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove 9214
CSDA Member ID#294, Membership Renewal - 1.1.20 - 6.30.20 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -2,346.18
CSDA Member |D#294, Membership Renewal - 7.1.20 - 12.31.20 (AJE F'f20... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -1,369.18
CSDA Member |D#294, Membership Renewal -7.1.20 - 12.31.20 (AJE F'Y20... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove 92,14
CSDA Member ID#294, Membership Renewal - 7.1.20 - 12.31.20 (AJE FY20... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -2,346.18
TOTAL -7,615.00
1212119 7265 California State Disbursement Unit CSE Casei# 200000002184580; Court Case# SFL 81271, Nov - Dec "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
CSE Case# 200000002184580 8012 - Wage Garnishments Tiburon -600.00
TOTAL -600.00
12/1219 7256  Caltest Analytical Laboratory M.P./P.C. Lab Sampling, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #5215, #4487, #4603, #4743, M.P. Testing, 11.5.19, 11.12.19 7051 - Main Plant Lab Monitoring Belvedere -564.65
Inv #4602, P.C. Testing, 11.5.19 7052 - Paradise Cove Monitoring Tiburon:Paradise Cove -312.55
Inv #5215, #4487, #4603, #4743, M.P. Testing, 11.5.19, 11.12.19 7051 - Main Plant Lab Monitoring Tiburon -967.65
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TOTAL -1,844.85
12/1219 7257  Caltronics Business Systems, Inc.  Acct #SD15, Multi-purpose Copier Contract Fee, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #2921382, Konica Multi-purpose copier contract, 11.2.19 - 12.1.19 6047 - Office Supplies Belvedere -58.67
Inv #2921382, Konica Multi-purpose copier contract, 11.2.19 - 12.1.19 6047 - Office Supplies Tiburon:Paradise Cove -3.95
Inv #2921382, Konica Multi-purpose copier contract, 11.2.19 - 12.1.19 6047 - Office Supplies Tiburon -100.52
TOTAL -163.14
12/12119 7258 Comcast Business Accti# 8155 30 011 0149465, Bus. Voice, Internet & Cable, Nov - Dec 19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Bundle: Cable ($89.55), 11.12.19-12.11.19 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Beivedere -32.20
Bundle: Cable ($89.55), 11.12.19-12,11.19 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon:Paradise Cove -2.17
Bundle: Cable ($89.55), 11.12.19-12.11.19 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon -56.18
Bundle: Internet ($203.37 (w/ $60 credit)), 11.12.19 - 12.11.19) 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing  Belvedere -51.56
Bundle: Internet ($203.37 (w/ $60 credit)), 11.12.19 - 12.11.19) 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon:Paradise Cove -3.47
Bundle: Internet ($203.37 (w/ $60 credit)), 11.12.19 - 12.11.19) 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon -88.34
Bundle: Land Line Phones ($363.45 (w/ $45 credit)), 11.12.19 - 12.11.19 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Belvedere -114.51
Bundle: Land Line Phones ($318.45 (w/ $45 credit)), 11.12.19 - 12.11.19 8532 - Paradise Cove Telephones Tiburon:Paradise Cove 771
Bundle: Land Line Phones ($318.45 (w/ $45 credit)), 11.12.19 - 12.11.19 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Tiburon -196.23
Bundle: Taxes & Fees (< $10 - varies/mo), 11.12.19- 12.11.19 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Belvedere -1.74
Bundle: Taxes & Fees (< $10 - varies/mo), 11.12.19- 12.11.19 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon:Paradise Cove -0.12
Bundle: Taxes & Fees (< $10 - varies/mo), 11.12.19-12.11.19 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon -2.99
Bundle: Taxes & Fees (< $10 - varies/mo), 11.12,19-12.11.19 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Belvedere -1.74
Bundle: Taxes & Fees (< $10 - varies/mo), 11.12.19 - 12,11.19 8532 - Paradise Cove Telephones Tiburon:Paradise Cove -0.12
Bundle: Taxes & Fees (< $10 - varies/mo), 11.12.19 - 12.11.19 8531 - Main Plant Telephones Tiburon -2.99
TOTAL -561.07
12H2M9 7259  County of Marin - Central Collectl... 2019 Hazardous Materials Permit No. 60-0310 - CUPA Fee, Dec “19 (AJE ...  JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #IN0235762, Facility #21-000-600310, CalPERS ID#: 10593949 - 2019 A... 7062 - Permits/Fees - General Belvedere -242.01
Inv #IN0235762, Facility #21-000-600310, CalPERS ID#: 10593949 - 2019 A... 7063 - Paradise Cove Permits/Fees Tiburon:Paradise Cove -16.29
Inv #IN0235762, Facility #21-000-600310, CalPERS ID#: 10593949 - 2019 A... 7062 - Permits/Fees - General Tiburon -414.70
Inv #IN0235762, Facility #21-000-600310, CalPERS ID#: 10593949 - 2019 A... 7062 - Permits/Fees - General Belvedere -242,01
Inv #INO235762, Facility #21-000-600310, CalPERS ID#: 10593949 - 2018 A... 7063 - Paradise Cove Permits/Fees Tiburon:Paradise Cove -16.29
Inv #IN0235762, Facility #21-000-600310, CalPERS ID#: 10593949 - 2019 A... 7062 - Permits/Fees - General Tiburon -414.70
TOTAL -1,346.00
1211219 7260 CWEA R Cottrell, Jan '20 (AJE FY20-21) JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
R Cottrell, #58912l, Plant Maintenance Techonologist, Grade 1, Cert Renewal... 6025 : Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -16.00
R Cottrell, #58912l, Plant Maintenance Techonologist, Grade |, Cert Renewal... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove -1.08
R Cottrell, #58912l, Plant Maintenance Techonologist, Grade |, Cert Renewal... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -27.42
R Cottrell, #58912l, Plant Maintenance Techonologist, Grade I, Cert Renewal... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -16.00
R Cotirell, #58912, Plant Maintenance Techonologist, Grade |, Cert Renewal... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove -1.08
R Cottrell, #58912l, Plant Maintenance Techonologist, Grade |, Cert Renewal... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -27.42
TOTAL -89.00
12/12119 7261  DKF Solutions Group, LLC My Safety Officer Monthly Subscription, Dec "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
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Date Num Name Memo Account Class Paid Amount
Inv #14834, My Safety Officer Monthly Subscription Fee, Dec '19 8515 - Safety Belvedere -125.86
Inv #14834, My Safety Officer Monthly Subscription Fee, Dec 19 8515 - Safety Tiburon:Paradise Cove -8.47
Inv #14834, My Safety Officer Monthly Subscription Fee, Dec '19 8515 - Safety Tiburon -215.67
TOTAL -350.00
1212119 7262 E & M Electric & Machinery, Inc. Cust #SANI5, SCADA Sys. Maint.& IT Support Contract Renewal, Dec "19... JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #347115/CFA#100158, SCADA System Maintenance & IT Support, Inven... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Belvedere -1,611.91
Inv #347115/CFA#100158, SCADA System Maintenance & IT Support, Inven... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon:Paradise Cove -108.48
Inv #347115/CFA#100158, SCADA System Maintenance & IT Support, Inven... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon -2,762.11
Inv #347115/CFA#100158, SCADA System Maintenance & IT Support, Inven... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Belvedere -1,611.91
Inv #347115/CFA#100158, SCADA System Maintenance & IT Support, Inven... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon:Paradise Cove -108.48
Inv #347115/CFA#100158, SCADA System Maintenance & IT Support, Inven... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon -2,762.11
TOTAL -8,965.00
1211219 7263 Friedman's Home Improvement Acct #20070, PPE/Safetywear, Nov 19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #53556708, #70195847, PPE/Safetywear, 11.25.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Belvedere -172.46
inv #53556708, #70195847, PPE/Safetywear, 11.25.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon -11.61
Inv #53556708, #70195847, PPE/Safetywear, 11.25.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Belvedere -295.52
TOTAL -479.59
12/12M19 7264  Harrington Industrial Plastics LLC Cust #:044227, M.P. Supplies, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #6L4583, #6L4546, M.P. Supplies Replenishment, Nov '19 7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies Belvedere -146.60
Inv #6L4583, #6L4546, M.P. Supplies Replenishment, Nov 19 7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies Tiburon -251.23
TOTAL -387.83
1211219 7265 Home Depot Credit Services Acct #6035 3220 0516 4334, P&L, M.P. Maint., Dec 19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
M.P. Maintenance Supplies Replenishment, 12.5.19 7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies Belvedere -49.26
M.P. Maintenance Supplies Replenishment, 12.5.19 7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies Tiburon -84.42
TOTAL -133.68
121219 7266 Jackson's Hardware, Inc. Acct #7601, Safetywear/PPE, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #43142, Personal Protection/Safety Wear - D LaTorre, 11.26.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Belvedere -91.51
Inv #43142, Personal Protection/Safety Wear - D LaTorre, 11.26.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon:Paradise Cove -6.16
Inv #43142, Personal Protection/Safety Wear - D LaTorre, 11.26.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon -156.82
Inv #43142, Raingear - D LaTorre, 11.26.19 8515 - Safety Belvedere -75.06
Inv #43142, Raingear - D LaTorre, 11.26.19 8515 - Safety Tiburon:Paradise Cove -5.05
Inv #43142, Raingear - D LaTorre, 11.26.19 8515 - Safety Tiburon -128.61
TOTAL -463.21
121219 7267 Maltby Electric Supply Co., Inc. Cust No.15953, BPS P&L + M.P. Supplies, Nov *19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #51889612.001- .004, BPS Electrical Upgrades, Nov '19 7011 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance Belvedere -1,650.76
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1211019 Warrant List Detail
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Date Num Name Memo Account Class Paid Amount
Inv #51889612.001- .004, BPS Electrical Upgrades, Nov 19 7027 - Electrical & Instrument Belvedere -1,650.76
Inv # $1890140.001-.002, M.P. Parts & Srvc - New Panel + Breakers @ Boile... 7022 - Plant Maint. Parts & Service Belvedere -118.78
Inv # $1890140.001-.002, M.P. Parts & Srvc - New Panel + Breakers @ Boile... 7022 - Plant Maint. Parts & Service Tiburon -203.56
TOTAL -3,623.86
12M2H9 7268 Marin Resource Recovery Center Cust #02-1527 0, M.P. Disposal, Nov *19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #1289720, Toa#: 1556624, M.P. Disposal, 11.8.19 7023 - Janitorial Supplies & Service Belvedere -14.74
Inv #1209720, Toa#: 1556624, M.P. Disposal, 11.8.19 7023 - Janitorial Supplies & Service Tiburon -25.26
TOTAL -40.00
12M12H9 7269 Martin Bros. Supply BPS#9, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #64064 + #64113: 1 yard recycled road base, crushed rock + stakes for B... 7011 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance Belvedere -88.17
TOTAL -88.17
121219 7270 Medical Center of Marin, ES A/R Acct #:SDN5_B1, J Alvarez, Oct 19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #00122757-00, Employee Health: Hep B Vacc. Injection for J. Alvarez, 10...  8020.05 - Employee Heaith Belvedere -41.71
Inv #00122757-00, Employee Health: Hep B Vacc. Injection for J. Alvarez, 10... 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon:Paradise Cove -2.81
Inv #00122757-00, Employee Health: Hep B Vacc. Injection for J. Alvarez, 10... 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon ~71.48
TOTAL -116.00
121219 7271  Roy's Sewer Service, Inc. Belv P&L, Nov "9 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #206926, Cleaned, flushed, vactored at Paradise Dr. Main, as directed, 11... 7011 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance Tiburon:Paradise Cove -975.00
TOTAL -975.00
12H2H9 7272  Special District Risk Management... Member #7665, Life, Vision, DDS & LTD Ins., Dec 19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Employee Life Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Belvedere -56.14
Employee Life Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon:Paradise Cove -3.78
Employee Life Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon -96.19
Employee DDS Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Belvedere -324.42
Employee DDS Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon:Paradise Cove -21.83
Employee DDS Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon -555.93
Employee Vision Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Belvedere -100.67
Employee Vision Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec 19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon:Paradise Cove -6.77
Employee Vision Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec 19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon -172.50
Employee LTD Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Belvedere -57.92
Employee LTD Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec 19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon:Paradise Cove -3.90
Employee LTD Insurance - Inv #31034, Dec '19 8020.05 - Employee Health Tiburon -99.26
TOTAL -1,499.31
121219 7273 SWRCB - ELAP Fees Cert# 2164, Annual ELAP Fees, Dec "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #EA 0220-2164, Cert #2164, Payment due Feb 23, 2020 7060 - Permits/Fees Belvedere -1,182.72
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Inv #EA 0220-2164, Cert #2164, Payment due Feb 23, 2020 7063 - Paradise Cove Permits/Fees Tiburon:Paradise Cove -79.59
Inv #EA 0220-2164, Cert #2164, Payment due Feb 23, 2020 7060 - Permits/Fees Tiburon -2,026.69
TOTAL -3,2689.00
12M2M9 7274  Telstar Instrument, Inc. Cust #SANDI, BPS Comm Panel Parts, Oct - Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #101524, Radio Install @ BPS #9 re Communication Panel Ugrades, 10.2... 9310 - BPS Communication Project Belvedere -1,805.34
Inv #101689, Battery Back-up battery for M.P. PCL, 11.12.19 7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies Belvedere -1,0567.16
Inv #101689, Battery Back-up battery for M.P. PCL, 11.12.19 7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies Tiburon -1,811.66
TOTAL -4,674.16
12/12/19 7275 Terminix Processing Center Acct #327163, Pest Control, FY19-20 (AJE FY20-21) JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #391336485, Pest (Rodent) Control, 9.1.19 - 6.30.20 7028 - Grounds Maintenance Belvedere -514.72
Inv #391336485, Pest (Rodent) Control, 9.1.19 - 8.30.20 7028 - Grounds Maintenance Tiburon -882.08
Inv #391336485, Pest (Rodent) Control, 7.1.20 - 8.30.20 (AJE FY20-21) 7028 - Grounds Maintenance Belvedere -102.94
Inv #391336485, Pest (Rodent) Control, 7.1.20 - 8.30.20 (AJE FY20-21) 7028 - Grounds Maintenance Tiburon -176.42
TOTAL -1,676.16
12112119 7276 The Ark Publishing Co. Inc. Annual Newspaper Subscription Renewal, 2020 (AJE FY20-21) JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Annual Newspaper Subscription Renewal, 2020 (1.1.20 - 8.30.20) 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -12.50
Annual Newspaper Subscription Renewal, 2020 {1.1.20 - 6.30.20) 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove -0.84
Annual Newspaper Subscription Renewal, 2020 (1.1.20 - 6.30.20) 8025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -21.41
Annual Newspaper Subscription Renewal, 2020 (7.1.20 - 12.31.20) (AJE FY2... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -12.50
Annual Newspaper Subscription Renewal, 2020 (7.1.20 - 12.31.20) (AJE FY2... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove -0.84
Annual Newspaper Subscription Renewal, 2020 (7.1.20 - 12.31.20) (AJE FY2... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -21.41
TOTAL -69.50
12112119 7277 U.S.Bank Accti#:4248-0441-0158-3635, Oct-Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
#9545: Woodlands, Brd Mtg, supplies, 10.31.19, 11.14.19, 11.21.19 6018.1 - Meetings & Travel Belvedere -51.07
#9545: Woodlands, Brd Mtg, supplies, 10.31.19, 11.14.19, 11.21.19 6018.1 - Meetings & Travel Tiburon:Paradise Cove -3.44
#9545: Woodlands, Brd Mtg, supplies, 10.31.19, 11.14.19, 11.21.19 6018.1 + Meetings & Travel Tiburon -87.52
#0822: Solano Co. College + Barns & Noble, CSDA Roundtable Cont's Ed, 1... 6020 - Continuing Education Belvedere -59.03
#0822: Solano Co. College + Bamns & Noble, CSDA Roundtable Cont's Ed, 1... 6020 - Continuing Education Tiburon:Paradise Cove -3.97
#0822: Solano Co. College + Bans & Noble, CSDA Roundtable Cont's Ed, 1... 6020 - Continuing Education Tiburon -101.16
#9545: Amazon, Office Supplies, 11.21.19 6047 - Office Supplies Belvedere -15.95
#9545: Amazon, Office Supplies, 11.21.19 6047 - Office Supplies Tiburon:Paradise Cove -1.07
#9545: Amazon, Office Supplies, 11.21.19 6047 - Office Supplies Tiburon -27.34
#9545: USPO, Res. Correspondence, 11.6.19, 11.21.19 6056 - Postage Belvedere -3.45
#9545: USPO, Res. Correspondence, 11.6.19, 11.21.19 6056 - Postage Tiburon:Paradise Cove -0.23
#9545: USPO, Res. Correspondence, 11.6.19, 11.21.18 6056 - Postage Tiburon -5.92
#9545: Tractor Supply, M.P. Supplies, 10.25.19 7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies Belvedere -466.71
#9545: Tractor Supply, M.P. Supplies, 10.25.19 7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies Tiburon -799.79
#9545: P.C. Supplies, 11.20.19 7041 - Paradise Parts & Service Tiburon:Paradise Cove -167.19
#9545/#0822: CarQuest, Sonnen Auto Srvc, 10.23.19, 10.29.19 7072 - Truck Maintenance Belvedere -227.20
#9545/#0822: CarQuest, Sonnen Auto Srvc, 10.23.19, 10.29.19 7072 - Truck Maintenance Tiburon:Paradise Cove -15.29
#9545/#0822: CarQuest, Sonnen Auto Srvc, 10.23.19, 10.29.19 7072 - Truck Maintenance Tiburon -3689.32
#9545: Amazon - Headlamps, Safety Supplies, 11.6.19 8515 - Safety Belvedere -70.01
#9545: Amazon - Headlamps, Safety Supplies, 11.6.19 8515 - Safety Tiburon:Paradise Cove -4.71
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#9545: Amazon - Headlamps, Safety Supplies, 11.6.19 8515 - Safety Tiburon -119.98
#9545: WorkWorld - PPE/Workpants (C Bilsborough), 11.21.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Belvedere -78.36
#9545: WorkWorld - PPE/Workpants (C Bilsborough), 11.21.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon:Paradise Cove -5.27
#9545: WorkWorld - PPE/Workpants (C Bilsborough), 11.21.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon -134.29
TOTAL -2,838.27
1211219 7278 Univar Cust ID #STDT001, Chemicals, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #SJ973746, Sodium Bisulfite 25% ($1.163/Gal), 11.21.19 7024 - Main Plant Chemicals Belvedere -2,186.92
Inv #SJ973746, Sodium Bisulfite 25% ($1.163/Gal), 11.21.19 7042 - Paradise Supplies & Chemicals Tiburon:Paradise Cove -147.17
Inv #SJ9737486, Sodium Bisulfite 25% ($1.163/Gal), 11.21.19 7024 - Main Plant Chemicals Tiburon -3,747.44
Inv #8J974683, Sodium Hypochlorite 12.5% ($0.7001/Gal), 11.27.19 7024 - Main Plant Chemicals Belvedere -694.91
Inv #5J974683, Sodium Hypochlorite 12.5% ($0.7001/Gal), 11.27.19 7042 - Paradise Supplies & Chemicals Tiburon:Paradise Cove -46.77
Inv #SJ974683, Sodium Hypochlorite 12.5% ($0.7001/Gal), 11.27.19 7024 - Main Plant Chemicals Tiburon -1,190.78
TOTAL -8,013.99
12M12/19 7279 Waste Management of Redwood ...  Acct #507-0000190-1507-2, Sludge Disposal, Nov "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #0098798-1507-49 Sludge Disposal - 3 pick-ups, 27.46 tons, Nov 19 7029 - Main Plant Sludge Disposal Belvedere -626.48
Inv #0098798-1507-49 Sludge Disposal - 3 pick-ups, 27.46 tons, Nov 19 7043 - Paradise Sludge Disposal Tiburon:Paradise Cove -42.16
Inv #0098798-1507-49 Sludge Disposal - 3 pick-ups, 27.46 tons, Nov 19 7029 - Main Plant Sludge Disposal Tiburon -1,073.52
TOTAL -1,742.16
12/1219 7280 Water Components & Building Su... Acct #454, P.C. Maint. parts & supplies, Nov 19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #30516723, P.C. Maintenance Parts & Supplies replenishment, 11.26.19 7041 - Paradise Parts & Service Tiburon:Paradise Cove -610.81
TOTAL -610.81
12/12/19 7281  Water Environment Federation Member ID #01812507, Tony Rubio, Dec "19 (AJE FY20-21) JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Tony Rubio - 2020 WEF Membership Dues, Code #RESOBE (exp 2.28.20) - 3... 8025 - Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -39.80
Tony Rubio - 2020 WEF Membership Dues, Code #RESOBE (exp 2.28.20) - 3... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove -2.68
Tony Rubio - 2020 WEF Membership Dues, Code #RESOBE (exp 2.28.20)- 3... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -68.19
Tony Rubio - 2020 WEF Membership Dues, Code #RESOBE (exp 2.28.20)-7... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Belvedere -79.59
Tony Rubio - 2020 WEF Membership Dues, Code #RESOBE (exp 2.28.20)-7... 6025 - Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon:Paradise Cove -5.36
Tony Rubio - 2020 WEF Membership Dues, Code #RE90BE (exp 2.28.20)-7... 6025 : Dues & Subscriptions Tiburon -136.38
TOTAL -332.00
1211219 7282 XMR Fire Emergency Services Co... Website Hosting, Maint & Support, Contract Renewal 2020, Dec "19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Inv #2019-055, IT/Alarms/Data: Todd Lando - Website Hosting, Maint & Supp... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Belvedere -257.38
Inv #2019-055, IT/Alarms/Data: Todd Lando - Website Hosting, Maint & Supp... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon:Paradise Cove -17.32
Inv #2018-055, IT/Alarms/Data: Todd Lando - Website Hosting, Maint & Supp... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon -441.05
Inv #2019-055, IT/Alarms/Data: Todd Lando - Website Hosting, Maint & Supp... 8510 - Data/AlarmsAT Supp & Licensing Belvedere -257.38
Inv #2019-055, IT/Alarms/Data: Todd Lando - Website Hosting, Maint & Supp... 8510 - Data/Alarms/AiT Supp & Licensing Tiburon:Paradise Cove -17.32
Inv #2019-055, IT/Alarms/Data: Todd Lando - Website Hosting, Maint & Supp... 8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing Tiburon _ -441.05
TOTAL -1,431.50
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

121019 Warrant List Detail
November 15 through December 12, 2019
Date Num Name Memo Account Class Paid Amount
12112119 7283  Bilsborough, Chad Relmb. for PPE + EE Incentive, Dec 19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Employee Incentive/Con't Ed Stipend: Completion of Ops & Maint WWTP Coll... 8005 - Employee Incentives Belvedere -359.60
Employee Incentive/Con't Ed Stipend: Completion of Ops & Maint WWTP Coll... 8005 - Employee Incentives Tiburon:Paradise Cove -24.20
Employee Incentive/Con't Ed Stipend: Completion of Ops & Maint WWTP Coll... 8005 - Employee Incentives Tiburon -616.20
Reimb. re PPE/Safetywear, Workworld, FY19-20 Boot Allowance, 11.25.19 8520  Personal Protection/Safety Wear Belvedere -70.55
Reimb. re PPE/Safetywear, Workworld, FY19-20 Boot Allowance, 11.25.19 8520 + Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon:Paradise Cove -4.75
Reimb. re PPE/Safetywear, Workworld, FY19-20 Boot Allowance, 11.25.19 8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear Tiburon -120.88
TOTAL -1,196.18
1211219 7284 Driscoll, Stephen Reimb. for S/B Mileage, Dec '19 JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
Reimb. for M.P. S/B Mileage, through 12.11.19 6018.2 - Standby Mileage Expense Reimb Belvedere -173.55
Reimb. for M.P. S/B Mileage, through 12.11.19 6018.2 - Standby Mileage Expense Reimb  Tiburon -297.41
TOTAL -470.96
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NOV 14, 2019

SANITARY DISTRICT NO 5 - 0400-2116 CHECK DATE: 11/15/2019 WEEK 46
PO BOX 227 PERIOD BEGIN : 11/01/2019
BELVEDERE TIBURON, CA 94920 PERIOD END : 11/15/2019

Dear Paychex Preview Client,

Enclosed are your payroll reports and checks. Please verify that all information Is accurate and correct.
If there are any questions or concemns, please contact us immediately,

If you have tax deposits due, ensure the deposits are initiated at least one banking day prior to the due date
to avold penalties. We will assume that these deposits were made on the due dates and they will be reflected

on your returns accordingly.

This is a summary of your payroll transactions of the check date of 11/15/2019. It does not reflect miscellaneous
administrative charges. Please refer to your Paychex Human Resource Services invoice(s) for any additional cash

required for this check date.

PAYROLL TOTALS

DIRECT DEPOSIT DEBITED FROM YOUR ACCOUNT 49654.19

READYCHEX DEBITED FROM YOUR ACCOUNT 0.00 NUMBER OF PAYROLL CHECKS 18
TOTAL NET PAYROLL 49654.19

BILLING PAYMENT 249, 50/ Withdrawal made by PAYCHEX INC. on above check date.
AMOUNT DEBITED FROM TAX ACCOUNT 25595.06

TOTAL TAX LIABILITY DUE BY CLIENT 0.00

TOTAL TAX LIABILITY 25595.06 ~ NUMBER OF CHECKS PRINTED 18
TOTAL NET PAYROLL, TAX LIABILITY,

AND SERVICES 75249 .25

TOTAL COST OF PAYROLL 75498. 7@ NUMBER OF MANUAL/VOID TRANSACTIONS 0
TAX DEPOSITS DUE ,.14,

TAX AGENCY TAXPAY NON-TAXPAY DUE DATE W

FEDERAL 21104.06 11/20/2019 Deposit made by PAYCHEX INC. on your behalf.

STATE - CA 4346.53 11/20/2019 Deposit mads by PAYCHEX INC. on your bahalf,

NEXT PERIOD DATES

CHECK DATE : 11/27/2018 WEEK 48 TRANSMIT DATE:  11/25/2019

PERIOD BEGIN : 11/18/2019
PERIOD END : 11/30/2019



NOV 14, 2019

SANITARY DISTRICT NO 5 - 0400-211¢6
PO BOX 227
BELVEDERE TIBURON, CA 94920

Dear Paychex Preview Cllent,

CHECK DATE: 11/15/2019-2 WEEK 46
PERIOD BEGIN : 11/01/2019
PERIOD END: 11/15/2019

Enclosed are your payroll reports and checks. Please verify that all information Is accurate and correct.
If there are any questions or concerns, please contact us immediately.

If you have tax deposits doe, ensure the deposits are initiated at least one banking day prior to the due date
to avold penalties. We will assume that these deposits were made on the due dates and they will be reflected

on your returns accordingly.

This is a summary of your payroll transactions of the check date of 11/15/2019. It does not reflect miscellaneous
administrative charges. Please refer to your Paychex Human Resource Services invoice(s) for any additional cash

required for this check date.

PAYROLL TOTALS

DIRECT DEPOSIT DEBITED FROM YOUR ACCOUNT 5531.97

READYCHEX DEBITED FROM YOUR ACCOUNT 0.00 NUMBER OF PAYROLL CHECKS ER
TOTAL NET PAYROLL 5531.97

BILLING PAYMENT 20.11~  Withdrawal made by PAYCHEX INC. on above check date.
AMOUNT DEBITED FROM TAX ACCOUNT 1880.86

TOTAL TAX LIABILITY DUE BY CLIENT 0.00

TOTAL TAX LIABILITY 1890.86 © NUMBER OF CHECKS PRINTED 1
TOTAL NET PAYROLL, TAX LIABILITY,

AND SERVICES 7422 .83

TOTAL COST OF PAYROLL 7442 . 94@NUMBER OF MANUAL/VOID TRANSACTIONS 0
TAX DEPOSITS DUE

S — ol

TAX AGENCY TAXPAY NON-TAXPAY DUE DATE W

FEDERAL 22516.95 11/20/2019 Depasit made by PAYCHEX INC. on your behalf.
STATE-CA 4824 .50 11/20/2019 Deposit made by PAYCHEX INC. on your behalf.

NEXT PERIOD DATES

CHECK DATE : 11/15/2019 WEEK 46 TRANSMIT DATE :

PERIOD BEGIN : 11/01/2019
PERIOD END : 11/15/2018

11/16/2018



NOV 21, 2019

SANITARY DISTRICT NO 5 - 0400-21168 CHECK DATE : 11/27/2019 WEEK 48
PO BOX 227 PERIOD BEGIN : 11/16/2019
BELVEDERE TIBURON, CA 94920 PERIOD END : 11/30/2019

Dear Paychex Preview Client,

Enclosed are your payroll reports and checks. Please verify that all information Is accurate and correct.
If there are any questions or concerns, please contact us immediately.

If you have tax deposits due, ensure the deposits are inltiated at least one banking day prior to the due date
to avoid penalties. We will assume that these deposits were made on the due dates and they will be reflected

on your returns accordingly.

This is a summary of your payroll transactions of the check date of 11/27/2019. It does not reflect miscellaneous
administrative charges. Please refer to your Paychex Human Resource Services invoice(s) for any additional cash
required for this check date.

PAYROLL TOTALS

DIRECT DEPOSIT DEBITED FROM YOUR ACCOUNT 33391.64

READYCHEX DEBITED FROM YOUR ACCOUNT 0.00 NUMBER OF PAYROLL CHECKS 15
TOTAL NET PAYROLL 33391.64

BILLING PAYMENT 235.40 7 Withdrawal mads by PAYCHEX INC. on above check date.
AMOUNT DEBITED FROM TAX ACCOUNT 14551.41

TOTAL TAX LIABILITY DUE BY CLIENT 0.00

TOTAL TAX LIABILITY 14551.41 7 NUMBER OF CHECKS PRINTED 15
TOTAL NET PAYROLL, TAX LIABILITY,

AND SERVICES 47943 .05

TOTAL COST OF PAYROLL 48178 .4@ NUMBER OF MANUAL/VOID TRANSACTIONS 0
TAX DEPOSITS DUE ‘

TAX AGENCY TAXPAY NON-TAXPAY DUE DATE /(V\./

FEDERAL 12023.52 12/04/2019 Deposit made by PAYCHEX INC. on your behalf.

STATE - CA 2527.89 12/04/2019 Deposit made by PAYCHEX INC. on your behalf.

NEXT PERIOD DATES

CHECK DATE : 11/29/2019 WEEK 48 TRANSMIT DATE : 11/26/2019
PERIOD BEGIN : 11/16/2019

PERIOD END : 11/30/2019



CASH FLOW CHART

SANITARY DISTRICT NO. 5 OF MARIN COUNTY: November, 2019

LAIF Beginning Balance:
$12,432,276.88

CHASE Transfer
Beginning Balance:
$153,147.08

CHASE Payroll
Beginning Balance:
$3,585.99

CHASE Primary
Beginning Balance:
$10,376.74

i
i
#1: LAIF
Incomé: $0.00
W/D: ($1,000,000.00)

'
i
#2: CHASE Transfer
Income: $1,017,250.70
W/D: ($1,000,000.00)
]

1
1
#3: CHASE Payroll
Income: $150,000.00
W/D: {$136,768.50)

il

#5: CHASE PRIMARY
Income: $886,248.30
W/D EFTS: {$30,576.99)
W/D Checks: {$597,509.93)

*Uncleared Checks: $9,353.10

MPR BOND
(Purchase Price)

LAIF Ending Balance:
$11,432,276.88

CHASE Transfer
Ending Balance:
$170,397.78

CHASE Payroll
Ending Balance:
$16,817.49

CHASE PRIMARY
Ending Balance*:
$268,538.12




CASH FLOW CHART

SANITARY DISTRICT NO. 5 OF MARIN COUNTY: October, 2019

LAIF Beginning Balance:
$12,973,333.61

CHASE Transfer
Beginning Balance:
$158,521.26

CHASE Payroll
Beginning Balance:
$4,420.67

CHASE Primary
Beginning Balance:
$112,330.06

lance

2ginning k

$13,248,605.63

]

#1: i,AlF
Income: $86,943.27
W/D; ($628,000.00)

i
:
#2: CHASE. Transfer
Income: $628,125.82
W/D: ($633,500.00)
]

#3: CHASE Payroll
Income: $114,000.00
W/Ds ($114,834.68)

#5: CHASE PRIMARY
Income: $535,366.62
W/D EFTS: ($30,546.65)
W/D Checks: ($606,773.29)

“Uncleared Checks: $8,594.84

MPR BOND
(Purchase Price)
Balance:

LAIF Ending Balance:
$12,432,276.88

CHASE Transfer
Ending Balance:
$153,147.08

CHASE Payroll
Ending Balance:
$3,585.99

CHASE PRIMARY
Ending Balance*:
$10,376.74




12:24 PM
12/10/19

As of November 30, 2019

Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.
Balance Sheet

Item #3

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Local Agency Investment Fund
Belvedere
Belvedere Operating
Belvedere Operating Reserve
Belvedere Capltal & CIP Reserve
Belvedere PERS Retirement Trust
Belvedere Disaster Recovery Fnd

Total Belvedere

Tiburon
Tiburon Operating
Tiburon Operating Reserve
Tiburon Capital & CIP Reserve
Tiburon PERS Retirement Trust
Tiburon Disaster Recovery Fund

Total Tiburon
Total Local Agency Investment Fund

JP Morgan Chase - Primary 7399
JP Morgan Chase - Payroll 7506
JP Morgan Chase - Transfer 7522

Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
Petty Cash

Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
Compensated Absences Current
Retainage Payable
MPR Rev Bond Interest Payable

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
2081 - OPEB Related Liability
Pension-related Liabilities

MPR Revenue Bonds Payable
MPR Rev Bond Premiums Payable

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

3000 - Closing Entries

3900 - Net Assets
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Nov 30, 19 Oct 31,19 $ Change
3,136,656.39 3,243,751.17 -107,094.78
400,923.05 400,923.05 0.00
1,740,566.98 2,052,248.74 -311,681.76
254,615.00 254,615.00 0.00
356,250.00 356,250.00 0.00
5,889,011.42 6,307,787.96 -418,776.54
1,008,889.00 1,471,764.24 -462,775.24
548,730.00 548,730.00 0.00
2,881,706.46 3,000,154.68 -118,448.22
460,090.00 460,090.00 0.00
643,750.00 643,750.00 0.00
5.543.265.46_ 6,124,488.92 -581,223.46
11,432,276.88 12,432,276.88 -1,000,000.00
259,598.47 8,594.84 251,003.63
14,243.31 3,585.99 10,657.32
170,397.78 153,147.08 17,260.70
11,876,516.44 12,697,604.79 -721,088.35
16,786.35 16,786.35 0.00
16,786.35 16,786.35 0.00
881.92 881.92 0.00
881.92 881.92 0.00
11,894,184.71 12,615,273.08 -721,088.35
19,150,305.31 19,150,305.31 0.00
31,044,490.02 31,765,678.37 -721,088.35
135,674.95 135,674.95 0.00
122,848.36 60,031.56 62,816.80
-83,837.50 -83,837.50 0.00
174,685.81 111,869.01 62,816.80
174,685.81 111,869.01 62,816.80
853,649.00 853,649.00 0.00
-475,963.00 -475,963.00 0.00
7,205,000.00 7,205,000.00 0.00
808,840.68 808,840.68 0.00
8,391,526.68 8,391,526.68 0.00
8,566,212.49 8,503,395.69 62,816.80
637,675.00 637,675.00 0.00
24,974,038.73 24,974,038.73 0.00
-3,133,436.20 -2,349,531.05 -783,905.15
22,478,277.53 23,262,182.68 -783,905.15
31,044,490.02 31,765,578.37 -721,088.35
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12:37 PM
1211019

Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.
Annual Budget vs Actual Expenses

July through November 2019

Ordinary iIncome/Expense
Income

5000 - Property Taxes
5001.2 - TEETER
5002 - UNSEC
5003 - PUNS / PRIOR UNSECURED
5004 - REDEMPTION / RDMPT
5006 - SPLU
5041 - SUPSEC
5043 - SECU
5046 - Excess ERAF
5280 - HOPTR
5483 - Other tax

Total 5000 - Property Taxes

5007 - Sewer Service Charge
5007.1 - Sewer Service - Tiburon Ops
5007.5 - Sewer Service - Tiburon Cap
5007.2 - Sewer Service-Belv Ops
5007.3 - Sewer Service-Belv Cap
5007.4 - Other User Fees

Total 5007 - Sewer Service Charge

5201 - Interest
5201.2 - Interest LAIF

Total 5201 - Interest

5900.3 - Connection Fees
5900.30 - Connection Permit Fees
5900.31 - Collection
5900.34 - Treatment

Total 5900.3 - Connection Fees

5900.4 - Inspection Permit Fees

5900.5 - SASM Expense Reimb.

5§900.9 - Other Income

5900.10 - Paradise Sewer Line Ext. Fees

Total Income

Expense

€000 - Administrative Expenses
6001 - Advertising
6002 - Outreach & Newsletter
6008 - Audit & Accounting
6017 - Consulting Fees
6018 - Travel & Meetings
6018.1 - Meetings & Travel

6018.2 - Standby Mileage Expense Reimb

Total 6018 - Travel & Meetings

6020 - Continuing Education

6021 - County Fees

6024 - Director Fees

6025 - Dues & Subscriptions

6033 - Insurance Property & Liabllity

6033.1 - PLP Public Entity Phys Damage

6033.2 - General Liability

6033.3 - Physical Property Damage - Auto
Total 6033 - Insurance Property & Liability

Jul - Nov 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Bud...
0.00 700,000.00 -700,000.00 0.0%
14,583.66 13,000.00 1,683.66 112.2%
579.25 0.00 579.25 100.0%
359.17 500.00 -140.83 71.8%
0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%
1,600.16 15,000.00 -13,399.84 10.7%
25428 0.00 25428 100.0%
0.00 250,000.00 -250,000.00 0.0%

0.00 3,333.00 -3,333.00 0.0%

0.00 0.00 000  0.0%
17,376.52 981,933.00 -964,556.48 1.8%
42,021.76  2,454,797.00 -2,412,775.24 1.7%
0.00 230,977.00 -230,977.00 0.0%

0.00 1,396,621.00 -1,396,621.00 0.0%

0.00 923,348.00 -923,348.00 0.0%

0.00 24,826.00 -24,826.00 0.0%
42,021.76  5,030,569.00 -4,988,547.24 0.8%
86,943.27 25,000.00 61,943.27 347.8%
86,943.27 25,000.00 6194327 347.8%
5,850.00 10,000.00 -4,150.00 58.5%
111,812.00 100,000.00 11,812.00 111.8%
110,160.00 100,000.00 10,160.00 110.2%
227,822.00  210,000.00 17,822.00  108.5%
7,950.00 10,000.00 -2,050.00 79.5%
16,786.35 65,000.00 -48,213.65 25.8%
0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%

0.00 13,365.00 -13,365.00 0.0%
308,889.90 6,335,967.00 -5,937,067.10 6.3%
0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
156,000.00 33,700.00 -18,700.00 44.5%
40,453.72 100,000.00 -59,546.28 40.5%
2,916.57 8,000.00 -5,083.43 36.5%
2,679.70 7,000.00 -4,320.30 38.3%
5,596.27 15,000.00 -9,403.73 37.3%
1,252.28 10,000.00 -8,747.72 12.5%
4,842.24 16,500.00 -11,657.76 29.3%
0.00 9,000.00 -9,000.00 0.0%
7,237.97 25,000.00 -17,762.03 28.0%
16,214.00 17,377.00 -1,163.00 93.3%
18,646.50 42,840.00 -24,193.50 43.5%
1,227.00 1,435.00 -208.00 85.5%
36,087.50 61,652.00 -25,564.50 58.5%
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12:37 PM
12110119

Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.
Annual Budget vs Actual Expenses

July through November 2019

6039 - Legal

6047 - Office Supplies

6056 - Postage

6059 - Pollution Prevention/Public Edu
6065 - Miscellaneous Expense

Total 6000 - Administrative Expenses
7000 - Ops & Maintenance Expenses

7010 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance
7011 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance
7013 - Emergency Line Repair

Total 7010 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance

7020 - Main Plant Maintenance
7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies
7022 - Plant Maint. Parts & Service
7023 - Janitorial Supplies & Service
7024 - Maln Plant Chemicals
7025 - Lab Supplies & Chemicals
7027 - Electrical & Instrument
7028 - Grounds Maintenance
7029 - Main Plant Sludge Disposal

Totai 7020 - Main Plant Maintenance

7040 - Paradise Cove Plant Maint
7041 - Paradise Parts & Service
7042 - Paradise Supplies & Chemicals
7043 - Paradise Sludge Disposal

Total 7040 - Paradise Cove Plant Maint

7050 - Monitoring
7051 - Main Piant Lab Monitoring
7052 - Paradise Cove Monitoring

Total 7050 - Monitoring

7060 - Permits/Fees
7061 - Main Plant NPDES Renewal
7062 - Permits/Fees - General
7063 - Paradise Cove Permits/Fees

Total 7060 - Permits/Fees

7070 - Truck Maintenance
7071 - Fuel
7072 - Truck Maintenance

Total 7070 - Truck Maintenance

Total 7000 - Ops & Maintenance Expenses
8000 - Salaries and Benefits Expenses

8001 - Salaries

8003 - Overtime

8004 - Standby Pay

8005 - Employee Incentives

8006 - Vacation Buyout

8013 - Payroll Taxes

8015 - Payroll/Bank Fees

8016 - Car Allowance

8019 - PERS Retirement
8019.05 - PERS Retirement

8019.08 - PERS Retirement - CalPERS UAL

8019.10 - PERS Retirement Trust
8019 - PERS Retirement - Other

Total 8019 - PERS Retirement

Jul - Nov 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Bud...
3,672.00 70,000.00 -66,328.00 5.2%
1,764.55 7,000.00 -5,235.45 25.2%

258.05 1,000.00 -741.95 25.8%
1,717.99 4,000.00 -2,282.01 42.9%

31.34
117,913.91 354,852.00 -236,938.09 33.2%
51,774.55 200,000.00 -148,225.45 25.9%
0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%
51,774.55 250,000.00 -198,225.45 20.7%
6,485.20 10,000.00 -3,514.80 64.9%
45,401.39 50,000.00 -4,598.61 90.8%
2,050.76 6,000.00 -3,949.24 34.2%
26,379.37 105,000.00 -78,620.63 25.1%
19,191.21 15,000.00 4,191.21  127.9%
3,286.79 5,000.00 -1,713.21 65.7%
6,493.40 8,000.00 -1,506.60 81.2%
9,435.04 30,000.00 -20,564.96  31.5%
118,723.16 229,000.00 -110,276.84 51.8%
1,061.43 10,000.00 -8,938.57 10.6%
2,742.86 5,000.00 -2,257.14 54.9%
1,183.61 8,000.00 -6,816.39 14.8%
4,987.90 23,000.00 -18,012.10 21.7%
12,254.00 45,000.00 -32,746.00 27.2%
4,054.55 15,000.00 -10,945.45 27.0%
16,308.55 60,000.00 -43,691.45 27.2%

7,029.00
37,403.04 40,000.00 -2,596.96 93.5%
5,901.53 8,000.00 -2,098.47 73.8%
50,333.57 48,000.00 2,333.57 104.9%
9,516.64 8,000.00 1,5616.64 119.0%
617.96 5,000.00 -4,382.04 12.4%
10,134.60 13,000.00 -2,865.40 78.0%
252,262.33 623,000.00 -370,737.67 40.5%
412,434.78  1,153,504.00 -741,069.22 35.8%
62,421.49 100,000.00 -37,578.51 62.4%
30,959.43 69,428.00 -38,468.57 44.6%
5,000.00 40,000.00 -35,000.00 12.5%
17,706.03 25,000.00 -7,293.97 70.8%
35,757.79 94,891.00 -59,133.21 37.7%
2,387.16 5,500.00 -3,112.84 43.4%
6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 100.0%
46,624.05 147,885.00 -101,260.95 31.5%
132,419.00 20,000.00 112,419.00 662.1%
0.00 286,555.00 -286,555.00 0.0%

0.00
179,043.05 454,440.00 -275,396.95 39.4%
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12:37 PM Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

12110119 Annual Budget vs Actual Expenses
July through November 2019

Jul - Nov 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Bud...
8020 - Employee Health
8020.05 - Employee Health 77,220.22 217,176.00 -139,955.78 35.6%
8021 - Employee Health Deductions -1,252.00
Total 8020 - Employee Health 75,968.22 217,176.00 -141,207.78 35.0%
8022 - Retiree Health
8022.05 - Reitree Health 69,777.71 79,551.00 -9,773.29 87.7%
8022.10 - CERBT/OPEB Annual Arc Contribtn 0.00 70,200.00 -70,200.00 0.0%
Total 8022 - Retiree Health 69,777.71 149,751.00 -79,973.29 46.6%
8023 - Workers Comp Insurance 33,476.00 29,365.00 4,111.00 114.0%
Total 8000 - Salaries and Benefits Expenses 930,931.66 2,345,055.00 -1,414,123.34 39.7%
8500 - Other Operating Expenses
8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing 15,583.43 80,000.00 -64,416.57 19.5%
8515 - Safety 4,685.34 20,000.00 -15,314.66 23.4%
8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear 3,420.91 15,000.00 -11,579.09 22.8%
8530 - Telephone
8531 - Main Plant Telephones 3,085.34 11,000.00 -7,914.66 28.0%
8532 - Paradise Cove Telephones 1,234.58 4,000.00 -2,765.42 30.9%
8533 - Pumps & Lines Telephones 1,915.20 7,000.00 -5,084.80 27.4%
Total 8530 - Telephone 6,235.12 22,000.00 -15,764.88 28.3%
8540 - Utilities
8541 - Water 2,113.47 4,000.00 -1,886.53 52.8%
8542 - Main Plant Utilities 68,907.32 180,000.00 -111,092.68 38.3%
8543 - Paradise Cove Utilities 4,980.64 13,500.00 -8,519.36 36.9%
8544 - Pump Station Utilities 10,677.71 35,000.00 -24,322.29 30.5%
Total 8540 - Utilities 86,679.14 232,500.00 -145,820.86 37.3%
Total 8500 - Other Operating Expenses 116,603.94 369,500.00 -252,896.06 31.6%
Total Expense 1,417,711.84  3,692,407.00 -2,274,695.16 38.4%
Net Ordinary Income -1,018,811.94  2,643,560.00 -3,662,371.94 -38.5%
Other income/Expense
Other Expense
9100 - Capital Expenditures
9200 - Main Plant Equipment Capital
9204 - M.P. Boiler Replacement 2,187.42
9212 - Headworks Grinder Replacement 19,588.07 15,000.00 4,588.07_ 130.6%
Total 9200 - Main Plant Equipment Capital 21,775.49 15,000.00 6,775.49 145.2%
9300 - Pumps & Lines Capital
9301 - Tiburon Sewer Line Rehab Prog 159,342.73 600,000.00 -440,657.27 26.6%
9302 - PS Control Panel Upgrades 19,452.53 40,000.00 -20,547.47 48.6%
9304 - Belvedere Sewer Line Rehab Prog 1,156,829.08 600,000.00 556,829.08 192.8%
9306 - PS Pump & Valve Replacements 52,247.95 50,000.00 2,247.95 104.5%
9307 - PS Generator Replacement 16,123.19 20,000.00 -3,876.81 80.6%
9310 - BPS Communication Project 4,034.03
9314 - Portable Emergency Generators 997.14
9315 - TPS Communication Project 1,239.97
Total 9300 - Pumps & Lines Capital 1.410,266.62 1,310,000.00 100,266.62 107.7%
9500 - Undesignated Capital
9510 - Undesignated Cap - M.P. 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%
9520 - Undesignated Cap - P.C. Plant 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
9540 - Undesignated Cap - Tiburon -8,902.30 25,000.00 -33,902.30 -35.6%
9550 - Undesignated Cap - Belvedere -23,577.67 25,000.00 -48,577.67 -94.3%
Total 9500 - Undesignated Capital -32,479.97 85,000.00 -117,479.97  -38.2%
Total 9100 - Capital Expenditures 1,399,562.14  1,410,000.00 -10,437.86 99.3%
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12:37 PM Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

121019 Annual Budget vs Actual Expenses
July through November 2019

Jul - Nov 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Bud...
9700 - Debt Service

9730 - Debt Service - MPR Project
9731 - Debt Service MPR Bond Principal 470,000.00 470,000.00 0.00 100.0%
9732 - Debt Service MPR Bond Interest 167,675.00 330,650.00 -162,975.00 50.7%
Total 9730 - Debt Service - MPR Project 637,675.00 800,650.00 -162,975.00 79.6%
Total 9700 - Debt Service 637,675.00 800,650.00 -162,975.00 79.6%
Total Other Expense 2,037,237.14  2,210,650.00 -173,412.86 92.2%
Net Other Income -2,037,237.14 -2,210,650.00 173,412.86 92.2%
Net Income -3,056,049.08 432,910.00 -3,488,959.08 -705.9%
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

12110119 Zone Report
November 2019
Paradise C... Tiburon - Oth...
(Tiburon) {Tiburon) Total Tiburon Belvedere TOTAL
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
5000 - Property Taxes
5001.2 - TEETER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5002 - UNSEC 551.26 14,032.40 14,583.66 0.00 14,583.66
5003 - PUNS / PRIOR UNSECURED 21.90 557.35 579.25 0.00 579.256
5004 - REDEMPTION / RDMPT 8.82 22453 233.35 0.00 233.35
5041 - SUPSEC 60.49 1,5639.67 1,600.16 0.00 1,600.16
5043 - SECU 9.61 244 67 254.28 0.00 254.28
Total 5000 : Property Taxes 652.08 16,598.62 17,250.70 0.00 17.250.70
5900.3 - Connection Fees
5900.30 - Connection Permit Fees 0.00 300.00 300.00 200.00 500.00
5900.31 - Collection 0.00 12,771.00 12,771.00 2,229.00 15,000.00
5900.34 - Treatment L 0.00 17,655.00 17,655.00 1,605.00 19,260.00
Total 5900.3 - Connection Fees 0.00 30,726.00 30,726.00 4,034.00 34,760.00
5900.4 - inspection Permit Fees 200.00 600.00 800.00 500.00 1,300.00
Total Income 852.08 47,924.62 48,776.70 4,534.00 53,310.70
Expepse
6000 - Adminlstrative Expenses
6001 - Advertising -1.82 -46.21 -48.03 -26.97 -75.00
6008 - Audit & Accounting 121.00 3,081.00 3,202.00 1,798.00 5,000.00
6018 - Travel & Meetings
6018.1 - Meetings & Travel 25.24 642.06 667.30 374.70 1,042.00
6018.2 - Standby Mileage Expense Reimb 8.95 776.64 785.59 289.63 1,075.22
Total 6018 - Travel & Mestings 34.19 1,418.70 1,452.89 664.33 2,117.22
6020 - Continuing Education 3.91 99.53 103.44 58.09 161.53
6025 - Dues & Subscriptions 14.75 375.68 390.43 219.21 609.64
6039 - Legal 3.48 939.24 942.72 51.78 994.50
6047 - Office Supplies 6.05 153.94 159.99 89.84 249.83
6059 - Pollution Prevention/Public Edu 18.93 481.93 500.86 281.24 782.10
Total 6000 - Administrative Expenses 200.49 6,503.81 6,704.30 3,135.52 9,839.82
7000 - Ops & Maintenance Expenses
7010 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance
7011 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance 1,073.73 18,490.50 19,564.23 10,708.60 30,272.83
Total 7010 - Pumps & Lines Maintenance 1,073.73 18,490.50 19,564.23 10,708.60 30,272.83
7020 - Main Piant Maintenance
7021 - Plant Maintenance Supplies 0.00 3,277.65 3,277.65 1,912.59 5,190.24
7022 - Plant Maint. Parts & Service 0.00 1,977.15 1,977.15 1,908.23 3,885.38
7023 - Janitorial Supplies & Service 0.00 241.14 241.14 140.71 381.85
7024 - Main Plant Chemicals 0.00 6,145.67 6,145.67 3,586.40 9,732.07
7025 - Lab Supplies & Chemicals 0.00 5,457.24 5,457.24 2,429.98 7,887.22
7027 - Electrical & Instrument 0.00 -77.34 -77.34 451.87 374.53
7029 - Main Plant Sludge Disposal 1,225.00 846.98 2,071.98 494 28 2,566.26
Total 7020 - Main Plant Maintenance 1,225.00 17,868.49 19,093.49 10,924.06 30,017.55
7040 - Paradise Cove Plant Maint
7041 - Paradise Parts & Service 995.42 0.00 99542 0.00 995.42
7042 - Paradise Supplies & Chemicals 187.58 0.00 187.58 0.00 187.58
7043 - Paradise Sludge Disposal 33.26 0.00 33.26 0.00 33.26
Total 7040 - Paradise Cove Plant Maint 1,216.26 0.00 1,216.26 0.00 1,216.26
7050 - Monitoring
7051 - Main Plant Lab Monitoring 0.00 1,848.47 1,848.47 1,078.63 2,927.10
7052 - Paradise Cove Monitoring 725.65 0.00 725.65 0.00 725.65
Total 7050 - Monitoring 725.65 1,848.47 2,574.12 1,078.63 3,662.75
7060 - Permits/Fees
7061 - Main Plant NPDES Renewal 0.00 4,438.81 4,438.81 2,590.19 7,029.00
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

1211019 Zone Report
November 2019
Paradise C... Tiburon - Oth...
(Tiburon) (Tiburon) Total Tiburon Belvedere TOTAL
7062 - Permits/Fees - General 0.00 11,923.05 11,923.05 6,957.60 18,880.65
7063 - Paradise Cove Permits/Fees 5,670.25 0.00 5,670.25 0.00 5,670.25
Total 7060 - Permits/Fees 5,670.25 16,361.86 22,032.11 9,5647.79 31,579.90
7070 - Truck Maintenance
7071 - Fue! 47.31 5,845.65 5,892.96 702.99 6,595.95
Total 7070 - Truck Maintenance 47.31 5,845.65 5,892.96 702.99 6,595.95
Total 7000 - Ops & Maintenance Expenses 9,958.20 60,414.97 70,373.17 32,962.07 103,335.24
8000 - Salaries and Benefits Expenses
8001 - Salarles 1,217.57 71,003.75 72,221.32 18,092.53 90,313.85
8003 - Overtime 571.57 14,553.76 15,125.33 8,493.24 23,618.57
8004 - Standby Pay 184.28 4,692.20 4,876.48 2,738.26 7,614.74
8006 - Vacation Buyout 275.66 7,019.12 7,294.78 4,096.19 11,390.97
8007 - Voluntary Deductions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8008 - Deferred Comp 457 0.00 2,574.18 2,574.18 0.00 2,574.18
8012 - Wage Garnishments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8013 - Payroll Taxes 187.17 4,765.83 4,953.00 2,781.23 7,734.23
8015 - Payroll/Bank Fees 12.22 311.18 323.40 181.60 505.00
8019 - PERS Retlrement
8019.05 - PERS Retirement 298.11 7,591.02 7,889.13 4,429.95 12,319.08
Total 8019 - PERS Retirement 298.11 7,591.02 7,889.13 4,429.95 12,319.08
8020 - Employee Health
8020.05 - Employee Health 378.46 9,636.85 10,015.31 5,623.84 15,639.15
8021 - Employee Health Deductions 606  -154.30 -160.36 -90.04 -250.40
Total 8020 - Employee Health 372.40 9,482.55 9,854.95 5,533.80 15,388.75
8022 - Retires Health
8022.05 - Reitree Health 839.34 21,371.79 22,211.13 12,472.08 34,683.21
Total 8022 - Retiree Health 839.34 21,371.79 22,211.13 12,472.08 34,683.21
Total 8000 - Salaries and Benefits Expenses 3,958.32 143,365.38 147,323.70 58,818.88 206,142.58
8500 - Other Operating Expenses
8510 - Data/Alarms/IT Supp & Licensing 194.69 4,957.29 5,151.98 2,892.97 8,044.95
8515 - Safety 48.66 1,357.29 1,405.95 792.07 2,198.02
8520 - Personal Protection/Safety Wear 8.13 207.28 215.41 120.97 336.38
8530 - Telephone
8531 - Main Plant Telephones 0.00 452.64 452.64 264.16 716.80
8532 - Paradise Cove Telephones 309.75 0.00 309.75 0.00 309.75
8533 - Pumps & Lines Telephones 173.48 305.32 478.80 0.00 478.80
Total 8530 - Telophone 483.23 757.96 1,241.19 264.16 1,505.35
8540 - Utilitles
8541 - Water 0.00 844.22 844.22 533.90 1,378.12
8542 - Main Plant Utilities 0.00 11,721.91 11,721.91 6,840.10 18,562.01
8543 - Paradise Cove Utllities 1,389.93 0.00 1,389.93 0.00 1,389.93
8544 - Pump Station Utilities 217.21 1,604.87 1,822.08 1,020.69 2,842.77
Total 8540 - Utilities 1,607.14 14,171.00 15,778.14 8,394.69 24,172.83
Total 8500 - Other Operating Expenses 2,341.85 21,450.82 23,792.67 12,464.86 36,257.53
Total Expense 16458.86  231,734.98 248,193.84 107,381.33 355,675.17
Net Ordinary Income -15,606.78 -183,810.36 -199,417.14 -102,847.33 -302,264.47
Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
9100 - Capital Expenditures
9200 - Main Plant Equipment Capital
9204 - M.P. Boiler Replacement 0.00 870.23 870.23 507.80 1,378.03
9214 - Underground Pipe & Valve Rplcmt 0.00 5,645.92 5,645.92 3,294.57 8,940.49
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Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

12110119 Zone Report
November 2019
Paradise C... Tiburon - Oth...
{Tiburon) (Tiburon) Total Tiburon Belvedere TOTAL
Total 9200 - Main Plant Equipment Capital 0.00 6,516.15 6,516.15 3,802.37 10,318.52
9300 - Pumps & Lines Capital

9301 - Tiburon Sewer Line Rehab Prog 0.00 159,466.05 159,466.05 0.00 159,466.05
9304 - Belvedere Sewer Line Rehab Prog 0.00 0.00 0.00 311,630.11 311,630.11
9310 - BPS Communication Project 0.00 0.00 0.00 83.28 83.28
9315 - TPS Communication Project 0.00 142.72 142.72 0.00 142.72
Total 9300 - Pumps & Lines Capital 0.00 159,608.77 159,608.77 311,713.39 471,322.16
Total 9100 - Capital Expenditures 0.00 166,124.92 166,124.92 315,515.76 481,640.68
Total Other Expense 0.00 166,124.92 166,124.92 315,515.76 481,640.68
Net Other Income 0.00 -166,124.92 -166,124.92 -315,515.76 -481,640.68
Net Income -15,606.78 -349,935.28 -365,542.06 -418,363.09 -783,905.15
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12:38 PM Sanitary Distr. No.5 of Marin Co.

12110/19 Monthly O.T. Report

Accrual Basis November 2019

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount Balance

Bilsborough, Chad

Check 11/15/19 3191-3360 Bilsborough, Chad 21.0Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x - PG&E PSPS 1,085.81 1,085.81

Check 11/15/19 3191-3360 Bilsborough, Chad 16.5Hrs. O.T. @ 2.0x - PG&E PSPS 1,137.51 2,223.32
Total Bilsborough, Chad 2,223.32 2,223.32
Cottrell, Rulon

Check 11/15/19 3191-3362 Cottrell, Rulon 26.0 Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x - PG&E PSPS 1,986.19 1,986.19

Check 11/15/19 3191-3362 Cottrell, Rulon 7.0 Hrs. O.T. @ 2.0x - PG&E PSPS 712.99 2,699.18
Total Cottrell, Rulon 2,699.18 2,699.18
Dohrmann, Robin

Check 11/15/19 3191-3363 Dohrmann, Robin 425Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x 340.90 340.90

Check 11/27119 3311-3382 Dohrmann, Robin 18.5 Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x 1,483.91 1,824.81
Total Dohrmann, Robin 1,824.81 1,824.81
Driscoll, Stephen

Check 11/15/19 3191-3365 Driscoll, Stephen 27.5.0 Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x 2,295.05 2,295.05

Check 11/27/19 3311-3384 Driscoll, Stephen 9.0Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x 758.00 3,053.05
Total Driscoll, Stephen 3,053.05 3,053.05
La Torre, Daniel P.

Check 11/15/19 3191-3367 La Torre, Daniel P.  21.0 Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x - PG&E PSPS 1,604.23 1,604.23

Check 11/15/19 3191-3367 La Torre, Daniel P. 15.0 Hrs. O.T. @ 2.0x - PG&E PSPS 1,627.84 3,132.07

Check 111519  3191-3367 La Torre, Daniel P.  80.0 Comp Buyout 4,074.23 7,206.30
Total La Torre, Daniel P, 7.206.30 7,206.30
Rosser, John

Check 11/15/19 3191-3370 Rosser, John 16.0Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x 1,164.06 1,164.06

Check 11/15/19 3191-3370 Rosser, John 19.0 Hrs. O.T. @ 2.0x 1,843.10 3,007.16
Total Rosser, John 3,007.16 3,007.16
Swett, Drake

Check 11/15/19 3191-3373 Swett, Drake 27.0 Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x - PG&E PSPS 1,329.55 1,329.55

Check 11/15/19 3191-3373 Swett, Drake 5.5 Hrs. O.T. @ 2.0x - PG&E PSPS 361.11 1,690.66

Check 11/15/19 3191-3373 Swett, Drake 7.5 Hrs. Comp Buy-back 246.21 1,936.87
Total Swett, Drake 1,936.87 1,936.87
Triola, Joseph

Check 11/15/18 3191-3375 Triola, Joseph 16.5 Hrs. O.T. @ 1.5x - PG&E PSPS 1,260.47 1,260.47

Check 11/15/18 3191-3375 Triola, Joseph 4.0 Hrs. O.T. @ 2.0x - PG&E PSPS 407.42 1,667.89
Total Triola, Joseph 1,667.89 1,667.89

TOTAL 23,618.58 23,618.58
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Item #4

Project: 2019 Sewer Rehab Tiburon / Belvedere Change Order No. 04

Date: November 20, 2019
Owner: Sanitary District No. 5 Phone: (415) 435-1501
Contractor: Glosage Engineering Phone:  (510) 8154505

The following change is hereby made to the contract:

Description of Change:
Line K - Excavation on Pagoda Line Stairs to remove existing bends on sewer main.

Reason for Change:

Existing sewer had bends which were corrected. Some of these bends were underneath a
concrete stairway.

Pricing Data: $ 015.86 (see Day Tag #3)
$4,310.80 (see Day Tag #4)
$2,155.40 (see Day Tag #5)
$7,382.06

Requested by: District

Contract Time: No Change

The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree that this change order constitutes full and mutual
accord and satisfaction for all time, all costs, and all impacts related to this revision. In
accepting this change order, the Contractor agrees that it represents a full and equitable
adjustment to the Contract, and further agrees'to waive all rights to file claim with respect to

any difficulties arising from, or as a result of, this change.
Original Contract; $1,044,790.00 APPRO liD/
Previous Additions: $330,987.00 ., -
En, T
Previous Deductions: $.00
/Owner
This Change Order: $7.382.06 . Ao
Coxfractor ¢
Contract to Date: $1,383,159.06

8815 CO#04.doc



GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.
DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

PROJECT NO DATE WDRK DONE 9/13/2019
PROJECT TITLE 2019 Sewer Rehabiitation Project REFERENCE NO, REPGRT NO,
Work performed by (Company) _Glosage Enginesring Inc
Desctiption of wark Starged EmavuﬂonnllneKon@uﬂuhhumnweeﬂnﬂnxhehdsmmmam
Iy ASOUIPMENST ___Tow Hourly Rats | Bxtended Amowss " CAABDR (Net each warker] Sours | Hourly Rate |Union French | Extended Amoums
1 £250 Wity Boxes i $  240(s sss|| ” 2 |s sasols asa0ls © sz
2 |Ford F350 Crew Truck B $ s8] 49.95 Jose G Guxman or
3 _|Miscellsnesus Smwll Toals $ 1848 | $ 2 [$§ 355]s 3ta0]s 137.50
4 . 5 - Guadalupe Guzman or
5 $ - ; 2 |8 3344fs 2sa0)s 117.c8
6 $ - Juan M Gigman or
7 $ - -] 2 |8 2208|s 251035 94.36
8 $ - Zenaida Gonzalez ot
9 ' Reg. $ .
10 or
11 R
12 . or
A-COST OF EQUIPMENT $ 136.84 Reg.
or
B-MATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SPECIALISTS R
Dascription No.wnit | Usitcest  |estemded Amownts or
LABOR SUBTOTAL $ 506.14
11% LABOR SURCHARGE $ 55.68
SUBTOTAL s 561.82
35% MARKUP ON LABOR $ 196.54
TOTAL COST OF LABOR [ s 75845
TOTAL COST OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, WORK AaB |3 157.41
5 915.85
E 2 -
COST OF MATENALS & WORK-B s - e 'mﬂﬂ”"‘" 7/’ 3/’7
SUBTOTALA & B § 136.88 | Contractor's Representatics Date
15% MARKUP [equipment/materiai/wark] $ 2053
TOTAL COST A & & (incl. mrarkup) $ 15741 | inEpectnrigmton isfor Tina Tracking aoly. Thisd  thet the work is chenge arder work)




GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.

DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT
PROIECT NO DATE WORK DONE 9/16/2019
PROJECT TME 2019 Sewer Rehabliitation Project REFERENCE NO. REPONT NO. 4
Work perfnrmed Glosage Engineering Inc .
Duscription of werk Continue Bxcavation at line K on Pagoda Line Stairs to remave ekisting bends on sewer main
e danmoT 'T.:_I_E__‘g Hourly Rata | Getanded Amounts] o CAABON Bt anch worker Howrs | Hourly Rate | Union Franch ot Amcmets
1 F250 Utility Boxes g $  08|s 195.84 . Reg. | 8 |5 sasals 2510 628.80
2__[Ford ¥350 Crew Truck 2498 $ 199.84 Jose G Guzman oT
3 |Miscellaneous Smail Tools $  18as|$ U7.84 [ Rog | 2 |$ 3755($ a31a0]s $50.00
4 N $ - Guadalupe Guzman oT
5 $ - ' [ Reg. | 8 |$ 334a|5 2510 45832
[ $ - Juan M Guzman oT
7 S - 8 |3 2208l3 2510)¢ 37744
3 $ - Zenaldo Gonzalez o7
9 ' 8 |5 seao0 § 432.00
10 Luis Guzman oT
11 .
12 or
A-COSY OF EQUIPMENT $ 547.52 Reg,
ar
B-MATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SPEQIALISTS R
Descriptien No.unk | UsitCost | Estended Amouns| or
LABOR SUBTOTAL $ 245656
11% LABOR SURCHARGE $ 270.22
SUBTOYAL $ 2,726.78
5% MARKUP ON LABOR $ 954.37
TOTAL COST OF LABOR c S 3,681.16
mrumsrosmmsm,mms,m A&B -1 629,65
$ 4,310.80
COST OF MATERIALS & WONK-B $ - MWW 7/'{// 7
__SUNOTALA&S $ 54752 Contractor's Represantative Date
15% MARKUP § §2.13
TOTAL COST A & B (inel. savkup) $ 629,65 |  InspectoriSignaturs Is for Yima Tracking ondy. This & thet t changs crder work)




GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.

DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REP_ORT
PRDSECT NO . DATE WORK DONE 8/17/2019
PROJECT TWLE 2019 Sewer Rehabliitation Project REFERENCE NO. REPORT NO. 5
Work perfermed by (Company) Glosage Engineering Inc_
Deszription of work Continue Excavation at line K on Pagoda Line Stairs to vemove eulstlng bends on sewer main
g . T “outyRute [ Evmaded Amaums] CLABGR (list anch waster) Houts | Howdy Rata | Union Pranch | Extinded Amomre
1__{Chevy F250 Utibty Boxes , 4 $  2ag9|s 992 N 4 |$ s3so)s asao0)s 314,90
2 |Ford F350 Crew Truck s 4 $ a8 9992 Jose G Guzman _ or
3 _|Miscellaneous Small Tagls L 4 $  1sag|s 7392 Reg. | 4 ¢ 875508 3105 275.00
4 Pt - s - Guadslupe Guarman or
5 $ - ' [Rep. | 4 |5 3344)8 asa0fs 23416
[ $ - Juan M Guzman or
7 $ - 4 |5 208|$% 25403 188.72
B $ - Zensldo Gonzalex or
) ' 4 |5 s400 $ 216.00
10 Luls Guernan oT
11 Re
12 or
A-COST OF EQUIPMENT $ 273,796 Reg.
ar
B-MATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SPECIALISTS ™
Bomiption Noonit | UnitCest |mxtended Amcunts or
LABOR SUBYOTAL $ 12828
11% LADOR SURCHARGE $ 13511
SUBTOTAL $ 138330
35X MARKUP ON LABOR $ 477.19
TOTAL COST OF LAROR [ $ _ 1swss]
TOTAL COST OF EGUIPMENT, MATERIALS, WORK asg |s 314.82
$ _ 2,155.40
COST OF MATERIALS & WORK-E 3 - u.%:—— f//?/ /9
SUBTOTALA & B s 27375 | Contractor’s Rap Dats
15K MARKLP (equipment/material/work) $ 41.06
TOTAL COST A & B (incl. markup) $ 314.82 | InspactorsgaorettorTime y v 1 dered changs ordar work)




GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC,
DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

PROJECT NO DATE WORK DONE ___9/as/x019
PROJECT TIMLE 2019 Sewer Rehabliitation Project REFERENCE NO. REPORT NO, 6
Work { Gl inearing inc
Descxiption of work Mlﬁﬂmanmuumlmmmmmdﬂagmmmamtubrenltthestalrsatgﬂu»e
k=3 AFORIPMENT | HourlyMate |Extanded Amounts CLABOR (st sach wiovker) Houry Hourfy Rade |Union Franch| Bdended Amownte
1_|Chevy F250 Utility Boxes $  2apals 74.94 3_J$ s3s0|$ 2540 235.80
2 |Ford F350 Crew Truck 249318 74.94 lose G Gimman or
3 _[Miscellsneous Small Tools 1848 | 3 55.44 Reg. 3_|§ 37s5f$ - 3ra0|s$ 206.25
4 $ - Buadalupe Guzrman oT
5 $ - ' 3 |$ 334a{s 0 175.62
6 $ - Juan M Guzman or
7 $ - 3 |8 208)8 s 14154
[ $ - Zeoaldo Gonzalez or
9 Reg. $ -
10 or
11 R
12 oT
A-QOST OF EQGUIPMENT $ 205.32 Reg.
oT
B-MATERIALS AND/OR WK DONE BY SPECIALISTS
Desaiption No. mlt UniCoet | extondnd Amounts or
LABOR SUBTOTAL $ 75921
13% LABOR SURCHARGE 3 83,51
SUBTOTAL § 842,72
35% MARKUP ON LABOR 3 29495
TOTAL COST OF LABOR c 5 1,137.68
TOTAL COST OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, WORK ARR |3
T o R P 701l
SUBTOTALA & B $ 20532 | Contractor's Rapresentative Data
155% MARKUP {squipment/materisl/work) 3 30.80
TOTAL COST A & 5 {incl. markug) 5 235.12 | Inspectorsignutans i for Time Trackiog oniy. This & dhinza order work)




Project: 2019 Sewer Rehab Tiburon / Belvedere Change Order No. 05
Date: November 20,

Owner: Sanitary District No. 5 Phone:  (415) 435-150
Contractor: Glosage Engineering Phone:  (510) 8154505

The following change is hereby made to the contract:
Description of Change:

Line K Pagoda Line - Extended 160 Bayview sewer lateral to reconnect at a more accessible
point so as not to break the stairs at the Pagoda Line.

Reason for Change:

Lateral moved to prevent damage to existing concrete stairway.

Pricing Data: $1,373.79 (see Day Tag #6)

Requested by: District
Contract Time: No Change

The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree that this change order constitutes full and mutual
accord and satisfaction for all time, all costs, and all impacts related to this revision. In
accepting this change order, the Contractor agrees that it represents a full and equitable
adjustment to the Contract, and further agrees to waive all rights to file claim with respect to
any difficulties arising from, or as a result of, this change.

Original Contract: $1,044,790.00 APPROVYED:
Previous Additions: $338,369.06 Aé/
y \'R

ineer

Previous Deductions: $.00
Owner
This Change Order: $1.373.79 P %4.1
Conifactor Y
Contract to Date: $1,384,532.85

8815 CO#05.doc




GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC,
DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

PROJCT NO DATEWORKDONE 9/19/2019
PROECT TITLE 2013 Sewer Rehabllitation Project REFERENCE NO. REPORY NO, (]
Work Glosage E ring inc
of work Extended 160 lew Sewer Lateral to reconnected at a Int accessible not to break the stalrs at Pagoda Line
ABQUIPMENT m_l Houtly Rata | extended Amoumts| CLABOR (st anch worker) Hours | Hourly Bats |Unian Framch| Extanded Amoumts
1_ [Chevy F250 Utiity Baxes 2498 % 74.94 | Reg | 3 |$ s3as0is mao|s 23580
2 |Ford F350 Crew Truck $ 498(5 7494 Jose G Gurman or
3 __|Miscellaneous Small Teols 3 1848 | § 5544 3 |$ 37550$ 3| 206.25
4 H « Guadslupe Guzman or
5 $ - B Reg | 3 |8 3saals asaofs 175.62
[ $ - suan M Guxmen oT
7 $ - Reg. | 3 |$ 208|8 25104 141.54
8 F] - Zonaldo Gonzalez ar
9 $ .
10 or
1
12 ar
A-COST OF EQUIPMENT $ 20532 Reg.
or
B-MATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SPEQIALISTS
Desaription Mo.unit | UnitCost |ewtemded Amounts or
LABOR SUBTOYAL $ 759.21
11% LABOR SURCHARGE $ H3.51
SURTOTAL 5 842.72
5% MARKUP ON LABOR $ 284,95
TOTAL COST OF LABOR c $ 1,137.68
TOTAL COST OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, WORK A&B (3 236.12
$ 1,373.79
COST OF MATERIALS & WORKS s o é a )4?“"' ?’ M 19
SUBTOTALA & B $ 20532 | Contractor's Date
15% MARKUP (exulpment/material/work) $ 30.80
TOTAL COST A & B (Incl, markug) $ 23612 MSpactomsipesoreie for T Trecking oriy. Thi does not Imply nsidases changs order wortc]




Project: 2019 Sewer Rehab Tiburon / Belvedere Change Order No. 06
Date: November 20,

Owner: Sanitary District No. 5 Phone: (415) 435-1501
Contractor: Glosage Engineering Phone: (510) 815-4505

The following change is hereby made to the contract:
Description of Change:

Line K ~ Removed cast iron bends and pipe and encased pipe with rocks and cement near
Beach Road.

Reason for Change:

This area of K Line is the cliff face above Beach Road. Installation of rock and cement mortar
were directed by the City to cover pipeline on cliff face.

Pricing Data: $2,451.55 (see Day Tag #7)
$1,453.95 (see Day Tag #9)
$3,905.50

Requested by: District

Contract Time: No Change

The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree that this change order constitutes full and mutual
accord and satisfaction for all time, all costs, and all impacts related to this revision. In
accepting this change order, the Contractor agrees that it represents a full and equitable
adjustment to the Contract, and further agrees to waive all rights to file claim with respect to

any difficulties arising from, or as a result of, this change.

Original Contract: $1,044,790.00 APPRO :
Previous Additions: $339,742.85 //Z
Previous Deductions: $.00
-0
This Change Order: $3.905.50 » %ﬂ‘-ﬂ
tor
Contract to Date: $1,388,438.35

8815 CO#06.doc



GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.
DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

roec DATE WORK DONE 9/24/2019
PROJECT TITLE 2019 Sewer Rehabilitation Project REFENENCE NO. REPORT NO. 7
Work Glosage Engineering Inc
Description of work Ramvu!ustlronbandnndmeonnnclcmwhadm
aquPvENT ] Houtyia [tvnded Amaras CLABOR (st enth mosher) Hows | Hourty Rate [Union French] Evtenied Amoms
1 F250 Utility Boxes 4 5  z08s 29.92 4 |$ s3s0]|s 25103 31440
2_|Ford F350 Crew Truck 4 §  amsomls 99.92 Joss G Guzman or
3__|Miscellancous Small Tooks _ 4 5 1mass _73.92 | Reg. | 4 |5 sago $ 216.00
4 27D John Deer 4 CE - % | 95,04 Lok ar
5 1180 Suitar Alr Com; 4 $  10862($ 4248 | Reg. | 4 |§ 3344]8 2510(% 234,16
6 _ |4 Yard Ford F4S0 Dump Truck 4 $ s000)s 120.00 Jusn M Guzman or
7 $ - | Reg. | 4 |$ 20088 25108 188.72
8 $ - Zenakio Gonzalez or
9 | Reg. | 4 |$ 3558 3ap|s 275.00
10 Guadalupe or
1 Reg.
12 or
A-COST OF EQUIPMENT $ 531.28 Reg.
or
B-MATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SPECIALISTS ]
Destription No.omit | UsitCost [Extended Amounts or
LABOR SUBTOTAL $ 1,228.28
11% LABOR SURCHARGE $ 135.11
SUBYOTAL 5 1,363.39
85% MARKUP ON LABOR $ 47749
TOTAL COST OF LABOR [ $ 184058
TOTAL COST OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, WORK AaE s 610.57
$ 245155 |
COST OF MATERIALS 8 WORKS s - Emmm,é’ &Q—»—. 7[2 Y// b 4
SUBTOTALA & B $ 531.28 | Contractar's Représentative Date
15% MARKUP {acquipmant/material/work} ] 79.69
TOTALCOST A & B (indl. markep) $ 51097 | InspectoniSignaturs i for Thwa Tracking enfy. Thistloas Aok Wnyy tkt Ve work Is consliiarad chmngs ordar works)




PROJECT NO

PROJECTTLE ] 2019 Sewer Rehabllitation Project _

GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.

w Mﬂme-m_ S— Gmmmﬂnuc

Pescription of wrork

-

__ MoEamnmt T

15‘

e s ome v

. |Chevy F250 Ulility Boxes _
Ford FI50 Crew Truck

o s d
o _p H fg
WY

DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

DATE WORK DONE 10272008

REFERENCE NO.

- . - T
L SO

Pipe encasement with rocks and cement line K naar Beach Drive

2498 | ¢
2.8 | §

-

l:mmuu aracams] |

. JoseGGuzman

sl - N SN
N AR, N e |
0 SR D T
7 - . i —

e P W |
.2

|
1)
]
!
'
]

{-- -4
e - —

e B — i ] .
B 25 e

_— L oT
|_Reg.

i 8T
Reg.
v e OX

B-MATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SPECIALISTS

e C e .

——

L R IR P P S P Sy

c-unou(tmm werkes) Hours Hourly Rate

YN

fep. | 3 |5 5350
or

—luks ar .
[ Rog. | 3 [s 3944 $ 17562
. JunMGuman  lor |

. Reg.
B Description it Cost e
o o PepldsetMomarmx | 6 |3 merfs RO s i $ s
ek Nepaesa |5 wem|s” U
uuunonsum:uma: S 71.99
o T oo T i _ " suevoraL ’ s 72641
T . 7 " 355 MARKUP ON LABOR s 25A23
T T Tt T T T T T T IOTAL ST OF LASOR s 980,65
R TOTAL COST OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, WORK s a3l
- T T i T g § 148395
o — -~ — mznmucrj_ﬁt r""—' 10 h h.OM
Cantractor’s Reprasuntative

“SUBTOTALA &8

15% MARKUP {equipment/materisl/wark)

TOTALCOST A & B (Incl. markup)

b

Inspectorsignstue s for Time Trcking ondy. Thic doss not imply Bt the work

ne—



Project: 2019 Sewer Rehab Tiburon / Belvedere Change Order No. 07
Date: November 20,

Owner: Sanitary District No. 5 Phone: (415) 435-1501
Contractor: Glosage Engineering Phone: (510) 815-4505

The following change is hereby made to the contract:

Description of Change:

Bellavista Ave - Extra hand excavation to remove repairs under utility mains and services at
Belevista Avenue.

Reason for Change:

Corrections needed to be made to existing sewer before pipebursting new sewer could take
place.

Pricing Data: $3,380.05 (see Day Tag #8)
Requested by: District

Contract Time: No Change

The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree that this change order constitutes full and mutual
accord and satisfaction for all time, all costs, and all impacts related to this revision. In
accepting this change order, the Contractor agrees that it represents a full and equitable
adjustment to the Contract, and further agrees to waive all rights to file claim with respect to
any difficulties arisinjg from, or as a result of, this change.

Original Contract: $1,044,790.00 APPRO
Previous Additions: $343,648.35
Previous Deductions: $.00
'Owne_r
This Change Order: $3.380.05 %g ,%07
Contractéf
Contract to Date: $1,391,818.40

8815 CO#07.doc




GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.

DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

PROJECT NO DATE WORK DONE 8/27/2019
PROJECTTME 2018 Sewer Rehabilitation Project REFERENCE NO. REPORT WD, ]
Work perforsyed by (Compesy) Glosage Engineering inc
Description of work _ Ewlhandmlonwmnmnelnundcnﬂy malns and services at Bellavista Avenue
[T A-EQUIPMENT mm T Moty e Extended Amounts | CLAZOR (Bst each workar) Hows | Hourly Rate [Usion French | Extended Amounts
1__|Chewy F250 Utility Boxes 5 $ 2a5e|s$ 124.90 | Reg. | 5 |5 s3sofs 2510(% 253.00
2 |Ford F350 Crew Truck 5 $  amss|s 124.90 Jose G Guzman oT
3 |4 Yard Dump Truck Ford F350 5 $ 3000|535 150.00 | Reg. | 5 |$ 5300 $ 270.00
4 |Misceltaneous Small Tools H $ 1842 ) § 92.40 Lus oT
s _|Ford F250 Crew Truck s $  ausels 1245 Reg. | 5 |s ssasls zsamls 20070
6 127D John Daer 5 s 2376 | § 118.80 Juan M Guzman oT
7 Lrgomnarmm 5 $  1082]6 53.10 | Reg | 5 |5 2208|$ 25101$ 235.90
B _|4 Yard Ford F4S0 Dump Truck 5 $ 003 15000 Zanakio Gonzalez (514
] [ Reg. | 5 |5 3755(¢ 3120 343.75
10 Guadalups Guzman oT
11 | Reg.
12 . or
A-COST OF EQUIPMENT $ 933,55 Reg.
ar
B-MATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SFECIALISTS | eg.
Desaription No.unit | Unitcost |Extended Ameunts or
LABOR SUBTOTAL $ 153535
11% LABOR SURCHARGE $ 168.89
SUBTGTAL $ 1,704.24
35% MARKLUP ON LABOR $ 596.48
TOTAL COSY OF LABOR c $ 2,300.72
TOTAL COSY OF EQUIPSAENT, MATERIALS, WORK A&B I$ 107933
$ 338005
COST OF MATERIALS & WORK-S s - /; P%’v 747/ 7
SUBTOTALA & B § 538.55 | Contractar's Represcntutive ~ Date
15% MARKLIP (enuiipmient/matarialfwark) $ 140.78
TOTAL COSY A & B {incl. mariap) $ 107933 | nepector(smmiure bfor Thne Trackiag ony. Thds doesrok Bryply that thi work s considered changy order work)




Project: 2019 Sewer Rehab Tiburon / Belvedere Change Order No. 08
Date: November 20,

Owner: Sanitary District No. 5 Phone: (415) 435-150
Contractor: Glosage Engineering Phone:  (510) 815-450.

The following change is hereby made to the contract:
Description of Change:

Oak Place - Redirect and separate sewer laterals from two (2) properties which were combined
in only one lateral connection at the main.

Line S - Remove existing bend behind the curve at Vistazo West Avenue.

Reason for Change:

Common sewer for two residences was corrected to separate laterals.

Pricing Data: $ 943.52 (see Day Tag #10)
$2,309.92 (see Day Tag #11)
$3,253.44

Requested by: District

Contract Time: No Change

The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree that this change order constitutes full and mutual
accord and satisfaction for all time, all costs, and all impacts related to this revision. In
accepting this change order, the Contractor agrees that it represents a full and equitable
adjustment to the Contract, and further agrees to waive all rights to file claim with respect to
any difficulties arising from, or as a result of, this change.

Original Contract: $1,044,790.00 APPROVED:
Previous Additions: $347,028.40 %‘/Z
o er i —

Previous Deductions: $.00 -
Owner

This Change Order: 3.253.44 ‘éﬁ %’“"!
Co or

Contract to Date; $1,395,071.84

8815 CO#08.doc




PROJECTNOD
PROJECTTTLE
Wortk parformad Iy ICompanv)
Descrtption of work

. 2019 Sewer Rehabilitatlon P[gect

GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.
DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

GlosaE Engineering Inc

- .. Redlrect and soparat

DATE WORK DONE

10/2/2019

REFERENCE NO.

__._REPORT NO.

2t suwer laterals from two proporties at oak place from where coblned on anly ane lateral connection at the main

SUBTOTALA & B

15% MARKUP {aquipment/materal/work)

Camtractor's Reprasentative

i I "rmuimm N :- “"‘Lw-’;;’-f" il:urivmu &mmmm‘ i nunon(lnn&-;or_r.‘«i'“ B [T ety pwrm——
,___mezsoomlhtvsms | 2 d 15 2a0]s 49.56 3 |$ s3asols 25108 235.80
2 fFord F350 Crew Truck e LS _asa)s wssl] josecs or $ -
.3 . U S - o - | Reg. f 3 |35 2208|s 25003 14154
4 . e N . R i _Eanaldo Gonzalez T $ -

. 5_ e B U S A I - | Reg. | _3 |$ 334als 2s30)$ 175.62
L6 e N SR T _ __§___ e I Juan M Guzman or 5 -

7 R § - | Reg.
B U I B N N | ot
ol | e e —p— e mmfl | Reg |
LU PO SN N ——t e — 3Lk S or
A= N R S LS CI I SR . Reg. |
12 0. N .= g JL v —— s e e or
A-COST OF EQUIPMENT ) $ 89,92 Reg.
ey e b, e e - =~ o
" BAMATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SPECIALISTS 5
" Desctation No.unkt | UnitCost |Extendad Amounts or
.. _ ~ e o _"‘f:?"m“ $ 552.96
’ T e A I _‘““__‘d_“_“_____‘_"_'_'ziésilfia'&’ﬁmmmse"_;__' — s 50,83
SUBTOTAL $ 613.79
T o ) T T T T ] 3 $ 2148
. = | S = . N . - : —
. - ARE |3 114.91
IR I i A - ik e $ __som
- L e ulz 201

WAL EA TF Larea AR AL ax

TOTAL COST A & B (incl. markup)

Inspectortsigrature s for Time Tracking only. This d

thange order work.)




_PROJECT NO
PROJECT TITLE

Description of work

No.

TR TR

S

i ien

¥

© [w Ln

‘.'FP.",'..EZFQQ@W.T_@* = .
.|#70John Deer

— |4.Yard Ford F450 Dume Truck

—————— e s ——

GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.
DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

CTTmE e 2019 Sewer Rehabilitation Project
Work gerformed W(“m

Glasage Engineering Inc

DATEWORK DONE

10/14/2019

_ REFERENCE NO,

'-r QWPINT

B R L —

_Cl'legyzsaoq_ll_lgsnm

180 Sullar Alr Compresor

.. ....Remove axistin

) A'e'm-l..“,.-m. ]
g

Ford F350 Crew Truck .3
JFord F5508 Yard Dumptruck 3

l'..:u '1. Pi‘-(.

_ 2498158

sting banel behing the curve at fine § Vistaza West Avenue

e e e -

_Jose 6 Guzman _

| s

REPORT NO.

C-LABOR (Ko ench wror' orf {Sours

o e m

chrlv Rube

Unlon Franch

$ 53.50

$ 251018

s

$ 5400

Juan M Guzman

as

o T S5

§ 334

$ 25101 8%

35

$ 2208

. Zenaido Gonzalez

ST _ _ .} 35 |$ a7ssis  3Los 240,63
S RV N R S S N I Guadalupe Gxman ot
WA OV RO RN § E | Reg. |
2], - SRt AL ICNPEE S PP U § SEPSA § e  BY -
A-COST OF EQUIPMENT B s s0818 Res.
. AT - g e T R e . =
Tt mﬁhmmn/mmnxmnénﬁa&éﬁﬁsrs . ]
T Bescription No.umk | UnitCost |Ecternded Amounts, or
) S I AR P S o $ 107475
) o ) ) T T B "-IJ.KI.AHOI’S‘I;IIDM-I;GE“ S s 1211822
- T T - T T AR B T hil;m'ﬂl. - s 1,19297
e ) T I A e T "™ 25% MARKUP ON LABOR o s 41754
T T B i TR T T&I“I:B;I'_DFMM — [4 § 1,61051
e I - A e o .
" S— —— FRR e e :
T L COSTOF MATERALS AWORKS . - to hl-{\\“l
- T SUBTOTALA 2.8 608,19 Date

15% MARKUP {equipment/matarial/work)

91.23

TOTAL COST A & B {incl. markup)

0wl la

699.42

changa order work.}



Project: 2019 Sewer Rehab Tiburon / Belvedere Change Order No. 09
Date: November :

Owner: Sanitary District No. § Phone:  (415) 435-1
Contractor: Glosage Engineering Phone: (510) 815-¢

The following change is hereby made to the contract:
Description of Change:
Line C - Remove two (2) 45° bends on existing sewer.

Reason for Change:
Bends were removed prior to pipebursting the new sewer.

Pricing Data: $1,937.27 (see Day Tag #12)
ested by: District

Contract Time: No Change

The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree that this change order constitutes full and mutual
accord and satisfaction for all time, all costs, and all impacts related to this revision. In
accepting this change order, the Contractor agrees that it represents a full and equitable
adjustment to the Contract, and further agrees to waive all rights to file claim with respect to
any difficulties arising from, or as a result of, this change.

Original Contract: $1,044,790.00 APPROVED: K
Previous Additions: $350,281.84 /
\Dheer T

Previous Deductions: $.00
fOwner
This Change Order: $1.937.27 % %&«\
Contractor ¢~
Contract to Date: $1,397,009.11

8815 CO#09.doc



GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.
DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT
PROJECT NO DATE WORK DONE 10/17 /2019
PROJIECT TITLE . . 2019 Sewer Rehabilitation Project REFERENCE NO. REPORT NO. 12
Workperformed by {compeny) . __ Glosage Engineering Inc
Detonofwork ... .. Removingtwo 45 Degree bands at line C at 1711 Backyard
o T T S " g ool [eomssarcmannas] | = cunmon tiesscch warkery Hous | Hoarly Rate | Union rans | Exaondes Ao
O SOt A | Pay .
.1, [Chevy 2500 Utility Boxes 2 §  2a58($ 49.55 | Reg. | 35 |$ sas0l$  2sa0fs 275.10
. 2 [FordF350CrewTruck —_— 2l $_ wmsels 99611 Juse G Guzman oT
3 |FordFL50 2 $§ 24988 49.96 | Reg. | 3.5 |$ 5400 $ 189.00
4 _|Miscellaneous Smal) Tools 2 $ 8481 S 3696 Lujs QT
.5 |FordF250CrewTruck | 2 § _am|s 49.78 | Reg. | 35 |$ 33448  2500(% 204.89
.6 lDlchnDeer 2.} __|s _nmls  ss . Jusn M Guaman or
7 L . $ - | Reg. | 35 [$ 22086 2530]s 165.13
. 8§ P U 1l Sy Vi -l 5 - _Zenaldo Gonzalez ar
T ] - Reg. | 35 |$ 3755|6  a1z0|s 240.63
10 _ . $ - Guadalupe Guaman oT
nj _ " $ - Reg.
B LT e - ..—-Q.__.s_., - *.._- (S vt o Mokt Y o v et OT
L .21 e e : 23;; iy
i e o s Wit S~ ..,. - o
S mmm;mxbu: eyt -
Dexcription No.unk |  UnkCost  |Extended Amounts or
- . USEENR S I Lae o, _,____m,__m'wm $ 1,074.75
[ TR TR T e e e T T o . LS 11% LABOR SURCHANGE $ 118.22
R [ SUBTOTAL $ 119297
[ 7T T T e e e e e R | 35% MARKUP ON LABOR S 417.54
— T i - T TOTAL COST OFLABOR € s  1ewst
$
f—— AL, ittt bt o - ...__.,_..—1 r—— - -t ——
COSTOFMATERIALSAWORKS $
SUBTOTALA &.B $
15% MARKUP {squipment/material/work) §
TOYALCOST A& B (incl. markap) S 326.76 § InspactoriRgrature s for Time Teacking only. This do ply thet thm werk dhumge order work)




Project: 2019 Sewer Rehab Tiburon / Belvedere Change Order No. 10
Date: November 20, 2

Owner: Sanitary District No. 5 Phone: (415) 435-1501
Contractor: Glosage Engineering Phone: (510) 815-4505

The following change is hereby made to the contract:
Description of Change:

Line J-1 - Extra excavation to remove 45° bend under a retaining wall at 15 Madrona Ave.
Line J — Demolished existing concrete, encased a sewer main with concrete at 50 Madrona

Ave where utilities cross.

Reason for Change:

Existing site conditions needed to be addressed.

Pricing Data: $1,145.98 (see Day Tag #1)
$1,352.02 (see Day Tag #2)
$2,498.00

Requested by: District

Coniract Time: No Change

The Owner and the Contractor hereby agree that this change order constitutes full and mutual
accord and satisfaction for all time, all costs, and all impacts related to this revision. In
accepting this change order, the Contractor agrees that it represents a full and equitable
adjustment to the Contract, and further agrees to waive all rights to file claim with respect to
any difficulties arising from, or as a result of, this change.

Original Contract: $1,044,790.00 APPROVED: 6
Previous Additions: $352,219.11 /f/ K
Eﬁe’ -

Previous Deductions; $.00

bWﬂer
This Change Order: 498.00 A ,%w—’\

Odntractor =~

Contract to Date: $1,399,507.11

8815 CO#10.doc



GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.

DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT
_PROJECT NO DATE WORK DONE 8/20/2019
PROJECT TITLE 2019 Sewer Rehabilitation Project REFERENCENO, REPORT NO. 1
Work performed by (Contpany) Glosay ineering tnc
Deacription of wark Stlgu main encasement with concrete at ine J at 50 Madron AVe where utilitles crosses
e — ELT: HourtyRate | Extonded Amounts C-LABOR Mt aach worker) Hours | Hourly Rate [Unios French | Exsended Amounts
1 _|Chevy F250 Utlity Bowes 2 $  aom|s so||” $_Ssols :iols  as7an
2 _ |Ford F350 Crew Truck ¢ 2 5 24.98 49,9 Jose G Guzman oT
3 _ )4 Yard Dusap Truck Ford F350 ° - 2 $ 30.00{$ 60.00 $ S400 5 108.00
4 _|Miscailaneous Sma) Tools 2 $ _ 1sas|s 36.96 Luts or
5 _ |Ford F250 Crew Truck 2 S 24BlS 49,78 . $ 3aua]s 2510]% 117.08
§__|270 John Deer 2 $ 26l 4152 Juan M Gurman or
7__{1B0 Sullar Air Compresor 2 $  1082(s 2124 $ 208|5 2sa0fs 94,35
8_ |2 Yard Ford F450 Dump Truck 2 $ 30003 §0.00 __Zenaido Gonzaler or
9
10 o7
131 Reg.
12 i oT
A-COST QF EQUIPMENT $ 375.42 Reg.
or
B-MATERIALS AND/OR WORK DONE BY SPECIALISTS A
Bascription . No, uit UnitCost | Exsended Amounts or
LABOR SUBTOTAL $ AT6E4
11% LABOR SURCHARGE S 5243
SUBTOTAL $ 529.07
35% MARKUP ON LABOR s 18517
TOTAL COST OF LABOR [+ $ 714,25
TOTAL COST OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, WORK Aad ls i
$ s8]
COST OF MATERIALS & WORK-B ] - cumnmoom:%_ ’E i“?"" ) 5 2“‘7// 7
SUBTOYALA & B 3 37542 | Contractars Representative Date
15% MARKUP {egquipment/matesial/work) $ 8631
TOTAL GOST A & B {ind). markup) $ 43173 [ inTpectorSimtu isfor Tiea Track e This d Imply thae th dhange urdar work)



GLOSAGE ENGINEERING INC.
DAILY WORK VERIFICATION REPORT

PROJECT NO DATE WORK DONE 8/22/2019
PROJECT TITLE 2019 Sewer Rehabllitation Project REFERENCE NO. REPORT NO. 2
Work performed by [Company) __ Glosage Engineering Inc .
Description of work Extria Excavation to removed 45 bend, at fine J-1 under a retaining wall at 15 Madrona Ave
_m" AERAPMENT Ef—m’:— Howrdy Kate | ixtanded Amouats C-LARDR (fist emch werkar) Mours Hourly Rete {Union French | Extended Amomats
1 |Chevy F250 Utliity Boxas i 2 $  2a98|$ 49.96 ¢ ] 2 s sasols 2510]¢ 157.20
2__{Ford F350 Crew Truck ) 2 $  2498]s 49.96 __lose G Guzman oT
3 |4 Yard Dump Truck Ford F350 * 2 $__ s000)s 60.00 Reg. | 2 |s 3755(8 a1ao]s 13750
4_|Miscelianeous Semalf Teots 2 -{s  1masls 36.96 Guadalupe Guzman ar
s _|Ford F250 Crew Truck 2 s zama|s o ' 2 |s 33445 251005 11708
6 127D John Deer 2 $ 237861 $ 47.52 Juan M Guzman or
7__|2BO Sufier Air Compresor F $§ wes 2124 1 2 1§ 2208]$ 2an|s 94.36
8 |4 Yard Ford F450 Dump Truck 2 $§  3000]s 60.00 Zenaldo Gonzalez oT
9 ' 2 |5 800 $ 108.00
10 Luls Guzman or
1 | Reg
12 ot
A-COST OF EQUIPMENT $ 375.42 Reg,
or
B-MATERIALS AND/QR WORK DONE BY SPECIALISTS .
Dasaigtion Nounk | UsCost |wxtemed Amonnts or
LABOR SUBTOTAL s 61414
2119 LABOR SURCHARGE $ 67.56
SUBTGTAL $ £81.70
25% MARKUP ON LABOR $ 23B.59
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Transmittal Memo

Date: December 19, 2019

To: Board of Directors

From: Tony Rubio, District Manager/ Chief Plant Operator
Subject: Management Report for November 2019

Fiscal Status

Period Covered: July 1, 2019 —November 30, 2019
Percent of Fiscal Year: 41%
Percent of Budgeted Income to Date: 6.3%

Percent of Budgeted Expenditures to Date: 38.4% operating only

Personnel

Separations: None
New Hires: None
Promotions: None
Recruitment Activities: None

Regulatory Compliance

MP Collection System WDR Compliance: Full Compliance with all regulations
PC Collection System WDR Compliance: Full Compliance with all regulations

MP NPDES Permit Compliance: Full Compliance with all regulations
PC NPDES Permit Compliance: Full Compliance with all regulations
BAAQMD Compliance: Full Compliance with all regulations
Bio-Solids Compliance: Full Compliance with all regulations
Significant Comments: None

Summary of Operational Highlights are on the following pages.
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Significant Events for the Month of October 2019 Include:

Financial/Budgetary/Business Administration

e MPR Bond Refinancing Considerations
¢ End of fiscal year Finnancial Audit Completed Perotti & Carrade
¢ Received GASB 75 report from GovInvest. OPEB

HR and Personnel

e Substantial amount of overtime this month due to PSPS event,

Continuing Education and Safety Training

e Creating Emergency Preparedness Plan for use on Districts website — ongoing

Collection System Performance
Main Plant Tiburon/Belvedere:

e Pump station annual preventive maintenance work orders being performed
e Submitted No Spill report for month of October RWQCB on CIWQS

Paradise Cove:

e Submitted No Spill report for month of October to RWQCB on CIWQS
o Pump station annual preventive maintenance work order being performed

Treatment Plant Performance
Paradise Cove:

e Satisfactory- Looking into wet well lids for plant and off-line unit being prepped for
upcoming coating.
e Looking to get vendors to provide proposals to coat offline treatment plant.

Main Plant:

e Submitted October 2019 SMR and DMR to the RWQCB

e Preventive Maintenance Work Orders being performed.

e In communication with Lystek Facility in Fairfield CA for future Bio-solids disposal
e Blower Maintenance Completed

e Entered into new Bio-Solids waste hauling agreement- Mill Valley Refuse

Page 3 of 4



Pollution Prevention Activities

e B attended P2 Monthly Meeting.

Capital improvement Projects

e Design of Cove Road force main rehabilitation project underway. Nute Engineers
working with Miller Pacific on Soils report will be preparing letter to Caltrans for open
cut project.

e Vistazo West washout repair completed

Page 4 of 4



PEROTTI & CARRADE

Certified:Public Accountants

December 19, 2019

To the Board of Directors of
Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin

We have audited the financial statements of Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin for the year
ended June 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2019. Professional
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you
the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated July 19, 2018, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, was to express an opinion about whether the financial statements
prepared by management with your oversight were fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control
over financial reporting.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements; therefore, our audit involves judgment about the number of
transactions examined and the areas tested.

We began our audit as expected, which was in late August 2019.
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin are described in
Note 2 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted, and the
application of existing policies was not changed during 2019. We noted no transactions entered

Perotti & Carrade | Certified Public Accountants
4154618500 | 4154616342 fax | www.pc-cpas.com | 1 Mcinnis Parkway, Suite 200 | San Rafael, CA 94303



into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. To our knowledge, there are no significant transactions that have been recognized
in the financial statements in an improper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive
estimates affecting the financial statements were the actuarially determined obligations of the
District’s pension and other postemployment benefits and the funding status of the benefits.
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used in evaluating the obligations in determining
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate , to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no
such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated December 19, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to

-2



determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles
and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that
supplement the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements.
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSIL.

We were engaged to report on the supplemental combining schedule of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position by zone, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSL
With respect to the supplementary information we made certain inquiries of management and
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of
Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,



P&C

PEROTTI & CARRADE

Certified Public Aceountants

December 19, 2019

Board of Directors
Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Sanitary District Number
5 of Marin as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered Sanitary District Number
5 of Marin’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Sanitary District Number
5 of Marin’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the organization’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Given these limitations during our audit, we
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of
Directors, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be

used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Perotti & Carrade | Certified Public Accountants
4154618500 | 4154616342 fax | www.pc-cpas.com | 1 Mclnnis Parkway, Suite 200 | San Rafael, CA 94303
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Board of Directors,
Sanitary District Number S of Marin County:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sanitary District
Number 5 of Marin County as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
and the related notes to the financiai statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financials statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United State of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements
for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to

Peratti & Carrade | Certified Public Accountants
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design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
controls. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of Sanitary District Number 5
of Marin County as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in financial
position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as well as
accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state
regulations governing special districts.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that the management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, the
required supplementary information included on pages 36-39, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial

statements that collectively comprise Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin
County’s basic financial statements. The additional information on page 40 is



presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

December 19, 2019 M : / (aode



SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin County's annual financial report presents
our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the year ended June 30,
2019. The financial statements are presented in a format to comply with the financial statement
presentation requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The net position of the District's business-type activities increased by approximately
$2,369,000 during the year ended June 30, 2019.

e Total operating revenues decreased by approximately $73,000 due to a decrease in sewer
service charges. Nonoperating revenues increased by approximately $251,000 attributed
to an increase in property tax revenue of approximately $103,000 as well as an increase
of approximately $148,000 in interest income.

= Total operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2019 decreased by approximately
$195,000 compared to the year ended June 30, 2018. The decrease in operating expenses
was principally attributed to decreases in salaries and benefits of approximately
$156,000, and a decrease in line cleaning and inspection of approximately $55,000.

» There were no increases in customer rates during the year ended June 30, 2019.

e No new debt was issued during the year ended June 30, 2019.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts — management’s discussion and analysis (this section),
the basic financial statements including related disclosures, and required supplementary
information. The basic financial statements include one kind of statement that present both a
short-term and long-term view of the District: Proprietary enterprise fund-type statements offer
short and long-term financial information about the activities that the District operates like
businesses, such as the District’s wastewater collection and treatment system.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that provides more data about the District's pension plans. Figure A-1
summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including the portion of the
District they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview
section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of
the statements.



SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FIGURE A-1 Major Financial Statement Features

Basic Financial Statements

Scope Activities the District operates similar to
private businesses; the wastewater collection
and treatment systems.

Required financial statements Statement of Net Position; Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position; Statement of Cash Flows.

Accounting basis and measurement focus Accrual accounting and economic
measurement focus.

Type of asset/liability information All assets and liabilities, both financial and
capital, and short-term and long-term focus.

Type of inflow/outflow information All revenues and expenses during the year,
regardless of when cash is received.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position
includes all the District's assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses
are accounted for in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

The basic financial statements report the District’s net position and how it has changed. Net
position — the difference between the District's assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the
District's financial health, or position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

The basic financial statements of the District consist of one category:

Business-type activities — The District charges fees to help it cover the costs of certain services it
provides. All of the District’s operations are accounted for in this category. The District uses
proprietary enterprise fund type accounting principles to account for all operations. Proprietary
accounting provides both long-and short-term financial information.



SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

TABLE A-1: Net Position of the District

Increase Percent Increase
(Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
2019 2018 Over 2018 (Decrease) 2017 Over 2017
Cash, including board reserves $ 15,078,854 § 13,115,362 § 1,963,492 1497% $ 12,490,776 $ 624,586
Capital assets 19,149,116 19,743,735 (594,619) -3.01% 19,421,384 322,351
Other assets and deferred
outflows of resources 1,387,269 1,603,274 (216,005) -13.47% 841,067 762,207
Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources 35,615,239 34,462,371 1,152,868 3.35% 32,753,227 1,709,144
Current liabilities 1,197,939 1,492,914 (294,975) -19.76% 1,428,546 64,368
Net pension and OPEB liabilities and 1,453,323 1,829,561 (376,238) -20.56% 746,311 1,083,250
related deferred inflows of resources
Long-term bond and loan debt 7,939,093 8,483,840 (544,747) -6.42% 9,011,279 (527,439)
Total liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources 10,590,355 11,806,315 (1,215,960) -10.30% 11,186,136 620,179
Net position:
Invested in capital assets 10,665,275 10,732,456 (67,181) -0.63% 9,899,645 832,811
Unrestricted 14,359,609 11,923,600 2,436,009 20.43% 11,667,446 256,154
Total net position $ 25,024,884 § 22,656,056 § 2,368,828 10.46% $ 21,567,091 § 1,088,965

Net Position. The District's total net position increased by $2,368,828 during the year ended
June 30, 2019. This increase is discussed in detail on the following page. The $1,705,616
decrease in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is attributed principally to the reduction
in bonds payable of $527,438 and District making a one-time contribution of $740,733 to reduce
pension obligations and cover service costs are reflected as deferred outflows which was applied
against the obligation during the year ending June 30, 2019. This is because there is a one-year
lag in recognizing pension liability transactions. Contributions to the plan for the current year are
recognized as deferred outflows (similar to an asset).



SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (continued)

TABLE A-2 Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Increase Percent Increase
(Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
2019 2018 Over 2018  (Decrease) 2017 Over 2017
Operating revenues $ 5,654,446 $ 5,727,360 $ (72,914) -1.27% $ 5,452,577 § 274,783
Nonoperating revenues 1,520,579 1,269,778 250,801 19.75% 1,122,358 147,420
Total revenues 7,175,025 6,997,138 177,887 2.54% 6,574,935 422,203
Operating expenses 4,534,797 4,729,724 (194,927) -4.12% 4,782,528 (52,804)
Nonoperating expenses 271,400 302,612 (31,212) -10.31% 308,497 (5,885)
Total expenses 4,806,197 5,032,336 (226,139) -4.49% 5,091,025 (58,689)
Change in net assets 2,368,828 1,964,802 404,026 20.56% 1,483,910 480,892
Net position - beginning of period 22,656,056 21,567,091 1,088,965 5.05% 20,083,181 1,483,910
Prior Period Adjustment - GASB 75 (875,837) 875,837 -100.00% (875,837)
Net position - end of period $ 25024884 $§ 22,656,056 $ 2,368,828 1046% $ 21,567,091 $ 1,088,965

Overall, during the year ended June 30, 2019, there was an increase of $177,887, or about 2.54
percent, in total revenues from last fiscal year. This was principally due to an increase in revenue
from property taxes and interest income of approximately $251,000. This was offset with a
decrease in sewer service charges of $89,472. Revenue from connection and inspection fees and
property tax fluctuate yearly. The decrease in the sewer service charges was due to a decrease in
the number of equivalent units charged to commercial property owners.

The District’s total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2019 decreased by $226,139, or about
4.49 percent, compared to total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018. Salaries and benefits
costs decreased by $155,677 principally due to the amortization of pension and OPEB costs. The
pension and OPEB expenses for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was approximately
$431,000 and $629,000, respectively, or a decrease of approximately $198,000. There was also a
decrease in emergency line cleaning of appx $38,000.



SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

TABLE A-3 District Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Increase Percent
(Decrease) Increase
June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 Over 2018  (Decrease)

Land $ 49295 § 49,295 $ - 0.00%

Main and Paradise Cove plant 11,656,168 12,785,999 (1,129,831) -8.84%

Sewer line and pump stations 7,259,523 6,686,692 572,831 8.57%

Plant equipment, vehicles and other

equipment 184,130 221,749 (37,619) -16.96%
Total capital assets $ 19,149,116 $ 19,743,735 $ (594,619) -3.01%
Capital Assets

There was a net decrease in capital assets of $594,619 during the year ended June 30, 2019
mainly due to current year’s depreciation of $1,555,554 and as the District added $962,124 of
improvements during the year ended June 30, 2019. This included approximately $883,000
toward sewer lines improvements, control panel upgrades made and at pump stations
improvements.

Long-Term Debt

In fiscal year 2012, the District’s Financing Authority issued $10,935,000 in revenue bonds to
provide financing for the Main Plant Rehabilitation Project. Because of the financial condition of
the District, the bonds were sold at a $1,076,031 premium that effectively reduced the overall
interest rate on the District’s bonds. Principal and interest payments began in fiscal year 2013.

There was no new long-term debt issued by the District during the year ended June 30, 2019.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S OPERATING PLAN AND RATES

Several major changes in the District's financial capabilities and operations are anticipated in the
future.

In the capital area, the District has determined there is an urgent need for significant capital
improvements. These needs primarily deal with the aging infrastructure of the District’s
wastewater collection system. Future large capital improvement projects impacting District
operations include the Cove Road Force Main Rehabilitation Project and several other force
main replacement projects. These projects are major rehabilitations of central pump stations in
both Tiburon and Belvedere District service areas. Capital improvement work will continue on
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

the collection system, according to the 10-year CIP Program. Inflow and Infiltration (I&I)
remains one of the District’s highest items of concern, as reducing I&I requires a comprehensive
plan and adequate funding to achieve results. I&I effects the District’s National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System permit, which has compliance objectives that are regulated by the
California Regional Water Quality Control Board.

Currently the District is in the process of replacing the control panels at pump station sites as the
existing ones become obsolete, as well as for standardization purposes. The same is true for the
emergency generators serving the pump stations. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the
District updated its 10-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP). The CIP process included
comprehensively evaluating and assessing the capital work that was completed in recent years
and identifying future improvements which could be required in the sanitary sewer collection
system and at both of the District’s treatment plants. The CIP includes projected costs for
proposed improvements (at present-day market value) and an anticipated schedule for
completion. The District owns and maintains a total of 24 pump stations and two treatment
plants which are critical to the operation of the District. The impact of the District’s update to the
CIP pertaining to the operations of the District will be evaluated annually, now that the District
has identified thirteen million dollars of anticipated projects through 2027.

As of 2018 the Tiburon Collection system has an estimated $3,816,000 of capital work identified
in the 10-yr CIP. The Belvedere Collections system has an estimated $6,100,000 of capital work
identified in the 10-yr CIP. The Main Plant has an estimated $1,965,000 of capital work
identified in the 10-yr CIP. The Paradise Cove Plant has an estimated $200,000 of capital work
identified in the 10-yr CIP. As of June 30, 2019 the District has replaced all 5 Emergency
Generators in the Tiburon Zone as well as the 9 total control panels. In the Belvedere Zone 1 of
the 3 Emergency Generators have been replaced and a total of 8 of the 13 control panels have
been replaced with the remaining generators and control panels scheduled for replacement in the
next three years or less.

The projects and estimates were determined during the year ended June 30, 2018, and do not
include future upgrades that may be required by future National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) permits, specifically those involving the Nutrient Order. The District is
currently participating in the first Nutrient Order issued by the Regional Water Quality Control
Board (RWQCB). Order No. R2-2014-0014 requires both treatment plants to sample and provide
data results to the Regional Board through June 30, 2019 for its nutrient discharge into the bay.
The current collected data is being used to study the effect treatment plant dischargers have on
the bay. It is anticipated that the results of this first permit will lead to a second permit, in which
it will require additional funding from the dischargers to further collect and study the issue of
nutrients in the SF Bay and the continued effects dischargers have on it. The total groups (38
Dischargers) contribution to the science program is anticipated to go from $880K/year to
$2.2M/year in the 2™ permit collectively. Nutrient limits will not be included in the 2nd permit.
For more information regardingthenutrientorderspleasevisit
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay//water_issues/programs/planningtmdls/amend
ments/estuarynne.html)
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER S OF MARIN COUNTY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

One other potential change facing the District, is that of Bio-Solids Management and Disposal.
Diminishing options to dispose of bio-solids coupled with new regulations requiring diversion of
organics from landfill will create a greater risk for significant cost increases for small Districts
like ours to dispose of Bio-Solids as well as requiring far more complex management programs.
It is anticipated that costs could potentially double for Bio-Solids Management if landfill
disposal is eliminated as an option as result of SB1383 requirements.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the District Manager, Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin County, 2001 Paradise Drive,
Tiburon, California, 94920.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 6,258,148 $ 6,452,722
Accounts receivable 181,382 81,319
Prepaid expenses 77,581 70,080
Total current assets 6,517,111 6,604,121
Other Assets:
Board restricted investments 8,820,706 6,662,640
Net pension asset 264,314
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 19,149,116 19,743,735
Total other assets 28,234,136 26,406,375
Total Assets 34,751,247 33,010,496
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related 740,352 1,332,505
OPEB related 123,640 119,370
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 863,992 1,451,875
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payablke related to:
Operating expenses 208,223 281,443
Improvement projects in process 137,130 329,062
Total accounts payable 345,353 610,505
Compensated absence liability 135,675 154,737
Accrued interest payable 83,837 86,137
Deferred permit revenue 88,326 114,096
Current portion of bonds payable 544,748 527,439
Total current liabilities 1,197,939 1,492,914
Long-term liabilities:
Net pension liability 583,347
Net OPEB liability 889,289 959,664
Bonds payable 7,939,093 8,483,840
Total long-term liabilities 8,828,382 10,026,851
Total Liabilities . 10,026,321 11,519,765
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related 520,401 273,195
OPEB related 43,633 13,355
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 564,034 286,550
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital assets 10,665,275 10,732,456
Unrestricted 14,359,609 11,923,600
Net Position $ 25,024,884 $ 22,656,056

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER S OF MARIN COUNTY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Operating Revenues:
Sewer service charges
Connection and inspection fees
Maintenance agreements
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Utilities
Line cleaning and inspection
Supplies (chemicals)

Contracted and professional services

Telephone and internet
Maintenance and repairs

Other operating costs
Monitoring

Other administrative costs
Liability and property insurance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):

Property taxes

Investment income

Loss on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense

Total net non-operating revenues (expenses)

Increase in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year
Net Position, End of Year

2019 2018
5,023,909 $ 5,113,381
522,344 515,978
85,203 83,301
22,990 14,700
5,654,446 5,727,360
1,726,694 1,882,371
228,729 219,240
213,353 268,534
189,255 176,300
166,841 210,481
110,707 93,308
89,122 104,041
84,551 95,364
69,107 50,846
60,290 69,955
40,594 35,695
1,555,554 1,523,589
4,534,797 4,729,724
1,119,649 997,636
1,215,923 1,113,116
304,656 156,662
(1,189) (15,616)
(270,211) (286,996)
1,249,179 967,166
2,368,828 1,964,802
22,656,056 20,691,254
25,024,884 § 22,656,056

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.




SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash receipts from:
Sewer service charges $ 4829342 $§ 5,251,754
Comnection and inspection fees 496,574 445,872
Other operating sources 108,193 98,001
Total cash receipts 5,434,109 5,795,627
Cash paid for:
Salaries and benefits (1,806,016) (2,436,830)
Utilities (228,369) (218,093)
Contracted and professional services (152,668) (217,692)
Supplies (chemicals) (196,607) (155,719)
Line cleaning and inspection (134,863) (348,088)
Other expenses (518,668) (399,146)
Total cash paid (3,037,191) (3,775,568)
Cash provided by operating activities 2,396,918 2,020,059
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest income 304,656 156,662
Cash provided by investing activities 304,656 156,662
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Interest paid on bond debt (339,950) (349,050)
Payment on bond debt (460,000) (450,000)
Property additions (1,154,055) (1,866,201)
Cash used for capital and related financing activities (1,954,005) (2,665,251)
Cash Flows from Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Property taxes collected 1,215,923 1,113,116
Cash provided by non-capital and related financing activities 1,215,923 1,113,116
Net Increase in Cash and Investments 1,963,492 624,586
Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 13,115,362 12,490,776
Cash and Investments, End of Year $ 15,078,854 $ 13,115,362
Reconciliation of Cash and Investments to Amounts
Reported on the Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and investments $ 6,258,148 $§ 6,452,722
Board restricted investments 8,820,706 6,662,640

$ 15,078,854 $ 13,115,362

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

RECONCILIATIONS OF OPERATING INCOME TO CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Operating Income $ 1,119,649 § 997,636
Add or deduct items not requiring the use of cash:
Depreciation 1,555,554 1,523,589
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (100,063) 43,869
Increase in prepaid expenses (7,501) (14,161)
Increase (decrease) in operating accounts payable (73,220) 93,040
Increase (decrease) in compensated absence liability (19,062) 30,694
Decrease in deferred permit reverue (25,770) (70,106)
Net pension liability (847,661) (93,231)
Change in deferred pension outflows and inflows of resources 839,359 (469,083)
Net OPEB liability (70,375) 83827
Change in deferred OPEB outflows and inflows of resources 26,008 (106,015)
Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2396918 § 2,020,059

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. THE ORGANIZATION

Sanitary District Number 5 of Marin County (District) was created on March 17, 1947 as a
special district under Provision of the Sanitary District Act of 1923 by a reorganization of
previously created districts into a single sanitary district, and it is govemed by five elected
Directors. The District is an independent special district that provides sewage collection
services to a portion of the Town of Tiburon and Belvedere, California. The District is a
proprietary fund, also referred to as an enterprise fund, which is a fund established by
governmental agencies to account for goods and services provided to the general public that
are financed primarily through user charges.

The accompanying financial statements present the District and its component unit, an entity
for which the District is considered to be financially accountable. The District has one
blended component unit, the Tiburon/Belvedere Wastewater Financing Authority (Authority)
which is governed by the District’s Board of Directors. The District is responsible for all of
the Authority’s obligations. The transactions between the Authority and the District have been
eliminated from the accompanying financial statements and the Authority’s transactions are
reported as part of the District’s financial activities. Separate financial statements for the
Authority are not available.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies are described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial
statements to the reader.

Basis of Presentation and Accounting - The activities of the District are accounted for in a
single enterprise fund using the accrual basis of accounting. The District is engaged in only
business-type activities and the District’s basic financial statements consist of only the
financial statements required for enterprise funds. These include management's discussion and
analysis, a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position, a statement of cash flows, these notes to the basic financial statements, and required
supplementary information.

Proprietary enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are charges to the households and
commercial and public facilities in the district for sewer service. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The District, as authorized by its Board of Directors, charges new users a fee to pay for capital
improvements necessitated by their addition. Fees received have been treated as contributed
capital and have been expended solely on infrastructure improvements.

Cash and Investments: Cash include amounts in demand deposits.

Required disclosures relating to investments include the following components: interest rate
risk and credit risk. The credit risk disclosure includes the following components: overall risk,
custodial risk and concertation of risk. Investments are reported in the statement of net
position at fair value. Changes in fair market value that occur during the fiscal year are
recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes
interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation
or sale of investments.

The District participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California and
regulated by California government code Section 16429 known as the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pooled funds in structured notes
and asset-backed securities. LAIF’s investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith
and credit of the State of California collateralizing these investments. In addition, the
structured notes and asset-backed securities are subject to market risk as to change in interest
rates. Investments in LAIF are highly liquid and available virtually on demand. Consequently,
the investment has been treated as a cash equivalent in the accompanying statements of net
position and statements of cash flows.

Receivables, Property Taxes and Sewer Service Revenues: Property taxes are levied as of
July 1 on property values assessed as of the same date. State statutes provide that the property
tax rate be limited generally to one percent of market value, be levied by only the County, and
be shared by applicable jurisdictions. The County of Marin collects the taxes and distributes
them to taxing jurisdictions on the basis of assessed valuations subject to voter-approved debt.
Property taxes are due on November 1 and March 1, and become delinquent on December 10
and April 10. The District receives property taxes pursuant to an arrangement with the County
known as the “Teeter Plan”. Under the plan, the County assumes responsibility for the
collection of delinquent taxes and pays the full allocation to the District. The District
recognizes property tax revenues in the fiscal year in which they are due to the District and
accrues as receivable such taxes. Accordingly, the District provides for no allowance for
doubtful accounts.

Sewer service fees (used to supplement tax revenues) are set by the District based upon rates
applied to the number of equivalent dwelling units (EDUs). For residential properties the rate
is one EDU per living unit. Commercial properties are charged EDUs based on a calculation
derived from water flow. The sewer service fees are incorporated into the property tax
billings, and such fees are due in two equal installments on December 10 and April 10
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

following the assessment date. The District recognizes these fees as revenues in the year
earned, which is also the year in which the service is provided to properties within the
District. Under the Teeter Plan arrangement discussed above, the County remits substantially
all of the sewer fees to the District each year, and the County bears the burden of any
uncollectible accounts. Therefore, the District does not provide for an allowance for
uncollectible accounts or bad debts.

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
assets (mainly the existing wastewater system), are reported in the financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at cost.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or
materially extend assets lives are expensed. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements
are capitalized as projects are constructed. The portion of interest expense related to spent
debt proceeds incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type
activities was included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the assets as follows:

Treatment plants 5-40 years
Subsurface lines and pump stations 7-60 years
Equipment and vehicles 5-12 years

Compensated Absences: The District accrues a liability for vacation and other qualified paid
time off earned but not yet taken. The District does not provide for payment of unused sick
leave at termination dates.

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability/asset, deferred outflows/inflows
of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Agency’s California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) plan
(the Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB): For purposes of measuring the net OPEB
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB,
and OPEB expense information about the fiduciary net position of the District Retiree
Benefits Plan (the Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the
Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows: The District recognizes deferred outflows and inflows of
resources pursuant to GASB Statement Number 68 and 75. A deferred outflow of resources is
defined as a consumption of net asset (net position) by the government that is applicable to a
future reporting period. A deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net
position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.

Net Position: The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net positions are
categorized as follows:
* Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
* Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of constraints placed
on net position use through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
there is no restricted net position.
* Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position that
do not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS AND BOARD RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments and board restricted investments consisted of the following as of June
30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Available for operations:
Demand deposits with banks $ 459,872 § 542,857
LAIF investment fimd 5,798,276 5,909,865
Total current 6,258,148 6,452,722
Board designated reserves:
LATF investment fimd 8,820,706 6,662,640
Total cash & mvestments (considered
cash equivalents) $ 15,078,854 § 13,115,362
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS AND BOARD RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (continued)

Board designated reserves are specified for:

2019 2018
Capital improvements $ 6,693,203 §$§ 5,013,530
Working capital reserve 699,353 514,960
Pension plan reserve 428,150 134,150
Disaster 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total board designated reserves $ 8,820,706 $ 6,662,640

The District’s investment policy is to maintain its operating funds in a local bank and invest
idle funds and Board designated reserves with LAIF which is permitted by California law.

LAIF allows local agencies such as the District to participate in a Pooled Money Investment
Account managed by the State Treasurers Office and overseen by the Pooled Money
Investment Board and State Treasurer investment committee. A Local Agency Investment
Advisory Board oversees LAIF. The investments with LAIF are not classified for credit risk
due to their diverse nature and are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. The total
amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF, as of June 30, 2019, was approximately
$106.6 billion with an average life of 173 days. Of that amount, 99.24% was invested in non-
derivative financial products and 0.76% in structured notes and asset-based securities.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District's policy for deposits is
that they will be made in institutions in California and they will be insured or collateralized in
accordance with section 53562 of the California Government Code. At June 30, 2019,
$212,804 of the District's bank balances was exposed to custodial credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments: Custodial risk related to LAIF is mitigated by the
oversight provided by independent Boards and extremely conservative nature of the
investment policy.

Interest rate risk associated with LAIF investments is mitigated by the short-term nature of the
large majority of their investments and the strict limitation on the type of investments made.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Changes in the District’s property, equipment and improvements and accumulated
depreciation for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2019 is summarized as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions Jume 30, 2018
Capital asset, not being
depreciated - Land $ 49,295 $ 49,295
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Historical Cost:
Main plant 27,008,154 $ 74325 § (51,632) 27,030,847
Paradise Cove plant 1,986,589 1,986,589
Sewer line and pump stations 11,978,251 1,681,568 13,659.819
Plant equipment, vehicles and
and other equipment 478,638 105,663 (23,362) 560,939
Total capital assets, being depreciated 41451,632 1,861,556 (74,994) 43,238,194
Accumulated Depreciation:
Main plant 14,590,702 1,172,869 (36,016) 15,727,555
Paradise Cove plant 449,720 54,162 503,882
Sewer line and pump stations 6,707,258 265,369 6,973,127
Plant equipment, vehicles and
and other equipment 331,863 30,689 (23,362) 339,190
Total accumulated depreciation 22,079,543 1,523,589 (59,378) 23,543,754
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 19,372,089 337,967 (15,616) 19,694,440
Capital assets - net $ 19421384 §$ 337967 $ (15616) $ 19,743,735
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Balance Transfers/ Balance
June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019
Capital asset, not being
depreciated - Land $ 49,295 $ 49,295
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Historical Cost:
Main plant 27,030,847 $ 79,142 27,109,989
Paradise Cove plant 1,986,589 204 1,986,883
Sewer line and pump stations 13,659,819 882,688 $ (10,195) 14,532,312
Plant equipment, vehicles and
and other equipment 560,939 (6,105) 554,834
Total capital assets, being depreciated 43 238,194 962,124 (16,300) 44,184,018
Accumulated Depreciation:
Main plant 15,727,555 1,155,090 16,882,645
Paradise Cove plant 503,882 54,177 558,059
Sewer line and pump stations 6,973,127 308,668 (9,006) 7,272,789
Plant equipment, vehicles and
and other equipment 339,190 37,619 (6,105) 370,704
Total accumulated depreciation 23,543,754 1,555,554 (15,111) 25,084,197
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 19,694,440 (593.,430) (1,189) 19,099,821
Capital assets - net $ 19,743,735 $ (593,430) $ (1,189) $ 19,149,116

The District has signed one construction contract for approximately $1,045,000. The amount
remaining to complete the contract is approximately $671,000 as of June 30, 2019.

5. BOND PAYABLE

The Tiburon/Belvedere Wastewater Financing Authority, a joint powers authority, is
governed by the same board of directors as the District’s board of directors. In February 2012,
the Authority issued $10,935,000 of revenue bonds, at a premium of $1,076,031, to provide
financing for the rehabilitation and renovation of the District’s main treatment plant. The
District entered into an installment agreement with the Authority to make installment
payments in amounts sufficient to provide for the payment of all future bond principal and
interest when due. The Authority’s receivable and payable by the District have been
eliminated from the accompanying financial statements as the Authority is deemed a
component unit of the District, and revenue bonds are reported as a long-term obligation of
the District.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. BOND PAYABLE (continued)

The bonds bear interest at rates from 0.25 percent to 5.0 percent, mature each October 1
through 2031, and interest is payable each October 1 and April 1 commencing October 1,
2012. The original bond offering consisted of $5,205,000 in serial bonds maturing in various
amounts through 2022 and $5,730,000 in term bonds maturing October 1, 2031. The serial
bonds maturing on or before October 1, 2021 are not subject to optional redemption prior to
their stated maturity.

Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2022 are subject to redemption at the option of the
Authority from any available source of funds without premium. The term bonds are subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption in various amounts commencing October 1, 2023.

The District has pledged all net revenues of its system. This pledge constitutes a lien on the
District’s net revenues. The pledge and lien exclude any ad valorem property taxes, special
assessments, or special taxes levied for the purpose of paying general obligation bonds,
special assessments, or special tax obligations of the District. In addition, the District is
obligated to generate system net revenues equal to at least 125 percent of all installment
payments and principal and interest payments on any parity debt.

The future debt service on the loan and interest is as follows:;

Fiscal year
ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2020 $ 470,000 $ 330,650 §$ 800,650
2021 480,000 321,150 801,150
2022 490,000 309,000 799,000
2023 505,000 294,075 799,075
2024 520,000 273,500 793,500

2025-2029 3,015,000 940,375 3,955,375

2030-2032 2,195,000 168,375 2,363,375
Total $ 7675000 $ 2,637,125 $ 10,312,125

The District expects that the debt service on the bonds will be less than 35 percent of system
net revenues as defined in the financing documents. Total principal and interest paid during
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $799,950 and $799,050, respectively. During
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 total zone system net revenues as defined were
$2,639,039 and $2,521,225 respectively.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. BOND PAYABLE (continued)

The $808,841 of bond premium will be amortized as follows:

Fiscal year Premium
ending June 30 Amortization
2020 $ 74,748
2021 82,399
2022 87,950
2023 91,253
2024 89,475
2025-2029 321,703
2030-2032 61,313
Tol  $ 808841

Amortization for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $67,438 and $60,460,
respectively.

6. CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN AND RELATED LIABILITIES

Plan Description: Employees of the District are provided with pension benefits under one of
two plans depending on the employee’s hire date. The plans are part of a cost-sharing
multiple-employer public employee pool of similar organizations administered by the
California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). CalPERS acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for participating California public entities. Benefits
provisions and all other requirements are established by State Statute and District Ordinances.
CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for CalPERS. That report may be obtained from their
website, calpers.gov.

Benefits Provided: CalPERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. For employees hired before 2013, retirement benefits are
determined as 2.7 percent of the employee’s single highest year of compensation times the
employee’s years of service. Employees with 5 years of continuous service are eligible to
retire at age 55. Employees hired after 2012, retirement benefits are determined as 2.0 percent
of the employee’s highest 3-year average compensation times the employee’s years of service.
Employees with 5 years of continuous service are eligible to retire at age 60.

Contributions: Contribution requirements of active employees and the Districts are
established and may be amended by the District. Employees hired before 2013 are required to
contribute 8.0% of their annual pay. As a benefit to those employees, the District paid 75% of
the employee required contributions during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. The total
amount paid by the District on behalf of employees totaled $50,401 and $70,268 for the years
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN AND RELATED LIABILITIES (continued)

ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Employees hired after 2012 are required to
contribute 6.25% of their annual pay. The District did not pay any of the required employee
contribution. The District’s contractually required contribution rate for employees hired
before 2012 was 12.21% and 11.68% of wages for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The District’s contractually required contribution rate for employees hired after
2012 was 6.84% and 6.53% of wages for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The rates are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Contributions to the pension plans from the District were $109,652 for the year ended June
30, 2019. Contributions to the pension plans from the District were $847,033 for the year
ended June 30, 2018 of which $740,733 was a one-time payment to reduce overall pension
liabilities. The District’s proportionate share of employer contributions allocated to its
CalPERS account was $363,939 and $360,738 for the measurement years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Pension Liabilities (Asset), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Amounts reflected are aggregate
amounts for both plans as amounts related to post 2012 employees are minor in
comparison to pre-2012 amounts):

At June 30, 2019, the District reported an asset of $264,314 for its proportionate share of the
net pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total
pension asset used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date. The District’s proportion of the net pension liabilities was based on a
projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the
projected contributions of all participating public entities, actuarially determined. At June 30,
2018 and 2017, the District’s proportion was 0.007 percent and 0.015 percent, respectively.

-24 -



SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
6. CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN AND RELATED LIABILITIES (continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District recognized pension expense of
$101,994 and $284,719, respectively. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the

following sources:

As of June 30, 2019

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual eamnings on
pension plan investments

Differences between actual contributions and proportionate
share of contributions

Change in employer proportion
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

As of June 30, 2018

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

$ 6,690
22,748
1,307

630,700
489,656

109,652
740,352 $ 520,401

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
$ 45,345
389,990
95,482
227,850
847,033
1,332,505 § 273,195




SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER S OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
6. CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN AND RELATED LIABILITIES (continued)

The $109,652 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liabilities in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as follows:

2020 $  (17,833)
2021 32,373
2022 93,382
2023 2,377
Total $ 110,299

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Actuarial Cost Method Entry- Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Payroll Growth 2.75%
Salary ncreases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment rate of return 7.15 percent
Mortality Rate Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increase  Contract COLA up to 2.50% until Purchase Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes
15 years of mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP
2016.

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. CALPERS RETIREMENT PLANS AND RELATED LIABILITIES (continued)

determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-
term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash
flows. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound
(geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+
years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-
term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected
rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-
term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single
equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.

Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return

Asset Class (a) Allocation Years 1 - 10 (b) Years 114 (¢)
Global equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real assets 13.0% 3.75% 4,93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%
Total 100%

(a) Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-term Investments;
Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securitics.

(b) An expected inflation 0f 2.0% used for this period.

(c) An expected inflation 0f2.92% used for this period.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. CALPERS RETIREMENT PLANS AND RELATED LIABILITIES (continued)

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilities/Assets to
Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the District’s proportionate share of
the net pensions liability/asset calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as
what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/asset would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) $ 992,373 $ (264,314) $(1,301,689)

In December 2016 CalPERS’ Board of Administration decided to lower the discount rate and
investment rate of return assumptions that are used in the calculation of the net pension
liability. The rates will decrease to 7.00% by the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The impact
on the District’s financial statements will be an increase in the District’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability.

Pension Plans’ Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plans’
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report.

7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description: The District has established a Retiree Healthcare Plan (HC Plan) and
participates in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit retiree healthcare plan, California
Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), a CalPERS program to assist agencies to advance
fund OPEB. Retirees are eligible for the PEMHCA Minimum Benefit if they retire at Age
50+, have 5+ years of CalPERS service, and were enrolled in CalPERS plan upon retirement.
For Retirees Age 55 with five years of continuous, full-time service leading up to retirement,
if the employee was hired before September 1, 2000, the District contributes to the retiree's
HRA 100% of premium up to the maximum Kaiser Basic/ Supplemental Rate for coverage of
the retiree and eligible dependents, less the PEMHCA Minimum benefit. For Retirees Age 55
with five years of continuous, full-time service leading up to retirement who were hired
between September 1, 2000 and July 1, 2017, the District contributes to the retiree's HRA
100% of premium up to the weighted-average of single-member plan premiums, plus 90% of
the weighted-average of the additional premium for the four most commonly selected plans
that cover dependents. Employees hired after July 1, 2017 are eligible for the PEMHCA
minimum health benefit are entitled to minimum contribution. The District makes
contributions based on an actuarially determined rate.

Contributions are invested. The District is responsible for paying monthly OPEB premiums.
The District has the ability to request withdrawals from CERBT to cover current annual
premiums.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

Employees Covered: As of June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, the following current and
former employees were covered by the benefit terms under the HC plan.

Active employees
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 11
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits

Total 20

Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of the Plan members and the District are
established and may be amended by the District. The annual contribution is based on the
actuarially determined contribution. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District’s
contributions were $68,000 in payments to the trust and $54,509 in current year premiums for
retired employees. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District’s contributions were
$65,700 in payments to the trust and $53,670 in current year premiums for retired employees.

Net OPEB Liability: The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and
the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, based on the following actuarial methods and
assumptions.

Discount Rate 7.59%

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases 2.75%. Additional merit-based increases based on CalPERS merit
salary increase tables.

Investment rate of return ~ 7.59%

Mortality Rate Derived from CalPERS OPEB Assumptions model

Pre-Retirement Turnover  Derived from CalPERS OPEB Assumptions model
Healthcare Trend Rate 7.00% m the first year, trending down to 3.84% over 57 years

Discount Rate: The long-term expected rate of return on investments is expected long-term
rate of return on District assets using investment Strategy 1 within the California Employers'
Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) as of the Measurement Date, June 30, 2019, and were
provided by each account's asset managers. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's
fiduciary net position is projected to cover all future OPEB payments. Therefore, the discount
rate was set equal to the long-term expected rate of return.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

The long-term expected rate of return is determined using the long-term rates of return
developed by the CalPERS Investment Office in their report dated May 14, 2018:

Target Compound Arithmetic
Asset Class Allocation Expected Return ~ Volatility  Expected Return

Global equity 59.0% 6.80% 17.00% 8.14%
Fixed income 25.0% 3.10% 7.83% 3.40%
Treasury inflation-protected

securities (TIPS) 5.0% 2.25% 5.46% 2.40%
Commodities 3.0% 3.50% 21.50% 5.71%
Real estate mvestment trusts (REITS) 8.0% 5.50% 17.28% 6.90%
Total 100%
Expected Compound Return (1-10 years) 5.85%
Expected Compound Return (11-60 years) 8.07%
Expected Volatility 11.83%
Expected Time-Weighted Return

Net of Fees (1-60 years) 7.59%

Uses an expected long-term inflation rate of 2.00%

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate: The following
presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower (6.59 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.59 percent) than the
current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.59%) (7.59%) (8.59%)

Net OPEB liability $1,141,823 $ 889,289 $ 796,090

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to changes in the health care cost trend rates: The
following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using a health
care cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the

current rate:
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

(6.00% decrease (7.00% decrease (8.00% decrease
t0 2.84%) t0 3.84%) to 4.84%)

Net OPEB lLiability $ 780,173 $ 889,289 $1,165,534
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: CERBT issues a publicly available financial report that
may be obtained from CalPERS, PO Box 1494, Sacramento, CA 95812.

Changes in the OPEB Liability: The changes in the net OPEB liability for the HC Plan are as

follows:

Balance at June 30, 2017
(Valuation Date June 30, 2016)

Increase (Decrease)

Changes recognized for the measurement period:

Service cost
Interest
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefits payments
Administrative expense
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2018
(Valuation Date June 30, 2017)

Changes recognized for the measurement period:

Service cost
Interest
Changes in assumptions
Contributions - employer
Implicit rate subsidy
Net mvestment income
Benefits payments
Administrative expense
Net changes
Balance at June 30, 2019
(Valuation Date June 30, 2018)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability (a) Net Position (b) Liability (a) - (b)
$ 1,380,635 $ 411,322 969,313
39,129 39,129
87,909 87,909
93,476 (93,476)
43,423 (43,423)
(56,379) (56,379) -
(212) 212
70,659 80,308 (9,649)
1,451,294 491,630 959,664
35,301 35,301
116,967 116,967
(36,351) (36,351)
120,836 (120,836)
(27,041) (27,041)
38,672 (38,672)
(55,136) (55,136) -
(257) 257
33,740 104,115 (70,375)
$ 1,485,034 $ 595,745 889,289

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources: Gains and losses
related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB

expense systematically over time.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. The recognition period is
7.5 years.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB: For the
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $76,786 and
$119,805, respectively. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District reported deferred outflows
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

As of June 30, 2019 of Resources of Resources
Changes in assumptions $ 31,504
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
nvestments 12,129
District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date $ 123,640

Total $ 123,640 $ 43,633

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

As of June 30, 2018 of Resources of Resources
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan $ 13,355
District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date $ 119,370

Total $ 119,370 $ 13,355

The $123,640 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the June 30, 2018 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB
liability during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized
as expense as follows:

2020 $ (8,715)
2021 (8,715)
2022 (8,714)
2023 (5,373)
2024 (4,847)
Thereafter (7,269)
Total $ (43,633)

8. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The District's employees may participate in one 457 Deferred Compensation Program
(Program). The Program is available to all District employees and is entirely voluntary. The
purpose of the Program is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that elect to
participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of
their salary until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds
are paid or otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report
the deferred salary for income tax purposes. The District makes no matching contributions to
the Program.

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit
of the participants. The District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assets
are not the legal property of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District's general
creditors. Market value of the Program assets held in trust by the District's deferred
compensation program at June 30, 2019 amounted to $756,180.

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has
little administrative involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the
assets and related liabilities are not presented in the accompanying financial statements.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters, for which the District carries
insurance. The District is a member of the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority
(CSRMA), a Joint Powers Authority for risk pooling, which provides insurance coverage and
risk management services to its 58 member agencies through its’ coverage programs.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The District participates in CSRMA’s Pooled Liability and Workers’ Compensation
Programs, where each member agency is assessed a deposit based on their ratable exposures.
At each program’s year end, deposits are retrospectively reviewed for all years of
participation, based on actual loss performance of the individual member agencies. If a
member’s losses exceed their deposit, the member is assessed, through a debit on their
renewal invoice, to adjust for this situation. Conversely, if the member’s losses are less than
the collected deposit, a credit is shown on the member’s renewal invoice.

Risk of loss is transferred from the District to CSRMA under the arrangement. CSRMA’s
Pooled Liability Program provides approximately $26 million in coverage to the members
with a combination of reinsurance and excess insurance, with CSRMA retaining the first
$500,000. Excess workers compensation insurance is also obtained through the Authority
covering the first $750,000 in losses. Employer’s coverage for $1 million is purchased by the
Authority. The District maintains a $10,000 liability deductible. The District also participates
in CSRMA’s property insurance program for its buildings and plant with approximately $26
million in insurable values.

Audited condensed financial information for CSRMA is presented below for the year ended
June 30, 2018 (most recent information available):

June 30, 2018
Total Assets $ 25,703,119
Total Liabilities 17,997,369
Total Equity $ 7,705,750
Total Revenues $ 10,453,268
Total Expenditures 13,926,188
Net income $ (3,472,920)

The District paid no material uninsured losses during the last three fiscal years. There have
been no significant reductions in insurance coverage, and there have been no settlements
exceeding insurance coverage in the last three years.

Liabilities of the District are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the

amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported. There were no claims payable as of June 30, 2019.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY/ASSET

AND RELATED RATIOS
for the measurement periods ended June 30

CALPERS Employer Retirement Plan

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Measurement period 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
District's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (0.00274%) 0.0059% 0.0078% 0.0260% 0.0440%
District's proportionate share of the net pension lability (asset) (264,314) 583,347 676,578 1,786,666 2,757,064
District's covered-employee payroll 1,002,415 953,249 856,421 811,997 878,354
District's proportionate share of the net pension lability (asset)

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll (26.37%) 61.20% 79.00% 220.03% 313.89%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 102.85% 94.23% 92.75% 80.16% 69.16%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date, which
was one year prior to the fiscal year end date.

The schedule is presented to iflustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until

a full 10-year trend is compiled, the presented information is for those years for which information is
available.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S
PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
for the measurement periods ended June 30

CALPERS Employer Retirement Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Measurement period 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Actuarially determined contribution 106,300 98,415 165,113 190,004 217,873
Contributions in relation to actuarially determined contributions 847,033 352,863 1,794,175 1,516,679 217,873
Contribution Deficiency (excess) (740,733) (254,448) (1,629,062) (1,326,675) -
Covered payroll 1,002,415 953,249 856,421 811,997 878,354
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 84.50% 37.02% 209.50% 186.78% 24.80%
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation Date: June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll Growth Level percentage of payroll

Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Investment rate of return 7.15 percent
Mortality Rate Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.00% until Purchase Power Frotection

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.50% thereafter

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date, which was one year prior to the fiscal year

end date.

The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the
presented information is for those years for which information is available.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE
NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
for the measurement periods ended June 30

Last 10 Fiscal Years*
Measurement Period 2018 2017
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 35,301 39,129
Interest . 116,967 87,909
Actual and expected experience difference
Change in assumptions (36,351)
Changes in benefit terms
Benefits payments (55,136) (56,379)
Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled (27,041)
Net change in total OPEB liability 33,740 70,659
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 1,451,294 1,380,635
Total OPEB Liability - ending (a) $ 1,485,034 1,451,294
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 120,836 93,476
Implicit Subsidy - employer 27,041
Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled (27,041)
Net investment income 38,672 43,423
Benefits payments (55,136) (56,379)
Administrative expense (257) (212)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 104,115 80,308
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 491,630 411,322
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 595,745 491,630
Net OPEB Liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 889,289 959,664
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 40.12% 33.88%
Covered-employee payroll 849,372 909,928
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 104.70% 105.47%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date, which was one year

prior to the fiscal year end date.

The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year

trend is compiled, the presented information is for those years for which information is available.
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SANITARY DISTRICT NUMBER 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S

OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
for the measurement periods ended June 30
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
Measurement Period 2018 2017
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) $ 108,953 $ 93,476
Contributions in relation to actuarially determined contributions 147,877 93,476
Contribution Deficiency (excess) $ (38,924) $ -
Covered payroll 849,372 909,928
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 17.41% 10.27%
Notes to Schedule:
Actuarial methods and assumption used to set the actuarially determined contributions for the year ended
June 30, 2019 were from the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation.
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percent of pay
Amortization Method/Period Closed period, level percent of payroll, 20 years
Asset Valuation Method Market value
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases 2.75% per year
Investment rate of return 7.59%
Healthcare Trend Rate 7.00% trending down to 3.84%
Retirement Age Derived from CalPERS OPEB Assumptions model
Mortality Rate Derived from CalPERS OPEB Assumptions model
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S
OPEB INVESTMENT RETURNS
for the measurement periods ended June 30
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
Measurement Period 2018 2017
Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, net of investment expense 7.38% 9.57%

The annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses, is the net investment income for the
year divided by the average net position for the year (less investment expenses).

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date, which
was one year prior to the fiscal year end date.

The schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until
a full 10-year trend is compiled, the presented information is for those years for which information is
available.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY ZONE

Operating Revenues:
Sewer service charges
Connection and inspection fees
Maintenance agreements
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Saiaries and benefits
Utilities
Line cleaning and inspection
Supplies (chemicals)
Contracted and professional services
Telephone and internet
Maintenance and repairs
Other operating costs
Monitoring
Other administrative costs
Liability and property insurance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Property taxes
Investment income
Loss on disposal
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Increase in Net Position

Change in Net Position

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Tiburon/Paradise Cove

Paradise Cowe Tiburon Zones Combined Belwedere District Total
$ 89,973 $ 2,613,969 §$ 2,703,942 $ 2,319,967 $ 5,023,909
148,428 110,840 259,268 263,076 522,344
- 53,428 53,428 31,775 85,203
3318 11,072 14,390 8,600 22,990
241,719 2,789,309 3,031,028 2,623,418 5,654,446
38,170 1,084,320 1,122,490 604,204 1,726,694
16,675 130,759 147,434 81,295 228,729
7,215 154,963 162,178 51,175 213,353
2,852 117,642 120,494 68,761 189,255
13,363 97,083 110,446 56,395 166,841
7,622 56,042 63,664 47,043 110,707
10,340 47,649 57,989 31,133 89,122
6,872 50,468 57,340 27211 84,551
17,827 32,020 49,847 19,260 69,107
1,313 43,957 45270 15,020 60,290
888 24,973 25,861 14,733 40,5%4
74,598 1,094,849 1,169,447 386,107 1,555,554
197,735 2,934,725 3,132,460 1,402,337 4,534,797
43,984 (145,416) (101,432) 1,221,081 1,119,649
41,660 1,174,263 1,215,923 - 1,215,923
38 129,037 129,075 175,581 304,656

- (1,189) (1,189) - (1,189)

- (183,836) (183,836) (86,375) (270,211)
41,698 1,118,275 1,159,973 89,206 1,249,179
85,682 972,859 1,058,541 1,310,287 2,368,828
$ 85,682 $ 972,859 $ 1,058,541 $ 1,310,287 $ 2,368,828
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Item #7

From: Robert Pankratz <rpankratz@wulffhansen.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2019 10:30 AM

To: Robin Dohrmann <rdohrmann@sani5.org>

Cc: Tony Rubio <trubio@sani5.org>; Mark Pressman <mpressman@wulffhansen.com>; Robert Pankratz
<rpankratz@wulffhansen.com>; Scott Ferguson <sferguson@joneshall.com>; Josh Anzel <janzel@joneshall.com>
Subject: Update from the financing team

Good Morning Robin,

Attached is an updated financing schedule that reflects the meetings we learned of yesterday including the Finance
Committee meeting on December 12" and the Board meeting on December 19%. We have also contacted a number of
Placement Agents for the bonds. After receiving proposals from them, we are recommending D.A. Davidson to serve as
Placement Agent for this transaction. Their proposal was lower than any of the others and is below what we had
budgeted in our analysis (515,000 vs budget of $20,000).

Additional items that we would like to include in the financing structure include the following:
e We recommend maintaining the existing term of the bonds (12 years) on the refunding bonds to
maximize cashflow savings to the District.
e We also suggest:

o The bonds can be optionally called in 5 years at a premium of 103%. The call premium will
decline each year by 1% - Eg: 103% in 2025, 102% in 2026, 101% in 2027 and 100%
thereafter.

o Coupled with that optional call feature would be the ability for the District to optionally call
up to a maximum of $300,000 of additional bonds each year (over and above normal debt
service) with no call premium, beginning the first year (2021).

o Inaddition to benefiting from substantially iower interest rates from the refinancing, we
feel these call features will afford the District with significant flexibility. The District will
have the option to pay down the bonds faster, or entirely, but is not obligated to pay more
than normal debt service.

We believe the above recommended structure on the refunding bonds will be very attractive to institutional investors
and generate a low interest bid. It also retains desired financial flexibility for the District.

And lastly, as you can see on the attached schedule, we are requesting that the District hold a special board meeting on
January 30" to approve the bond documents. Please poll your Board members regarding this date. We would like to
get the bonds sold while interest rates remain at today’s low, low levels so we can capture as much benefit for the
District as possible.

If you have questions, please let us know. We are available to attend either the Finance Committee meeting or the
Board meeting to serve as a resource to respond to questions from either the Board or the public.

Thank you,
Mark Pressman Rob Pankratz
(415) 202-6680 [Direct] (415) 202-6681 [Direct]
(415) 246-7300 [Cell] (402) 705-2521 [Cell]

mpressinan@wulffhansen.com rpankratz@wulffhansen.com

Please visit our website at http://www vrulffhansen.com/publish/emaildisclosure.html for important disclosures and information about our email policies. Securities
offered through McClurg Capital Corporation. For your protection, please do not transmit orders or instructions by e-mail or include account numbers, Social Security
numbers, credit card numbers, passwords, or other personal information.

Wulff, Hansen & Co. 100 Smith Ranch Road, Suite 330, San Rafacl CA 94903 415-421-8900 Member FINRA/SIPC
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District

Tony Rubio
District Manager
trubio@sani5.org

Robin Dohrmann
Office Manager
rdohrmann@sani5.org

Sanitary District No.5 of Marin County
2001 Paradise Drive

Tiburon, CA 94920

415-435-1501

District Counsel
Ben Stock, Esq.
bstock@bwslaw.com
415-755-2605

Burke, Williams & Sorenson LLP
181 Third Street

San Rafael, CA 94901
415-755-2600

Municipal Advisor
Mark Pressman

mpressman@wulffhansen.com
415-202-6680

Bud Levine
blevine@wulffhansen.com
415-202-6682

Rob Pankratz
rpankratz@wulffhansen.com
415-202-6681
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Josh Anzel, Esq.
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Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation
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San Francisco, CA 94111
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Sanitary District No. 5 of Marin County
2020 Revenue Refunding Loan Agreement
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Date
Oct. 10%
Nov. 14t

Nov. 21%

Dec. 4

Dec. 9th
Dec. 12t
Dec. 19t
Jan. 3™
Jan. 6t

Jan. 14t

Jan.

Jan. 23"

Jan.

Jan 27t

Jan. 28th

Jan 30t
(proposed)

Feb. 11t
Feb. 18t
Feb. 20t

Feb. 21%

As of December 10, 2019

Finance Committee meeting with VJ/ulff, Hansen
Special Board Meeting: Bond Refunding presentation

Board Meeting: Fesolution hiring Bond Cuunsel and Municipal
Advisor and autlhorizing retaining services of a Placement Agent

Municipal Advisor 1o contact Placement Agenis regarding
prospective refinancing

Placement agent recommended to District and joins financing team
Finance committee meeting

Regular Board meeting, Direction given to financing team

1 Draft of legal documents distributed for comment

Placement Agent to distribute RFP to bank investors

Placement Agent receives bid proposals from bank investors, Select
bank investor

All-hands conference call to discuss documents (date and time to be
determined)

2™ Draft of legal documents distributed for comment

Due diligence meeting/call with selected bank investor (date and
time to be determined)

Final legal documents to District for proposed Jan. 30t Special
Board meeting

Interest rate locked and final terms of sale negotiated with bank
investor, Final pricing numbers distributed

Special Board meeting to authorize loan documents and to
authorize District staff to execute documents

Draft closing certificates distributed
Execution package delivered to District
Pre-Close

Close transaction

WuLrr, Hansen & Co.

ESTAILISHED 1831

NOVEMBER
Su Mo Tu We Th FPr Sa
27 28 209 30 31 1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 n 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
DECEMBER
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 10 1 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31 2 3 4
JANUARY
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
20 30 3 1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 m
12 13 14- 5 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31 1
FEBRUARY
Su Mo Tu We Th PFr Sa
26 27 28 20 30 3 1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
10 n 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
MARCH
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 10 N 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
20 30 31 1 2 3 4



Scenario 1: Refunding Bonds with a 12-year term
(matches current term)

“’ULFF, HanseN & Co.
E3TABLISHED 153!



Scenario 1: Sources & Uses and Estimated Bond Debt Service

. . . Debt Service Savings Analysis
Debt Service Savings Analysis
t & a_y . Belvedere Tiburon Wastewater Financing Authority
Belvedere Tiburon Wastewater Financing Authority (Sanitary District No. 5)
(Sanitary District No. 5) 2020 Refunding (2012 Wastewater Revenue Bonds)
fundi
2020 Refunding (2012 Wastewater Revenue Bonds) Etimated New Bonde DAbE S arvice
2020 Private Placement
) Period - i
2020 Private Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service
Pl

acEment 10/1/2020 630,000 2.70% 140,118 770,118
Sources 10/1/2021 560,000 2.70% 191,430 751,430
Par Amount 7,720,000 10/1/2022 575,000 2.70% 176,310 751,310
Total Sources 7,720,000 10/1/2023 595,000 2.70% 160,785 755,785
10/1/2024 610,000 2.70% 144,720 754,720
Uses 10/1/2025 625,000 2.70% 128,250 753,250
Refunding Escrow Deposit - 7,570,647 10/1/2026 640,000 2.70% 111,375 751,375
10/1/2027 660,000 2.70% 94,095 754,095
Estimated Cost of Issuance 149,353 10/1/2028 680,000 2.70% 76,275 756,275
10/1/2029 695,000 2.70% 57,915 752,915
Total Uses 7,720,000 10/1/2030 715,000 2.70% 39,150 754,150
Dated Date 1/29/2020 10/1/2031 735,000 2.70% 19,845 754,845
Delivery Date 1/29/2020 Total: 7,720,000 1,340,268 9,060,268

Numbers were run on November 10, 2019 at current market rates

Numbers were run on November 10, 2019 at current market rates
Allfigures are preliminary, estimoted, and subject to change

All figures are preliminary, estimated, and subject to change

WuLrr, HanseN & Co.
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Scenario 1: Estimated Savings

* Using these assumptions, the District would save
approximately $600,000 over the course of the
next 12 years, or $50,000+ per year.

* The savings would be unrestricted and could be
used as the District sees fit, whether for capital
improvements, facility maintenance, general
expenses, a rainy-day fund, etc.

Net Present Value of Savings: $530,130

‘NULFF, Hansen & Co.
ESTABLISHLD 1831

Proposed
New Debt

Period .
' Service

Ending

'7 IScenario #1-Estimated Cash Flow Savings

Existing
Debt Service

Estimated
Savings

770,118

805,950

751,430 806,350 54,920
751,310 806,650 55,340
755,785 806,500 50,715

754,720 805,500 50,780

753,250 808,250 55,000 |

10/1/2026 751,375 804,500 53,125 |
10/1/2027 754,095 804,500 50,405
10/1/2028% 756,275 808,000 51,725
10/1/2029 | L 752,915 804,750 51,835
10/1/zo.=soi 754,150 805,000 50,850
10/1/2021 754,845 808,500 53,655
L 9,060,268 9,674,450 614,182

Numbers were run on November 10, 2019 at current market rates

All figures are preliminary, estimated, and subject to change



Scenario 2: Refunding Bonds with a 10-year term
(shortening current term)

“’ULFF, HanseN & Co.
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Scenario 2: Sources & Uses and Estimated Bond Debt Service

Debt Service Savings Analysis
Belvedere Tiburon Wastewater Financing Authority
{Sanitary District No. 5)
2020 Refunding (2012 Wastewater Revenue Bonds)
2020 Private
Placement
Sources
Par Amount 7,720,000
Total Sources 7,720,000
Uses
Refunding Escrow Deposit 7,570,647
Estimated Cost of Issuance 149,353
Total Uses 7,720,000
Dated Date 1/29/2020
Delivery Date 1/29/2020

Debt Service Savings Analysis

Belvedere Tiburon Wastewater Financing Authority

Estimated New Bonds Debt Service

Period
Ending
10/1/2020
10/1/2021
10/1/2022
10/1/2023
10/1/2024
10/1/2025
10/1/2026
10/1/2027
10/1/2028
10/1/2029

Total:

(Sanitary District No. 5)
2020 Refunding (2012 Wastewater Revenue Bonds)

2020 Private Placement
Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service
725,000 2.55% 132,334 857,334
700,000 2.55% 178,373 878,373
720,000 2.55% 160,523 880,523
740,000 2.55% 142,163 882,163
755,000 2.55% 123,293 878,293
775,000 2.55% 104,040 879,040
795,000 2.55% 84,278 879,278
815,000 2.55% 64,005 879,005
840,000 2.55% 43,223 883,223
855,000 2.55% 21,803 876,803
7,720,000 1,054,031 8,774,031

Numbers were run on November 10, 2019 at current market rates
All figures are preliminary, estimated, and subject to change

WuLrF, HanseN & Co.
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Numbers were run on November 10, 2019 at current market rates
All figures are preliminary, estimated, and subject to change
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Scenario 2: Estimated Savings

* Using these assumptions, the District would save

approximately $900,000 net over the course of the

next 12 years. This would shorten the term of the 10/1/2020 = SS90 (51.384)
obligation, thus accelerating debt service and wionll w373 806,350 (72.023)
increasing payments by approximately SO e e ey 73873
$75,000/year for the first 10 years, with the total woinll s 206 500 g
glr::jnlzn(??’fﬁn of payments in years 11 and 12 (2030 10/1/2024 ey 505,500 (72.753)
) 10,/1/2025 ' 879,040 808,250 (70,790)

10/1/2026 A 879,278 804,500 (74,778)

* The Savings in 2030 and 2031 would be WAj2027 1 875005 804500 (74,505)
unrestricted and could be used as the District sees e Coms mem (o)
fit, whether for capital improvements, faC|I|t¥ 107/20299 876,80 804750 (72,053)
maintenance, general expenses, a rainy-day fund, 10/1/2030 @ - 805,000 595,000

etc. 10/1/20311 - 808,500 808,500

8,774,031 9,674,450 900,419

Period
Ending

| Proposed
| New Debt
Service

'_:':b:]Sce nario #2: Estimated Cash Flow Savings

Existing
Debt Service

Estimated
Savings

Net Present Value of Savings: 5601,162

Numbers were run on November 10, 2019 at current market rates
All figures are preliminary, estimated, and subject to change

\NULFF, Hansen & Co.
ESTABLISHED 11231 13



Item #8
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-02.

SANITARY DISTRICT NO. 5 OF MARIN COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE USE OF PUBLIC AND PRIVATE
SEWERS AND DRAINS, THE INSTALLATION AND CONNECTION OF
BUILDING SEWERS, THE INSTALLATION OF SEWER LATERALS AND
PUBLIC SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS, PROVIDING PERMITS AND
FIXING FEES FOR THE INSTALLATION AND CONNECTION OF
SANITARY SEWERS, REGULATING THE DISCHARGE OF WATERS AND
WASTES INTO THE PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM, AND PROVIDING
PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS THEREOF.

The Sanitary Board of Sanitary District No. 5 of Marin County, California, does ordain as
follows:

ARTICLE L. DEFINITIONS

Sec. 100. District shall mean Sanitary District No. 5 of Marin County, California.

Sec. 101. Town shall mean the Town of Tiburon

Sec. 102. City shall imean the City of Belvedere.

Sec. 103. County shall mean the County of Marin, California.

Sec. 104. Board shall mean the Sanitary Board of said District.

Sec. 105. District Engineer shall mean the Engineer appointed by and acting for the
Board and shali be a Registered Civil Engineer.

Sec. 106. District Inspector shall mean the Inspector acting for the Board and may
be a contractor hired by the District, the District Inspector or any other individual appointed by
the District Manager.

Sec. 107. District Secretary shall mean the Secretary of the Board.

Sec. 108. Person shall mean any human being, individual, firm, company,
partnership, association, private or public or Municipal Corporation, the United States of
America, the State of California, and any district, political subdivision, governmental agency and

mandatory thereof.
Sec. 109. Permit shall mean any written authorization required pursuant to this or
any other regulation of District.

Sec. 110. Building shall mean any structure or vessel used for human habitation or a

place of business, recreation or other purpose containing sanitary facilities. For the purpose of



Sec. ' Lateral Sewer shall mean the portion of a Sewer lying within a Street
connecting a Building Sewer to the Main Sewer.

Sec. ' Building Sewer shall mean that portion of a Sewer beginning at the
plumbing or drainage outlet of any Building or industrial facility and minning to the property line
or to a Private Sewer.

Sec. , Side Sewer shall mean that portion of any Sewer beginning at the
plumbing or drainage outlet of any Building or industrial facility and terminating at the Main
Sewer and includes the Building Sewer and Lateral Sewer together.

Sec. ‘ Private Sewer shall mean a Sewer serving one or more Buildings or
industrial facilities that is not connected with a Public Sewer. Examples of Private Sewers
include, but are not limited to: septic tanks, cesspools, anaerobic tanks, chemical processes,
privies, privy vaults, seepage pits, and any other facility intended or used for the disposal of
Sewage.

Sec. 127. QOutside Sewer shall mean a Sanitary Sewer beyond the limits of the
District not subject to the control or jurisdiction of District.

Sec. 128. Sewage Treatment Plant shall mean any arrangement of devices and

structures used for treating Sewage.

Sec. 129. Garbage shall include any or all of the following: garbage, swill, refuse,
cans, bottles, papers, vegetable matter, carcasses of dead animals, offal, trash, rubbish and
radioactive waste material.

Sec. 130. Fixture Unit shall mean fixture unit load values for drainage piping and
shall be computed from Chapter 4 of the 2013 California Uniform Plumbing Code adopted
herein.

Sec. 131. Unit shall mean the place of residence for a single family. When property
is improved for multi-family purposes, it shall include the number of Units that the facilities
thereon provide in number facilities for single families. When such improvements are for other
than residential purposes, the number of Units shall be determined by dividing the total number
of persons regularly using or occupying said premises by three. When said property is
unimproved and subdivided, each single lot shall be a Unit. When unimproved property is not



damage to the Public Sewer shall be repaired at the cost of the applicant to the satisfaction of the
District Inspector or District Engineer.

Sec. 608. Protection of Excavation. All excavations for a Side Sewer installation
shall be adequately guarded with barricades or lights so as to protect the public from hazard.
Streets sidewalks, parkways and other property disturbed in the course of the work shall be
restored in a manner satisfactory to the District, the City and the County, or any other person
having jurisdiction thereover.

Sec. ' Maintenance of Side Sewer. Side Sewers shall be maintained by the owner
of the property served thereby.

Sec. ﬁ Lateral Sewer Inspection Upon Connection Permit Application. As part of

any Application for a connection Permit for residential and commercial structures, the owner
shall provide the District with a current report and video, not older than one year, and conducted
by a Licensed Contractor, of the entire Lateral Sewer serving the structure. The report and video
shall include a written and graphic description of the owner’s Lateral Sewer, and a compact disc
containing photographs of any notable features of the Lateral Sewer. Based on the information
contained in the report, the District may require repairs or modifications of the Lateral Sewer.
Sec'l. Events Requiring a Lateral Sewer Inspection — All Properties. A property

owner shall have the Lateral Sewer of his property inspected and provide the District with a
report and video as described in Section 610, and have any necessary repairs to the Sewer Lateral
made, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

O Additions or Improvements. Prior to the issuance of a County,
City, or Town building permit for an addition or new improvement on the real property where
said addition or improvements (or cumulative additions or improvements through multiple
projects over three (3) years) have a value of $50,000 or greater. The District shall notify the
City, Town, and County of this requirement so that issuance of a building permit is conditioned
upon the requirement of a Lateral Sewer inspection and any necessary repairs.

O Transfer of Property Title. Where the sale of any real property with
Sewer improvements is proposed, the seller shall have the Lateral Sewer inspected prior to
transfer of property title. The responsibility for any repair of a Lateral Sewer is an issue between

10



the buyer and the seller. Should the seller fail to have the inspection conducted and any
necessary repairs made prior to the sale of the property, the District shall require the new owner
to conduct an inspection and/or make any necessary repairs to the Lateral Sewer.

' Repair of Main Sewer or Road Resurfacing On or Near Road

Where Lateral Sewer Connects to Main Sewer. Whenever the District is replacing or conducting
a repair of a Main Sewer, or whenever the City, Town, or County is carrying out road
resurfacing, on or near the road where the Lateral Sewer connects to the Main Sewer. When the
work is being carried out by the District, the District will notify owners of the work and the need
for an inspection and any necessary repair so that any remedial work on the Lateral Sewer can be
completed prior to the construction. Where an owner refuses to have the inspection conducted,
the District may conduct an inspection and the owner shall be responsible for the costs of such
inspection. The District shall require the owner to carry out any necessary repairs.

’ Exceptions. The following are exceptions to the requirement for
inspection described above:

' An owner otherwise required to perform an inspection
under Section 611 shall not be required to perform such inspection if the owner (or the owner’s
predecessor-in-interest) has originally installed or has replaced his property’s Lateral Sewer
within the twenty (20) years prior to the date of application for a building permit, listing the
property for sale, or the road work or sewer repair.

w An owner otherwise required to perform an inspection
under Section 611 shall not be required to perform such inspection if the owner has conducted
such inspection and completed any necessary repairs within three (3) years prior to the date the
inspection would otherwise be required.

(v The owner shall provide proof of any prior Lateral Sewer
replacement, inspection, and repair in the form of a certificate, paid bill, or other sufficient
documentation that ensures such prior replacement, repair, or ingpection. The form and content
of the document or proof must be deemed sufficient by the District or its authorized
representative

Sec. 612 Installation of Backflow Check Valve Device. As part of any Application

11
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ALTO SANITARY DISTRICT
P.O. BOX 163, MILL VALLEY. CA_94942; PHONE: (415) 388-3696

DIRECTORS DISTRICT MANAGER
Jenis Bosenko, President Bill Hansell

Tania Kennedy, Secretary Treasurer

Emily Elam

Todd Gates

Marc Nash

12 December 2019 -
o ED

Jason Fried, Executive Officer
Marin LAFCO
1401 Los Gamos Dr, Suite 220 Gapiar T Hn WNo. 3

s Coumy

San Rafael CA 94903 ol Ml

RE: DRAFT Proposal for Selection of Marin LAFCO Special District Representatives

Dear Jason,

Here is the draft outline for the special district selection process that 1 am submitting to the CSDA Marin
Chapter formation committee at our meeting this afternoon. I look forward to hearing any edits and

suggestions:

In order to comply with California Government Code §56332 and facilitate the participation of all the
independent special districts with regards to the selection of two regular and one alternate special district
representatives to Marin LAFCO, the California Special Districts Association Marin Chapter
proposes the following process:

Marin’s Independent Special District Selection Committee shall consist of the presiding officer of the
legislative body of each independent special district or an alternate appointed by the each body. Upon
notification by the Marin LAFCO Executive Officer of a term expiration or vacancy, the Selection
Committee will convene per the timetable minimally required by §56332 to fill the vacancy/vacancies as
described below:

1. When notified, the CSDA Marin Chapter shall initiate the ballot process for special district
members 180 days prior to the pending expiration of the term of a special district member or
immediately upon notification the eligibility of a special district member will end prior to the
expiration of his or her term.

2. The CSDA Marin Chapter shall initiate the ballot process by emailing each independent special
district a Call for Nominations including a schedule of the selection process and a copy of this
policy. Nominations must be submitted in writing via email by special district governing boards
within 60 days of the date of the Call for Nominations. The submittal of a nomination must include
a statement of the candidate's qualifications.

3. Within five working days after the close of the nomination period, the CSDA Marin Chapter shall
email a ballot to each independent special district. The distribution of ballots shall include a

statement of qualifications for each candidate.

Page 1 0of2



ALTO SANITARY DISTRICT
P.O. BOX 163, MILL VALLEY, CA 94942: PHONE: (415) 388-3696

4. The Marin LAFCO Executive Officer shall call for a meeting of the Independent Special
District Selection Committee to be held not less than 60 days after the distribution of ballots.
Selection Committee meetings shall be held concurrent with CSDA Marin Chapter meetings
(i.e. at the same location and either immediately before or after the CSDA Marin Chapter
meeting.) Per §56332(a), members representing a majority of the eligible districts shall constitute
a quorum.

5. At the Independent Special District Selection Committee meeting, in-person ballots will be
collected and tallied with all ballots sent by email. A majority of independent special districts must
cast ballots to select a special district member. Selection shall e made by majority of votes cast
and a majority of independent special districts in Marin County.

6. Ballots cast by each special district must bear the signature of the district's presiding officer. If the

presiding officer is unavailable, the district board may authorize another member of the board to
cast the district's vote.

7. All ballots and other records of each selection process shall be retained in the Marin LAFCO
office for at least four years and shall be immediately available for public inspection.

8. When more than two candidates are nominated, the ballot form shall provide for selection by
majority of votes cast through an "instant runoff* as follows:

a) Each district casting a vote shall rank the candidsates in order of their preference. Completed
ballots should indicate a "1" next to their first choice, a "2" next to their second choice, a "3"
next to their third choice, etc.

b) In counting the votes by the Selection Committee, all first choice votes are counted. If any
candidate receives over 50 percent of the first choice votes, that candidate is selected as special

district member.

c) Ifno candidate receives a majority, then the candidate with the fewest "1" votes is eliminated.
The ballots of the supporters of the eliminated candidate are then transferred to whichever of
the remaining candidates they marked for their second choice. This process shall be continued
until one candidate receives a majority and is selected as special district member.

9. Should a vacancy occur during a special district member's term of office, a new appointment shall
be made for the unexpired term of the special district member or alternate member according to

the process above.

Sincerely,

[ ]

Bill Hansell
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Marin County Special Districts Association

A Chapter of the

California Special Districts Association

Approved:
Amended:
Amended:
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MARIN COUNTY SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION
BY-LAWS

(Approved at Annual Meeting lDecember 9, 2019b _____________ - 'Lcommmud [HA2]: To Be updated

ARTICLY I: NAME. PURPOSE and OBJECTIVES

The name of this Chapter shall be the Marin County Special Districts Association,

This Chapter is an affiliate of the State office of the California Special Districts Association and
hereinafter is referred to as the Marin Chapter.

These Chapter bylaws are intended to supplement and be consistent with the California Special Districts
Association bylaws, and shall serve to guide the Jocal activities of this Chapfer.

Section 1.2 ose

The purpose of this Organization is to propose and advocate constructive means for the improvement
and functioning of Special Districts within the County of Marin, State of Califomnia, and to assist
such Special Districts and their governing bodies to provide a more effective and efficient
govemment at the closest level to the citizens of Marin County that will result in benefit to the

public.
Section 1.3 Objectives
The objectives of the Marin County Special Districts Association shall be:
A. To provide a local forum for member districts to discuss and consider issues of
importance to special districts.
B. To establish a communication network among member districts, other chapters, and
other local governmental agencies.
C. To camry out workshops, educational seminars and programs of mutual interest and
benefits to member districts.

D. To make recommendations regarding policy, programs, services and legislation to the
Board of Directors of the California Special Districts Association.

E. To inform the public about the purpose and benefits of local special district
government.

F. To catry out joint studies which benefit the special districts in the Chapter.

G. To serve as the forum for LAFCO Special District Selection Committee.

ection 1.4 A tive Office

The administrative cffice for the transaction of the business of the Marin County Special Districts
Association Chapter is to be the office of the President of the Chapter. The Chapter Executive
Committee is granted full power and authority to change the administrative office from one
Tocation to another within Marin County and such change shall not require an amendment of these

bylaws.



ARTI :
ion 2.1, Qualification for membershipy _______ _______________

A. Regular Membets shall be Independent Special Districts which are agencies within
the County of Marin, State of California, for the local performance of governmental
proprietary functions within limited boundaries. Special District does not include the
State, the County, a City, or a School District.

regular members. Associate members shall not have the right to vote, nor shall they
serve as officers or as members of the Board of Directors of the Association.

Section 2.2 Maintenance of i

The Marin County Special Districts Association shall maintain a list of all mermbers and shall
provide an updated list to the California Special Districts Association at least anmually.

Section 2.3 Application for Membership

Application for membership in the Marin Ceunty Special Districts Association shall be by letter
and payment of annual dues. The letter shall inelede:
A. Type of membership regaested.
B. Name, adiiress, telephone numbet. @mail, ¢r fax of the applicant
C. Name of individual who will saive as representative and altemate from the
applicant.
D. Special districts must provide its primary functions and its enabling legislation
under state law.
E. Speciel districts must provide names of the current governing board members
and manager.
B. Special districts must provide a resolution by the governing board requesting
membership.
G. If applicant is from a non-special district, they must submit a statement of
interests and purposes in common with the Chapter.

The application for membership and dues should be sent to the Administrative Office as stated in
Article I, Section 4 of these bylaws. The BExecutive Committee of the Chapter may appoint a
Membership Committee to review requests for membership. The Membership Committes may
request additional information from the applicant. Upon completion of review, the Membership
Committee shall make a recommendation to the general membership, A quorum of the regular
membership will approve or disapprove the application upon a majority vote.

Section 2.4 Termination of Membership

Any member in arrears in the payment of ducs for a period of three months (90
days) after said dues are due and payable shall be notified in writing by the
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Secretary/Treasurer of such arrearage, and one month (30 days) thercafter, if such
dues shall have continued unpaid, such member shall automatically cease to be a
member of the Association and shall not be restored to membership withont
making written application for reinstatement to the Board of Directors,

Section 2.5 Meetin; the Board

A. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called at least
quarterly by the President at any location within the County of Marin.

B. Special meetings of the Board of Directors for any purpose or purposes
may be called at any time by the Presideat, or, in the absence or refusal
of the President to act, by any three (3) Directors. Notice of the time and
place of the special meeting shall be given personally to each Director
or sent to each Director by mail or other form of written
communication, charges prepaid, addressed to the address shown in the
records of the Association, at least three (3) working days prior to the
meeting.

Section 2.6 Meetings of the Members:

A,  The annual meeting of members shall be held each year at such time
and place as shall be determined by the Board of Directors. Written
notice of the anmual meeting shall be mailed or emailed by the
Secretary/Treasurer to all members at least thirty (30) days prior to
the date of such meeting.

B.  Special meetings of members may be called at any time by the
President or by a majority of the Directors or Members. Actual
writtén notice of such Special Meetings shall be received at least
forty-cizht (48) hours before the time set for said meeting.

C.  The Chapter may adopt Rules of Order to govern the meetings of the
members insefar as such rules are ot inconsistent or in conflict with
these Bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation for the State office of
the California Special Districts Association,

D.  Any active member of the Chapter may place an item on the agenda
for future meetings. The item must be submitted in writing to the
President at least two weeks prior to the meeting. Emergency items
may be added to the agende with less notice when approved by the

President prior to the meeting.

E.  Each member district shell provide insurance that covers the member
district’s employees while engaged in Chapter business. There shall
be no liability assumed by the agency hosting any meetings.

ARTICLE 3: VOTING RIGHTS
Section 3.1. Querum



A. A majority of the authorized number of Directors shall be necessary to
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or
decision done or made by a majority of the Directors present at a
meeting duly called, at which a quorum is present, shall be regarded as
an act of the Board of Directors.

B. A quorum for all meetings of the membership shall consist of (50) percent
plus one (1) of the Chapter’s regular membership who are in good
standing present at any meeting where a notice and agenda have been
mailed or emailed not less than (7| days in advance of the meeting dateto _ _ - Commented [HASI: Nesds toaerce with 25 Dabove )

all member district..
Section 3.2. Rezular Membership Voting Rights
A. [Bach regular member shall be entitled to.one vote on all matters brought before the_ ____ — . ~{ Commented [HAGI: Does one member one vote conflict
membership for vote. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, authorize the voting with voting reps below

upon any issue by written ballot mailed or emailed to each regular member. Such
authorization shall specify the time and date when such written ballot must be received
by the Secretary/Treasurer of the Association. A simple majority vote of all members
voting shall be necessary to carry any matter voted upon, except changes to the By-
Laws, which shall require a 2/3 vote of all members voting as provided in|Article VIL] ___ _ { Commented [HAT}: check ]

B. Official Voting Representative
The goveming body of each regular member district shall designate, in writing, to the
Chapter Secretary, one representative who shall exercise the district’s right to vote, and
one alternate who shall have the right to vote in the absence of the assigned voting
representative. The vote of the district shall be cast by the designated representative of the
district or the alternate member of the district.

If several members of a special district are in attendance, and no designated voting
representative has been selected, they shall select one representative for voting purposes
which may include a member of a Board of Directors or an administrator from a member

district.

C. EProxy Voteg
Proxy votes shall not be permitted.

D. Assodiate Members Votes

Partner members shall not have the right to vote on any matter before the Marin County
Special Districts Association.

Section 3.3 Member in Good Standing

Any independent special district member that has paid their annual dues to both the
State office of the California Special Districts Association and the Chapter shall be
entitled to vote as a regular member in good standing. Likewise, any member
district that has not paid their annual dues shall not be in good standing and shall
not be entitled to vote on matters before the Marin County Special Districts
Association,



Associate members that have paid their annual dues to the Chapter are in good
standing and, while not allowed to vote on any issues, are able to participate in the
operations and activities of the Chapter.

Section 3.4 Wri Ballots

The Chapter Executive Committee may, in its discretion, authorize the voting upon
any item by written ballot. The ballot must be mailed to each regular membe:{ 14 . '[_Commmd [HABJ: Any # can be antered here

days in advance of the voting deadline. The ballot must specify the item, the time
and the date when snch written ballot must be returned to the President of the

Chapter.
A 3 ER FINANC

Section 4.1. Annual Does

Annual dues shall be due and payable on/ar before the first day of March of
each calendar year. Any member found to be delinquent in payment of dues for

more than| 2 months shall cease to be a member of the Chapter., - { commented HAS]: Choosea s
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New members shall pay their annual dues at the time they are approved for
membership in the Association, but new members' dues for the initial year shall
be pro-rated as of the date an application is approved.

The Board of Directors shall adopt the annual dues structure for Member
Districts and Associate Members to meet the financial requirements of the
Association by November 1 of each subsequent calendar year.

Section 4.2 Budpet
The Executive Committee shall determine and reconmunend the annual budget, upon

which the annual dues shall be based.

Section 4.3 Additlonat Fands

Any additional funds required by the Chapter in the conduct of its routine business shall
be raised on a vote by a majority of regular members at a regular and properly noticed

meeting. .

Assessments for specified and approved purposes may be levied on the membess, and
membess shall be subject to or liable for the payment of any assessment or levy, in
addition to the payment of regular dues, upon approval of such assessment by 2/3 of the
Regular Membership at a regular and properly noticed mesting.

Section 4.4 Chapter Liabilit

Neither CSDA nor a member of the Marin County Special Districts Association is
individually or personally liable for the debt, liabilities or cbligations of the Marin
County Special Districts Association.

Section 4 ual Revie
An annual review of all receipts and disbursements during the previous year showing the
opening and closing balances shall be prepared by the Treasurer or 2 designee. Copies of
the review shall be available to all Chapter members and filed with the President of the

Chapter.



ARTICLE 5: CHAPTER ADMINISTRATION

tion 5. cers

{The Board of Directors of the Association shall consist of five Directors, each of
whom shall be a member of the governing board of a member special district .}| ______

The officers of the Marin County Special Districts Association shall be a President,
Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer and Immediate Past President.

The President and Vice President of the Association shall be elected by the Board of
Directors, and the Secretary/Treasurer shall be appointed by the Board.

The President may appoint additional officers and committee chairperson as may be
necessary to carry out the business of the Chapter.

IFor the orderly and efficient conduct of duties, the Chapter, by majarity vote of the
regular membership, may appoint a specified member district to serve as the Secretary
and/or Treasurer. If necessary, the Chapter may choose to designate an associate

Section 5.2 T

Each officer shall serve for a term of 2 year(s).
Any officer may be re=glected to succeed her- or him-self:

Each officer can hold only one office at a time but may rotate from afice to office if
elecied by the regular membership.

Each officer shall hald bis office until s/he resigns, is disqualified to serve or until
her/his successor shall be elected or appointed.

ection 5.3 tion for Office

Bach officer shall, at the time of elections, at the time of office and throughout the term
of office, be a representative of a member district.

Each officer must represent a district deemed to be in good standing.

No member district shall have more than one representative from the district serve as an
officer of the Chapter at the same time.

Section 5.4 Nomination and Election of Qﬁgg[ﬁ
The Chapter President shall activate the’Nominating Committee at the (month)

meeting. The Nominating Coramittee may be comprised of

both regular and associate members.

The Nominating Committes shall present their nominations at the (month)
meeting. The Nominating Committee shall also accept
nominations from the floor at that time.

—
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At the (month) membership meeting, any member through
its designated representative may nominste a qualified member from the floor for office
to be filled at the election. If such a nominee is elected, the mdividual shall be eligible
to take office only after filing with the Chapter a copy of a motion or resolution adopted
by the Board of Directors of the individual's district supporting such an election.

After accepting any fixther nominations from the floor, the Nominating Committee will
conduct the election. The candidates receiving a majority of votes shall be considered

elected.

The newly elected officera shall take office on (month/day) . ] _. -~ | Commentad [HA12]: This sample language seems an
opposite structure tothe 2006 language below. Which
does tha Chapter wish ta select? 1

Directars shall be elected at the annual meeting of members. The Nominations
Committee, appointed pursuant to these By-Law shall submit the names of at
least as many persons as there are positions open for the Board of Directors,
with the notice of the annual meeting of members as provided in 'ARTICLE 1,
SECTION 5, Bach regular member district, through its tepresentative, shall have_ - < Commented HA13]: check ]
the right to nominate candidates from the floor for the Board of Directors.

The candidates receiving the greatest number of votes shall be elected as
Directors. Voting may be done by secret ballot at the annual meeting.

Section 5. ualification

All duly elected Directors shall serve in such capacity and term of office as
provided for herein, unless such Direstor shall become disqualified for further
service upon the occurrence of any of the following:

A. |{Where such Director coases to be a member of the governing body of a

member Special Distdct._  _ _ _ _ ______ o __._. e ‘[Comme;ud n-lM:l]: eth::’m Chapter wish 1o restrict
Chapter Directors to officials?

B. Where such Director shall resign.

C. Where such Director shall fail to attend three (3) consecutive meetings
of the Board of Directors of the Association without leave of absence,
the office as a Director may be declared vacant by a vote of a majority
of all of the remaining Directors.

D. Should the Director’s organization cease to be a member of the Association,

Section 5.6 Vacancies
Where a vacancy exists, the Board of Directors will fill the vacancy by appointment

until that term expites.

In the event that any officer at the time of taking office, or during the term of office, is
no longer qualified to serve as an officer of the Chapter, the ofﬁcc shall become vacant

and said vacancy shall be filled in 2 manner provided in Sectionj5.4, ___________ _ -+ *{ Commented [HA15): Confirm # algnment when
document is completed

In the event of a vacancy in the office of President, the Vice President shall assume all
presidential duties.



The assumption of the office of President by the Vice President shall constitute a
vacancy in the office of the Vice President. The new vacancy shall in tumn be filled by a
nomination and vote of the membership present at the next regular Chapter meecting.

The Vice President moving into the office of President or elected to complete an
unexpired teem of Vice President may be elected by the membership to a subsequent full
term.

A vacancy in the office of Secretary or Treasurer shall be filled by nomination and
election at the next regular meeting.

Section 5.7 Removal of Officers

Officers of the Marin County Special Districts Association may be removed, with ar
without cause, at any meeting of the general membership by the affirmative vote of a
majority of tho membership,

Section 5.8 Powers

The business and affitirs of the Association shall be controlled by the
Board of Directors. Without prejudice to such general powers, but subject
to the same limitations, it is kéreby expressly declared that the Directors
shall have the following pewers, to wit:

FIRST: To appoint and remove all officers, agents and employees of the
Association and to presczibe such powers and duties for any office,
agent, and employee that shall be consistent with law or the By-
Laws.

SECOND: To conduct, manage, and control the affairs and business of the
Association and to make such rules and regulations therefore that are
consistent with law or the By-Laws.

THIRD: To designate any place within the County of Marin for the conduct
of meetings; to change the administrative office of the Association
for the transaction of its business from one location to anather in
any place within the County of Marin.

ARTI 6: D S OF CHAPTER OFFICERS

ection 6. dent
The President shall preside at all Chapter and Executive Committee meetings. The
President shall have the power to appoint any Committee and Committee Chairman
deemed advisable or authorized by a vote of the Bxecutive Committee or the
membership., The President shall provide a meeting agenda to the Secretary or their
designee for mailing to the membership and shall perform any other duties as may be
required of the office. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all Chapter
committees except the Nominating Committee. The President shall be the official



spokesperson for the Chapter and the official Chapter representative to all California
Special Districts Association meetings.

Section 6.2 Vice President
The Vice President shall pexform all the duties of President in the absence of the
President. It shall be the Vice President's responsibility to assist the President in every
way possible to further the goals of the Chapter. The Vice President shall be elevated to
the office of President at the end of their term and shall also be an ex-officio member of

all Chapter Committees except the Nominating Committee.

Section 6.3 Secretary
The Secretary shall keep or caused to be kept at the principal office of the Chapter a

camplete record of all membership end all meetings. The Secretary will prepare or
caused to be prepared and mail, email or fax an agenda to the membership prior to the
next meeting and the minutes of the previous meetings

Section 6.4 Treasurer
The Troasurer shall collect and keep an accurate accounting of all Chapter funds and

financial transactions. The Treasurer shall disburse funds as directed by the Executive
Committee. The Treasurer will prepare a financial report for every Chapter meeting.

Two (2) signatures shall be required from any member of the Executive Committee to
disburse Chapter funds. It shall be the responsibility of the Treasurer to obtain and
maintain the authorized signatories cards required on the Chapter bank account(s)
whenever there is a change in Chapter officers.

Prior to leaving office, all financial records and a complete statement of receipts and
disbursements shall be submitted to the President.

Section 6.5 Immediate Past President

The Immediate Past President shall serve as the Parliamentarian of the Chapter and shall
make final decision on gl matters of parliamentary procedure when called upon to do so
by the President.

ection tive Commiitee
The Executive Committee shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary,
Treasurer and Immediate Past President.

It is the purpose of the Bxecutive Committee to meet and provide leadership to the
Chapter on issues requiring policy decisions. The Executive Committee may take
positions on behalf of Marin County Special Districts Association under certain
emergency circumstances such as a request from the State office of the California
Special Districts Association or if (number) Chapter members make a
recommendation for a Chapter position and time is of the essence. If the Executive
Committee takes & position on behalf of the Chapter, a notice of said position will be
distributed to Chapter members within 72 hours and be presented for ratification at the
next regularly scheduled Chapter meeting.

Each member of the Executive Committee shall have one vote.



At the annual meeting of each year, the Executive Committee shall preseat an audit of
fund expenditures. The Executive Committee shall also recommend the anoual budget
and Chapter goals and objectives. The President may convene the Executive Committee
as necessary. Minutes of any Executive Committee mesting will be presented to the
Chapter membership at the next regular meeting.

Section §.7. Removal of officers

Officers may be removed with cause at any meeting of the Board of Directors by
the affirmative vote of 8 majority of all of the Directors.

CLE 7; CHAPTER CQ TEES

Section 7.1 Standing Committees

The following committees are established as permanent standing committees of the
Marin County Special Districts Association. Committee members inay include both
regular and partner members. The chairperson and members shall hold office until
replaced or changed by the Chapter President.

A. Nomjnating Committee

The Nominating Committee shall consist of three members. Menibers are
appointed by the Chapter Pregident at the (month) regular meeting
and shall present their nominations for officers at the (month)

—  ____meeting. The Nommating Committee shall conduct and oversee

the Chapter elections.

B. Legisiation Committee
The Legislation Committee shall receive, review and make recommendations on

all legislation of interest to the Chapter membership that is presented for enactment
during the state legislative sessions.

C. Local Government Committee

The Local Government Committee shall maintain liaison with city governments,
county govemnment and other organizations by tacking and reporting to the
Chapter related issnes and activities. This committes shall further be responsible to
facilitate the special district selection process for the purpose of LAFCo.

Section 7.2 Other Chapter Committees

The President may appoint committees from time to time as may be determined
to be necessary for the proper operation of the Association. The President shall



likewise designate the Chairperson of all such committees, who, together with the
members of the Committees, shall serve at the pleasure of the President.

Committees shall not commit Chapter funds without prior appraval from the

Executive Committee.
ARTICLE 8: ON!
Section 8.1 State ce alifornia Districts Association

The Marin County Special Districts Association shall be a separate legal entity in Marin
in support of the purposes and in cooperation with the activities of the State office of the
California Special Districts Association.

The Marin County Special Districts Association (MCSDA) will encourage each of its
regular and associate members (o become a member of the California Special Districts
Association (CSDA). At least one member of the MCSDA must be a dues-paying
member of the CSDA.

ARTI 9:A MENTS TO CHAPTER BY-LAWS

Section 9.1 Notific Chany
The Marin County Special Distiicts Association shall have the power at any time to
alter, amend or revisc these Bylaws.

before the next -~ Commented [HAT6]: Any # may be input ]

Section 9,3 Voting Requirements

Voting by the regular membership is required for changes to the bylaws.

Any alteratien, amendment or revision to the bylaws require a two thirds (2/3) vote of
the Chapter membership at a duly noticed meeting to implement any proposed bylaw

change.

Certificate of Chapter Secretary:
1, the undersigned, do hereby certify:
(1) That I am the duly elected Secretary of the Marin County Special Districts

Association, and
. { commented HA17: Fill when all other changas are j

(2) That the foregoing Bylaws, comprising of {(pumber) R complete




pages, constitute the Bylaws of said Chapter as duly adopted at a meeting of its
membership.

In Witness whereof, I hereunto subscribe my name this (date) of (month)
s (year) .
(Signature of Secretary)
(Typed Name of Chapter Secretary)

Therefore, any conflict between Cbapter bylaws and California Special District
Association bylaws shall be resolved in favor of the CSDA bylaws. Any article or
section not expressly cited herein shall be read as the CSDA articles or section without

maodification.
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November 15, 2019

Robin Dohrmann

Office Manager

Sanitary District No. 5
2001 Paradise Drive
Tiburon, California 94920

Re: Sanitary District No. 5 GASB 75 OPEB Valuation as of June 30, 2018

Dear Ms. Dohrmann:

At your request, we completed an actuarial valuation of the retiree health and welfare benefits as of June
30, 2018, for the Sanitary District No. 5. Please use the information in this report for your financial
statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. This valuation is based on input from the District and
from CalPERS, as well as our understanding of GASB Statement No. 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” (GASB 75).

Please note that we have changed the measurement date and report date relationship in this report. In the
prior report, performed by North Bay Pensions LLC, the measurement date was one year prior to the report
date. In this report, the measurement and report dates are the same. Therefore, the period between the
measurement date in the prior report and this report is two years, and the amounts recorded in this report
reflect two years' of service cost, interest, benefit payments, and implicit subsidy credits.

We greatly appreciate your business. If you have any questions, please feel free to call us at (415)
801-5987.

Best Regards,

e T Baiteo

Roger T. Burton, FSA, FCA, MAAA

Corporate Solutions for the Modern World
Heaithcare * Pension * Valuations » Life & Disability « P&C * Financia! Reporting

Risk Management » Reinsurance » M&A ¢ Expert Witness
DUNS: 079861610 CAGE: 7ECB3 CA Supplier: 1798304
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Executive Summary

Overview

Purpose of the Report

Precision Actuarial prepared this report to meet employer financial accounting requirements under GASB
Statement No. 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”
(GASB 75), issued in June 2015. This report includes information with respect to the obligation to provide
future retiree health and welfare benefits for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.

Valuation Date: June 30, 2019
Measurement Date: June 30, 2018
Report Date: June 30, 2019

Application to Financials

The District should use the liabilities and assets measured as of June 30, 2018, for its June 30, 2019,
liabilities and assets, and it should use the expense for the measurement period ending June 30, 2018, as
its expense in its financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2019.

This report provides assets, liabilities, and expenses for use in the District's 2019 and 2020 financial
reports. If significant changes, including to the discount rate, occur up to one year after the measurement
date, a new valuation may be necessary.

The report also provides the actuarially determined contributions for funding purposes for reporting for the
fiscal years ending June 30 for 2019 and 2020. The District makes its contributions in the same fiscal year
in which it reports the contributions.

We recommend that the District have an actuary provide an updated report for the June 30, 2020, financial
statements using updated benefit payments, assets, and discount rate. However, barring significant
changes, this is optional. Please confer with your auditor for guidance.

Changes Since the Prior Valuation

This valuation is a full valuation. We updated:

» Census

» Benefit payments and Contributions

* Assets

* Premium & Cost of Care

« Discount Rate from 6.50% to 7.59%

» Payroll Growth Rate from 3.00% to 2.75% and Salary Merit Scale

Because a different actuary estimated the OPEB liability and service cost as of the measurement date of
July 1, 2017 (equivalent to June 30, 2017), for the July 1, 2018, report date, we conducted the following
procedure:

« Determined the liability as of the valuation date of June 30, 2019, using the above changes.

» Estimated the liability as of a measurement date of June 30, 2018, rolling back the values from the
valuation date using the same assumptions.

» Attributed the difference between the liability estimated by the prior actuary and the liability under our
estimation methods to the changes in assumptions. Some of the changes are changes in experience, due to
changes in the census and premiums, but we are unable to break out the amount due to changes in
experience with the information that we have. Because changes in experience and changes in assumptions
are amortized using the same interest rate and period, whether these amounts are split apart or not has no
net effect on the results.

Govlnvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc. 11/15/2019 Page | 1



Executive Summary

Overview

Actuarial Certification

Our determinations reflect the provisions and methods prescribed by GASB 75. In preparing this report, we
relied on employee census, plan design, premium rates, and administrative fees provided directly or indirectly
by the plan sponsor, and demographic assumptions provided by CalPERS. CalPERS' actuaries set the premium
rates using community rating. We did not attempt to verify that the community-rated premium rates represent
the true cost of claims and administrative fees.

We based the results in this report on this information, along with the actuarial assumptions and methods used
herein. In our opinion, the assumptions used represent reasonable expectations of anticipated plan
experience. We reviewed the census information for reasonableness, but we did not audit it.

Actuarial computations under GASB 75 fulfill employer accounting and financial reporting requirements. The
calculations are consistent with our understanding of GASB 75. Determinations for purposes other than
meeting employer financial accounting requirements may be significantly different from the results in our
report. Accordingly, additional determinations may be necessary for other purposes, such as judging benefit
security at termination.

No third-party recipient of Precision Actuarial's work product should rely solely on Precision Actuarial's work
product. Any third-party recipient should engage qualified professionals for advice appropriate to their own
needs.

There is no relationship between Precision Actuarial, its owners, subcontractors, or staff; Govinvest; or the
Sanitary District No. 5 beyond the contractual services that we perform for the Sanitary District No. 5.

On the basis of the foregoing, we hereby certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the report is
complete and accurate and that we prepared it in accordance with generally recognized and accepted
actuarial principles and practices which are consistent with the applicable "Actuarial Standards of Practice"
and "Actuarial Compliance Guidelines" as promulgated by the American Academy of Actuaries.

The undersigned is a member of the American Academy of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of
the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion contained herein.

Roger T. Burton, FSA, FCA, MAAA Christian Boughner, ASA, MAAA
Chief Actuary Consulting Actuary

Govinvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc. 11/15/2019 Page | 2



Executive Summary

Accounting Summary

A summary of the key valuation results fotlows.

Valuation Date:
Measurement Date:
Report Date:

Present Value of Future Benefits

Active Employees

Retirees
Total Present Value of Future Benefits
Total Present Value of Future Normal Costs
Total OPEB Liability (TOL)

OPEB Liability

Active Employees

Retirees
Total OPEB Liability (TOL)
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP)
Net OPEB Liability (NOL)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB
Liability

Covered-Employee Payroll

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll

Measurement Period
Reporting Period

Expense

+

Actual Projected
June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019
June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020

S 863,699 S 919,839

835,908 977,729
1,699,607 1,897,568
214,573 348,743

i 1,485,034 $ 1,548,825

S 649,126 S 571,096

835,908 977,729
1,485,034 1,548,825
595,745 700,343

$ 889,289 3 848,482

40.12% 45.22%

S 826,639 ] 849,372
107.6% 99.9%
2017-2018 2018-2019
2018-2019 2019-2020

S 107,780 $ 103,211

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), End of Year* 108,953 107,208
Net Position Chart
TOL
TOL
$1,485,034 $1,548,825
NOL
i $848,482

$889,289

FNP
$19,924,223

2019 (Actual)

FNP

$22,642,331

2020 (Projected)

*The Actuarially Determined Contribution includes the implicit subsidy. It is not the amount that the
District contributes directly to the fund. See page 16 for the District’s direct contribution.

Govinvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc. 11/15/2019
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Executive Summary

Reconciliation of Change in the Total OPEB Liability from Prior Report

A reconciliation of the changes to the Total OPEB Liability since the prior valuation report follow.

Total OPEB Liability as of Measurement Date June 30, 2017

Service Cost
Interest Cost

Changes in Methodology, Census, and Assumptions

Benefit Payments
Implicit Subsidy Fulfilled
Total OPEB Liability as of Measurement Date June 30, 2018*

Service Cost
Interest Cost

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience

Changes in Assumptions
Other Assumption Changes
Benefit Payments
Implicit Subsidy Fulfilled
Total OPEB Liability as of Measurement Date June 30, 2019

*Estimated using Census & Assumptions for the Valuation Date of June 30, 2019.

Govinvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc.

11/15/2019

$ 1,451,294

35,301

116,967
(36,351)
(55,136)
(27,041)

$ 1,485,034

36,272
112,252

(55,640)
(29,093)

$ 1,548,825
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Accounting Information

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Measurement Date: June 30, 2018
Report Date: June 30, 2019

Assets
Cash and Deposits 5 -
Securities Lending Cash Collateral -

Total Cash -
Receivables:

Contributions -

Due from Broker for Investments Sold -

Investment Income (Interest on Investments) -

Other -

Total Receivables -
Investments:
Domestic Fixed Income Securities -
Domestic Equities
Investment Funds 595,745
International Equities -
Real Estate -

Total Investments 595,745
Total Assets S 595,745
Liabilities
Payables:
Investment Management Fees S -

Due to Broker for Investments Purchased -
Collateral Payable for Securities Lending -

Other -
Total Liabilities S -
Net Position Restricted for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions S 595,745
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Accounting Information

Statement of Changes to the Fiduciary Net Position

Measurement Date:
Report Date:

Additions
Investment Income:
Net Appreciation in the Fair Value of Investments
Interest and Dividends
Less Investment Expense, Other than from Securities Lending
Net Income from Investing, Other than from Securities Lending
Securities Lending Income
Less Securities Lending Expense

Net Income from Securities Lending
Net Investment Income (a)

Contiibutions:
Employer — District’s Contribution
Employer — Implicit Subsidy
Employee

Total Contributions (b)

Total Additions (c) = (a) + (b)

Deductions
Benefit Payments
Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled
Administrative Expense

Total Deductions (d)

Net Increase in Net Position = (c) - (d)

Net Position Restricted for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions

Beginning of Year*
Net Increase in Net Position
End of Year

Govinvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc. 11/15/2019

Actual

June 30, 2018
June 30, 2019

Projected
June 30, 2019

June 30, 2020

S 38,860 S 37,107
(188) (215)

38,672 36,892

S 38,672 S 36,892
$ 120,836 123,640
27,041 29,093

S 147,877 152,733
S 186,549 189,625
S 55,136 S 55,640
27,041 29,093

257 294

S 82,434 S 85,027
$ 104,115 104,598
S 491,630 595,745
104,115 104,598

S 595,745 700,343
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Accounting Information

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

The funded status of the Plan as of the fiscal year-end, as well as other required disclosure information,
follows.

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (c) =(a)—(b)
Balance as of Report Date June 30, 2018 S 1,451,294 491,630 959,664
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 35,301 35,301
Interest 116,967 116,967
Differences Between Expected and Actual
Experience - -
Changes of Assumptions (36,351) (36,351)
Net Investment Income 38,672 {38,672)
Contributions
Employer — District's Contribution 120,836 (120,836)
Employer — Implicit Subsidy 27,041 (27,041)
Employee -
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (55,136) (55,136) -
Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled (27,041) (27,041) -
Administrative Expense (257) 257
Other Changes - -
Net Changes 33,740 104,115 (70,375)
Balance as of Report Date June 30, 2019 S 1,485,034 595,745 889,289
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Accounting Information

Development of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

All Balances at Report Date June 30, 2019

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Arising from Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience

Amounts Recognized in

Measurement Expense Through June Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Date — Experience Losses  Experience Gains 30, 2019 Resources Resources
June 30: (a) (b) (c) (d) = (@) - (c) (e) = (b) - (c)
2017 3 =S - S =S - § :
2018 - - - - -
Total $ - 8 "

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Arising from Changes in Assumptions

Amounts Recognized in

Measurement Increase in Total Decrease in Total Expense Through June Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Date — Liability Liability 30, 2019 Resources Resources
June 30: (a) (b) (c) (d) = (a) - (c) (e)=(b) - (c)
2017 $ -9 -8 - S - $ 1

2018 - (36,351) (4,847) - (31,504)
Total $ - S (31,504)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Arising from Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings on
Investments

Amounts Recognized in

Measurement Earnings Less than  Earnings Greater Expense Through June Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of

Date — Projected than Projected 30, 2019 Resources Resources Net

June 30: (a) (b) (c) (d)=(a)-(c) (e) = (b) - (c) (f) = (d) + (e)

2017 S - S (16,694) S (6,678) $ - S (10,016) $ (10,016)

2018 - (2,642) (529) - (2,113) (2,113)

Total 3 - S (12,129) § (12,129)
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Accounting Information

Development of Projected Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

All Balances at Report Date June 30, 2020

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Arising from Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience

Measurement

Amounts Recognized in
Expense Through June Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of

Date — Experience Losses  Experience Gains 30, 2020 Resources Resources

June 30: (@)

(b) (c) (d) = (a) - (c) (e) = (b) - (c)

2017 3 -5
2018 .
2019 -
Total

$ $ - S

$ - S &

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Arising from Changes in Assumptions

Amounts Recognized in

Measurement Expense Through June Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Date — Experience Losses  Experience Gains 30, 2020 Resources Resources
June 30: (@) (b) (c) (d) = (a) - (c) (e) = (b) - ()
2017 $ - $ -9 -8 - S -

2018 (36,351) (9,694) - (26,657)
2019 - - - -

Total S - S (26,657)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Arising from Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings on

Investments

Amounts Recognized in
Measurement Expense Through June Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Date — Experience Losses  Experience Gains 30, 2020 Resources Resources Net
June 30: (@) (b) (c) (d)=(a)- (c) (e) = (b) - (c) (f) = (d) + (e)
2017 $ - 8 (16,694) § (10,017) § - S (6,677) $ (6,677)
2018 - (2,642) (1,058) - (1,584) (1,584)
2019 - - - - - -
Total S -8 (8,261) § (8,261)

Govinvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc.
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Accounting Information

Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Measurement Recognition Remaining Increzse/(Decrease) in Expense: Report Years Ending June 30:

Period Original Amount Period Period 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Remaining
Differences Between Expected 2016-2017  § - 7.5 6.5 - - -8 -5 - § -5 -
and Actual Experience 2017-2018 - 7.5 7.5 - - - - - . -
Changes of Assumptions 2016-2017 - 7.5 6.5 . = & - - : .

2017-2018 (36,351) 7.5 7.5 (4,847) (4,347) {4,847) {4,847) (4,847) (4,847) (7,269)
Differences Between Projected 2016-2017 (16,694) 7.5 4,0 (3,339) (3,339) (3,339) (3,338) - - -
and Actual Earnings 2017-2018 (2,642) 5.0 5.0 (529) (529) (529) (529) (526) - -
Summary of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources — Reporting Period 2018-2019
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience - - - S -8 -8 -8 B
Changes of Assumptions (4,847) (4,347) (4,847) (4,847) {4,847) (4,847) (7,269)
Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings (3,868) (3,868) (3,868) (3,867) (526) - -
Total (8,715) (8,715) (8,715) (8,714) (5,373) (4,847) (7,269)
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Accounting Information

Schedule of Projected Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions

Differences Between Projected
and Actual Earnings

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions

Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings

Total

Measurement Original Recognition Remaining Increase/(Decrease) in Expense: Report Years Ending June 30:
Period Amount Period Period 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Remaining
2016-2017 - 7.5 5.5 - - - - - " -
2017-2018 - 7.5 6.5 - . - - - . .
2018-2019 - 7.5 7.5 - - - - - - .
2016-2017 - 7.5 5.5 - - - - - s -
2017-2018 (36,351) 7.5 6.5 (4,847) (4,847) (4,847) (4,847) (4,847) (4,847) (2,422)
2018-2019 - 7.5 7.5 - - - - - - .
2016-2017 (16,694) 7.5 3.0 (3,339) (3,339) (3,338) - - - -
2017-2018 (2,642) 7.5 4.0 (529) (529) (529) (526) = -
2018-2019 - 5.0 5.0 - - . - . - -

Summary of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources — Reporting Period 2019-2020

$ - - - - - - -
(4,847 (4,847) (4,847) (4,847) (4,847) (4,847) (2,422)
(3,868) (3,868) (3,867) (526) - - -
(8,715) (8,715) (8,714) (5,373) (4,847) (4,847) (2,422)
11/15/2019 Page | 11
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Accounting Information

Calculation of Expense under GASB 75

Actual
Measurement Period: 2017-2018
Reporting Period: 2018-2019
Expense
Service Cost S 35,301
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 116,967
Recognized Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience -
Recognized Changes of Assumptions (4,847)
Employee Contributions -
Projected Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments (36,030)
Recognized Differences Between Projected and Actual Earnings (3,868)
Administrative expenses 257
Total Expense S 107,780
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources June 30, 2019
Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience  § - S -
Changes of Assumptions - (31,504)
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Plan Investments - (12,129)
District Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement
Date 123,640 -
Total S 123,640 S (43,633)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Report Year Ending June 30 Amount
2020 § (8,715)

2021 (8,715)

2022 (8,714)

2023 (5,373)

2024 (4,847)

Remaining (7,269)
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Accounting Information

Calculation of Projected Expense under GASB 75

Actual Projected
Measurement Period: 2017-2018 2018-2019
Reporting Period: 2018-2019 2019-2020
Expense
Service Cost S 35,301 S 36,272
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 116,967 112,252
Recognized Changes of Assumptions - -
Recognized Differences Between Expected and Actual
Experience (4,847) (4,847)
Employee Contributions - -
Projected Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments (36,030) (36,892)
Recognized Differences Between Projected and (3,868) (3,868)
Administrative expenses 257 294
Total Expense S 107,780 S 103,211
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources June 30, 2020
Deferred Outfiows of Deferred infiows of
Resources Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience  $ - S -
Changes of Assumptions - (26,657)
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Plan Investments - (8,261)
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date To Be Determined -
Total To Be Determined S (34,918)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Report Year Ending June 30: Amount
2021 § (8,715)

2022 (8,714)

2023 (5,373)

2024 (4,847)

2025 (4,847)

Remaining (2,422)
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Accoun

ting Information

Reconciliation of Expense

Balance as of Report Date June 30, 2018

Service Cost
Interest on Total OPEB Liability

Differences Between Expected and Actual
Experience

Effect of Assumption Changes or Inputs

Expected Investment Income (Net of
Investment Expenses)

Investment Gains or Losses on Expected
Return

Contributions
Employer — District's Contribution
Employer — Implicit Subsidy
Employee

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions

Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled
Administrative Expenses

Recognition of Liability Gains or Losses
Recognition of Assumption Changes or Inputs
Recognition of Investment Gains or Losses

Annual Expense

Balance as of Report Date June 30, 2019

Net Investment Net OPEB
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB Deferred Deforred (Inflows)/ Liability plus Annual
Liability Net Position Liability| {Inflows) Outflows Outflows Net Deferrals| Net Deferrals| Expense|
S (1,451,294) § 491,630 $ (959,664)| | S -8 -3 (13,355) § (13,355)| $ (973,019)|
(35,301) (35,301) S 35,301
{116,967) (116,967) 116,967
36,351 36,351 (36,351) (36,351}
36,030 36,030 {(36,030)
2,642 2,642 (2,642) (2,642)
120,836 120,836 120,836
27,041 27,041 27,041
55,136 {55,136) -
27,041 (27,041) -
(257) (257) 257
x 4,847 4,847 (4,847)
- 3,868 3,868 (3,868)
(107,780)} | S 107,780
S {1,485,034) § 595,745 § (889,289){ | $ (31,504) $ -8 (12,129) $ 43,633)| 1§ (932,922)
11/15/2019 Page | 14
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Accounting Information

Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
As of Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2021

A summary of the information used to establish the amortization amount for the current
year, with respect to the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL), follows. We
recalculate the amortization of the UAAL each fiscal year.

Measurement Period: 2017-2018 2018-2019
Reporting Period: 2018-2019 2019-2020

2019-2020
2020-2021

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) — Entry Age

Normal, Beginning of Fiscal Year S 1,451,294 S 1,485,034 $ 1,548,825

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Fiscal

Year - 491,630 595,745 700,343

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL),

Beginning of Fiscal Year = § 959,664 $ 889,289 S 848,482

interest Rate Used to Determine Amortization

Payment 6.50% 6.50% 7.59%

Assumed Rate of Payroll Growth 2.750% 2.750% 2.750%

Amortization Period 20 years 19 years 18 years

Amount Recognized, Beginning of Year* S 66,031 $ 63,396 S 67,760

Amount Recognized, End of Year* $ 70,323 S 67,517 72,903
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Accounting Information

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020

The calculation of the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) follows. The ADC is based on the
District's funding policy.*

Measurement Period: 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020
Reporting Period: 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021
Service Cost — Entry Age Normal S 36,272 ) 37,269 S 38,294
Amortization of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
Liability (UAAL) 66,031 63,396 67,760
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), Beginning
of Year S 102,303 S 100,665 ) 106,054
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), End of
Year $ 108,953 $ 107,208 $ 114,103
ADC as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 12.83% 12.28% 12.72%
Discount Rate 6.50% 6.50% 7.59%
ADC Components
Benefit Payments $ 55,136 $ 55,640 S 69,029
District's Contribution to Assets (Trust) 26,776 22,475 13,945
Implicit Subsidy Credit 27,041 29,093 31,129
Total ADC $ 108,953 $ 107,208 $ 114,103

District’s Funding Policy

The District's funding policy is to contribute the full amount of the ADC each year.

The ADC is the sum of the service cost and the amortization of the unfunded liability. For payment of the
ADC, however, it comprises three parts: the benefit payments made by the District, the implicit subsidy,

and the contribution to the assets. The contribution to the assets is the difference between the ADC and
the sum of the other two components.

The District is amortizing the UAAL on a closed basis. Remaining years of amortization as

of June, 30, 2019: 19
The discount rate assumed for ADC calculations is the expected long-term rate of return,
which for the 2020-2021 period, is: 7.59%

The UAAL is amortized using a level percent of pay method.
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Accounting Information

Projection of ADC and Net OPEB Liability

Measurement Date:
Report Date:

Estimated Liabilities

OPEB Liability, Beginning of Year
Service Cost

Interest on Liabilities

"Differences Between Expected and
Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions
Benefit Payments

Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled
OPEB Liability, End of Year (a)

Estimated Assets

Assets, Beginning of Year

Expected Earnings

Contributions
Employer — District's Contribution
Employer — Implicit Subsidy
Employee

Total Contributions

Projected Benefit Payments

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds
of Employee Contributions

Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled
Total Benefit Payments
Administrative Expenses
Assets, End of Year (b)

Net OPEB liability, End of Year
= (a) - (b)

Expense
ADC

Govlnvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc.

June 30, 2018
June 30, 2019

June 30, 2019
June 30, 2020

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021

1,451,294  $ 1,485,034  $ 1,548,825
35,301 36,272 38,294
116,967 112,252 123,271
(36,351) - :
(55,136) (55,640) (69,029)
(27,041) (29,093) (31,129)
1,485,034 $ 1,548,825 $ 1,610,232
491,630 $ 505,745  $ 700,343
38,672 36,892 53,674
120,836 123,640 82,974
27,041 29,093 31,129
147,877 152,733 114,103
(55,136) (55,640) (69,029)
(27,041) (29,093) (31,129)
(82,177) (84,733) (100,158)
(257) (294) (301)
595,745  § 700,343  § 767,661
889,289 848,482 § 842,571
107,780 103,211 n/a
108,953 107,208 114,103
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Accounting Information

OPEB Cash-Flow Projections

Measurement Period Expected Retiree Total Expected Benefit
Ending June 30: Benefit Payments Implicit Subsidy Payments
2019 $ 55,640  $ 29,093  § 84,733
2020 69,029 31,129 100,158
2021 70,514 34,014 104,528
2022 76,739 38,968 115,707
2023 76,313 33,455 109,768
2024 90,595 27,573 118,168
2025 96,149 29,944 126,093
2026 87,643 19,433 107,076
2027 84,872 14,391 99,263
2028 89,522 16,686 106,208
2029 94,601 21,373 115,974
2030 99,569 24,303 123,872
2031 97,213 12,317 109,530
2032 105,076 15,566 120,642
2033 112,309 19,153 131,462
2034 109,333 11,916 121,249
2035 115,534 18,754 134,288
2036 124,736 21,119 145,855
2037 135,051 26,165 161,216
2038 151,747 35,801 187,548
2039 166,086 39,791 205,877
2040 172,383 32,372 204,755
2041 186,603 45,818 232,421
2042 198,825 53,665 252,490
2043 202,371 58,425 260,796
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Accounting Information

Ten-Year Projection of Expected Benefit Payments for Existing Participants
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Accounting Information

Projection of Contributions

Employer
Contributions
Related to Payroll
of all Plan Members

Employer
Contributions
Related to Payroll

Portion of Employer
Contribution for

Measurement Payroll for Current  Payroll for Future Total Employee (d) = (c) x 13.07% of Future Pian Current Plan
Period Ending Employees Employees Payroll  for 19 Years, 4.72% Members Members
June 30: (a) (b) (c) Thereafter* (e) = (b) x4.72% (f) = (d) - (e)
2019 S 849,372 S - ] 849,372 S 107,208 S - $ 107,208
2020 854,080 18,650 872,730 114,103 880 113,223
2021 832,650 64,080 896,730 117,241 3,025 114,216
2022 818,489 102,901 921,390 120,465 4,858 115,607
2023 810,393 136,335 946,728 123,778 6,436 117,342
2024 804,672 168,091 972,763 127,182 7,935 119,247
2025 801,289 198,225 999,514 130,680 9,358 121,322
2026 798,633 228,368 1,027,001 134,273 10,781 123,492
2027 798,949 256,295 1,055,244 137,966 12,099 125,867
2028 798,157 286,106 1,084,263 141,760 13,507 128,253
2029 796,725 317,355 1,114,080 145,658 14,982 130,676
2030 796,707 348,010 1,144,717 149,664 16,429 133,235
2031 768,669 407,528 1,176,197 153,780 19,239 134,541
2032 745,877 462,665 1,208,542 158,009 21,842 136,167
2033 729,031 512,746 1,241,777 162,354 24,206 138,148
2034 713,651 562,275 1,275,926 166,819 26,544 140,275
2035 702,429 608,585 1,311,014 171,406 28,731 142,675
2036 662,453 684,614 1,347,067 176,120 32,320 143,800
2037 627,512 756,599 1,384,111 180,963 35,718 145,245
2038 521,585 900,589 1,422,174 67,139 42,516 24,623
2039 403,689 1,057,595 1,461,284 68,985 49,928 19,057
2040 314,935 1,186,534 1,501,469 70,883 56,015 14,868
2041 241,810 1,300,949 1,542,759 72,832 61,416 11,416
2042 187,749 1,397,436 1,585,185 74,835 65,971 8,864
2043 141,078 1,487,700 1,628,778 76,893 70,232 6,661
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Accounting Information

Projection of Contributions Charts

Projected Payroll for Current and Future Employees

Projected Payroll
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Accounting Information

Projection of Fiduciary Net Position

Existing Participants Only

Projected Projected Benefit Projected Ending

Beginning Payments Projected Projected Fiduciary Net
Measurement Fiduciary Net Projected Total  (Including Implicit Administrative Investment Position
Period Ending Position Contributions Subsidy) Expense Earnings (f) = (@) + (b} - (¢)
June 30: (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) =(d) + (e)
2019 595,745 152,733 S 84,733 294 36,892 S 700,343
2020 700,343 114,103 100,158 301 53,674 767,661
2021 767,661 117,241 104,528 309 58,736 838,801
2022 838,801 120,465 115,707 317 63,834 907,076
2023 907,076 123,778 109,768 325 69,366 990,127
2024 990,127 127,182 118,168 333 75,480 1,074,288
2025 1,074,288 130,680 126,093 341 81,700 1,160,234
2026 1,160,234 134,273 107,076 350 89,081 1,276,162
2027 1,276,162 137,966 99,263 359 98,316 1,412,822
2028 1,412,822 141,760 106,208 368 108,568 1,556,574
2029 1,556,574 145,658 115,974 377 119,256 1,705,137
2030 1,705,137 149,664 123,872 386 130,384 1,860,927
2031 1,860,927 153,780 109,530 396 142,909 2,047,690
2032 2,047,690 158,009 120,642 406 156,822 2,241,473
2033 2,241,473 162,354 131,462 416 171,284 2,443,233
2034 2,443,233 166,819 121,249 426 187,155 2,675,532
2035 2,675,532 171,406 134,288 437 204,465 2,916,678
2036 2,916,678 176,120 145,855 448 222,507 3,169,002
2037 3,169,002 180,963 161,216 459 241,259 3,429,549
2038 3,429,549 67,139 187,548 470 255,715 3,564,385
2039 3,564,385 68,985 205,877 482 265,323 3,692,334
2040 3,692,334 70,883 204,755 494 275,149 3,833,117
2041 3,833,117 72,832 232,421 506 284,858 3,957,880
2042 3,957,880 74,835 252,490 519 293,641 4,073,347
2043 4,073,347 76,893 260,796 532 302,168 4,191,080
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Accounting Information

Implicit Subsidy

Actuarial standard of practice (ASOP) number 6, "Measuring Retiree Group Benefits Obligations and
Determining Retiree Group Benefits Program Periodic Costs or Actuarially Determined Contributions”,
requires the inclusion of the implicit subsidy in OPEB valuations.

The implicit subsidy arises when an employer allows a retiree and their dependents to continue on the
plans for active employees, and pay the active-employee premiums. Retirees are not paying the true cost
of their benefits because they have higher costs than active employees, and therefore are partially
subsidized by the active employees. Once a retiree reaches Medicare eligibility, the rates are set for
Medicare retirees separately, and are set to be sufficient to cover the true costs of the Medicare retirees.
Thus, there is no implicit subsidy for Medicare retirees.

Measurement Date: June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018
Report Date: June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019
Discount Rate 6.50% 7.59%

Retiree Benefit Payments n/a S 1,268,352
Implicit Subsidy n/a 280,473

Total OPEB Liability $ 1,451,294 $ 1,485,034
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Accounting Information

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

GASB 75 requires a disclosure of the changes in Net OPEB Liability for the last ten fiscal years, or for as
many years as are available.

Measurement Date: June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018
Report Date: June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost S 39,129 § 35,301

Interest 87,909 116,967

Changes of Benefit Terms - -
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience - -

Changes of Assumptions - (36,351)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (56,379) (55,136)
Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled - (27,041)
Net Change in Total OPEB liability 70,659 33,740
Total OPEB Liability — Beginning of Year 1,380,635 1,451,294

1,451,294 § 1,485,034

L

Total OPEB Liability — Ending Year (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net investment Income $ 43,423 § 38,672

Employer — District's Contribution 93,476 120,836

Employer — Implicit Subsidy - 27,041

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (56,379) {(55,136)
Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled - (27,041)
Administrative Expense (212) (257)
Other - -

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 80,308 104,115

Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Beginning of Year 411,322 491,630

Plan Fiduciary Net Position — End of Year (b) $ 491,630 $ 595,745

Net OPEB Liability

District's Net OPEB liability — End of Year = (a) — (b) $ 959,664 § 889,289

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB

Liability 33.88% 40.12%
Covered-Employee Payroll S 909,928 § 849,372

Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 105.47% 104.70%

Notes to schedule: The District adopted GASB 75 for the fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018.
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Accounting Information

Schedule of Investment Returns

GASB 75 requires a schedule of investment returns for the last ten fiscal years, or for as many years as are
available if less than ten years are available.

Measurement Date: June 30, 2017  June 30, 2018
Report Date:  June 30, 2018  June 30, 2019

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, Net of Investment Expense n/a 7.38%

The annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses, is the net investment income for the
year divided by the average net position for the year (less investment expenses).
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Accounting Information

Schedule of Contributions

GASB 75 requires a schedule of contributions for the last ten fiscal years, or for as many years as are available if less than
ten years are available.

Measurement Period: 2016-2017 2017-2018
Reporting Period: 2017-2018 2018-2019
Report Date: June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) n/a S 108,953
Less: Contributions Made in Relation to the ADC 93,476 147,877
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) n/a (38,924)
Covered-Employee Payroll S 909,928 S 849,372
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll n/a 17.41%
Notes to Schedule:
Assumptions and Methods
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percent of pay
Amortization Method Closed period, level percent of pay
Amortization Period 20 years
Inflation 2.50%
Assumed Payroll Growth 2.75%
Healthcare Trend Rates 7.00%, trending down to 3.84%
Rate of Return on Assets 7.59%
Mortality Rate CalPERS Rates. See appendix.
Retirement Rates CalPERS Rates. See appendix.
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Accounting Information

Draft Notes to the Financial Statements

A draft of the required notes to the District’s financial statements, based on the requirements of GASB 75
and our understanding of the District’s retiree health plan, follows.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB).

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense information about the fiduciary net position of the District
Retiree Benefits Plan (the Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes
benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Note X — Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description.
The District administers an Agent Multiple-Employer defined-benefit post-employment healthcare plan.
Dependents are eligible to enroll, and benefits continue to surviving spouses.

Benefits Provided.

Retirees are eligible for the PEMHCA Minimum Benefit if they retire at Age 50+, have 5+ years of CalPERS
service, and were enrolled in CalPERS plan upon retirement. For Retirees Age 55 with five years of
continuous, full-time service leading up to retirement, if the employee was hired before September 1,
2000, the District contributes to the retiree's HRA 100% of premium up to the maximum Kaiser Basic/
Supplemental Rate for coverage of the retiree and eligible dependents, less the PEMHCA Minimum benefit.
For Retirees Age 55 with five years of continuous, full-time service leading up to retirement who were hired
between September 1, 2000 and July 1, 2017, the District contributes to the retiree’s HRA 100% of premium
up to the weighted-average of single-member plan premiums, plus 90% of the weighted-average of the
additional premium for the four most commonly selected plans that cover dependents.

Employees covered by benefit terms.
At June 30, 2019 (the census date), the benefit terms covered the following employees:

Category Count
Active employees: 9
Inactive employees, spouses, or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit

payments: 11
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payment: 0
Total 20

Contributions.
The District makes contributions based on an actuarially determined rate.
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Accounting Information

Draft Notes to the Financial Statements

Net OPEB Liability

The District's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total OPEB liability used to
Actuarial Assumptions .

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation: 2.50%

Salary increases: 2.750%. Additional merit-based increases based on CalPERS merit salary increase tables.
Investment rate of return: 7.59%

Healthcare cost trend rates: 7.00% in the first year, trending down to 3.84% over 57 years.

Mortality rates were based on CalPERS tables.

Discount Rate.

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability is 7.59%. This is the expected long-term rate of
return on District assets using investment Strategy 1 within the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust
(CERBT) as of the Measurement Date, June 30, 2019, and were provided by each account’s asset managers.
Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to cover all future OPEB
payments. Therefore, the discount rate was set equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return is determined using the long-term rates of return developed by the
CalPERS Investment Office in their report dated May 14, 2018.

Coumpound Arithmetic
Target Expected Expected
Asset Class Allocation Return Volatility Return
Global Equity 59% 6.80% 17.00% 8.14%
Fixed Income 25% 3.10% 7.83% 3.40%
TIPS 5% 2.25% 5.46% 2.40%
Commodities 3% 3.50% 21.50% 5.71%
REITs 8% 5.50% 17.28% 6.90%
Total/Average 100%
Expected Compound Return (1-10 Years) 5.85%
Expected Compound Return (11-60 Years) 8.07%
Expected Volatility 11.83%
Expected Time-Weighted Return Net of Fees (1-60 Years) 7.59%

Uses an expected long-term inflation rate of 2.00%
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Accounting Information

Draft Notes to the Financial Statements

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability
Increases (Decreases)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (©)
Balance as of Report Date June 30, 2018 S 1,451,294 S 491,630 S 959,664
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 35,301 35,301
Interest 116,967 116,967
Differences Between Expected and Actual
Experience -
Changes of Assumptions (36,351) (36,351)
Contributions
Employer — District's Contribution 120,836 (120,836)
Employer — Implicit Subsidy 27,041 (27,041)
Employee - -
Net Investment Income 38,672 (38,672)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (55,136) (55,136) -
Implicit Rate Subsidy Fulfilled (27,041) (27,041)
Administrative Expenses (257) 257
Net Changes 33,740 104,115 (70,375)
Balance as of Report Date June 30, 2019 $ 1,485,034 $ 595,745 $ 889,289

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The net OPEB liability of the District,
as well as what the District’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percentage point lower (6.59%) or one percentage point higher (8.59%) follows:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.59% 7.59% 8.59%
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $ 1,141,823 $ 889,289 $ 796,090

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The net OPEB liability of
the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare
cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower (6.00%) or one percentage point higher (8.00%) than
current healthcare cost trend rates follows:

1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

6.00% Decreasing  7.00% Decreasing  8.00% Decreasing
to 2.84% to 3.84% to 4.84%

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $ 780,173 $ 889,289 $ 1,165,534

Govlinvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc. 11/15/2019 Page | 29



Accounting Information

Draft Notes to the Financial Statements

OPEB Expense and Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized an OPEB expense of $107,780. At June 30, 2019,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences Between Actual and Expected Experience  § - S -
Changes of Assumptions - (31,504)
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on OPEB Plan Investments . (12,129)
District Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement
Date 123,640 -
Total $ 123,640 S (43,633)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Report Year Ending June 30: Amount
2020 $ (8,715)

2021 (8,715)

2022 (8,714)

2023 (5,373)

2024 (4,847)

Remaining (7,269)
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Substantive Plan

A summary of the substantive plan used as the basis of the valuation follows.

All Retirees - Description of Benefits

Duration of Coverage Retiree’s Lifetime.
Minimum Age 50
Type of Coverage Medical Only.
Medical Plan Choices Same as Actives.
Eligibility for PEMHCA minimum of $136 per month in 2019 & $139 per
PEMHCA .
month in 2020.
Service Requirement 5 Years (CalPERS eligibility).

Employees Hired before September 1, 200(;

For Retirees Age 55 with five years of continuous, full-time service leading up to retirement, the District
contributes to the retiree's HRA 100% of premium up to the maximum Kaiser Basic/ Supplemental Rate for
coverage of the retiree and eligible dependents, less the PEMHCA Minimum benefit.

Employees Hired between September 1, 2000_and_July 1, 2047

For Retirees Age 55 with five years of continuous, full-time service leading up to retirement, the District
contributes to the retiree's HRA 100% of premium up to the weighted-average of single-member plan
premiums, plus 90% of the weighted-average of the additional premium for the four most commonly
selected plans that cover dependents.

Employees Hired after July 1, 2017
Retirees eligible for the PEMHCA Minimum Benefit are entitled to the minimum contribution.
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Basis of Valuation

Participant Summary

Census Date: June 30, 2019
Age and service determined as of the census date.

Active Participants

Years of Service

Age <1 1-4 59 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34  35-39 40+ Total
<25 0
25-29 0
30-34 0
35-39 2 1 2 5
40-44 1 1
45-49 1 1
50-54 1 1 2
55-59 0
60-64 0
65-69 0
70+ 0
Total 2 0 3 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 9
Average Employee Age: 43.1

Average Years of Service: 8.6

inactive Participants

Age |Retiree*| Spouse** Total

<50 0

50-54 0

55-59 1 1 2

60-64 1 1

65-69 0

70-74 2 2 4

75-79 2 2 4

80-84 0

85-89 0

90+ 0

Total 6 5 11

Average Inactive Age: 69.4
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Basis of Valuation

Participant Summary Charts

Census Date: June 30, 2019
Age and service determined as of the census date.

Count of Actives by Age Bracket
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: III
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Basis of Valuation

Actuarial Assumptions

A summary of the actuarial assumptions used for this valuation follows. We considered the reasonableness
of each assumption independently based on its own merits, consistent with each other assumption, and the
combined impact of all assumptions.

Assumption

Rates

Actuarial Cost Method
Measurement Date
Valuation Date
Report Date

Discount Rate

Mortality
Termination Rates
Disability
Retirement

Premiums

Entry Age Normal Level Percentage of Salary

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2019
June 30, 2019

The discount rate selected is 7.59%. The discount rate is the long-term
rate of return for the plan's assets, as our projections show that the
assets will be sufficient to cover the projected benefit payments should
the District continue to contribute to the plan with an amount of at least
the ACC each year. Should the assets inot be sufficient to cover the
projected benefit payments at any time in the future, we would employ a
discount rate reflecting the 20-year tax-exempt municipal bond yield or
index rate to the period after which we project assets to run out. We
would then use a single, blended discount rate equivalent to the long-
term rate of return and the 20-year tax-exempt municipal bond yield. if
there are no assets, we would use only the 20-year tax-exempt municipal
bond yield for the valuation.

Same as CalPERS. See appendix.
Same as CalPERS. See appendix. Also known as “turnover”.
Same as CalPERS. See appendix.

Same as CalPERS. See appendix.

Blended premiums (table below) were developed based on the District's
enrollment by plan. These premiums were used in implicit subsidy and
active explicit subsidy calculations.

Grouping Employee |Two-Party
Pre-Medicare S 9,308 [S 18,616
Medicare 4,229 8,458
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Basis of Valuation

Actuarial Assumptions

Assumption Rates
Annual Per Capita Claims Cost for Developed based on premiums for the District’s enrollment by plan,
Implicit Subsidy family demographics from the broader CalPERS population in the

same plans, and risk scores (both HMO and PPQ) for the overall
CalPERS population.

Age Males Females
50 S 11,688 ) 12,012
55 13,496 12,893
60-64 16,631 14,415
Inflation Rate 2.50%
Spouse Age Difference Assumes males are three years older than females.
Spouse Gender Assumes spouse of opposite gender.
Participation Current Retirees: Assume current elections continue until
decrement.

Future Retirees: Assume 90% of future retirees will elect to
continue coverage in the District's plans.

Annual PEMHCA Amount $136/month for 2019, $139/month for 2020. Trended 3% per annum
thereafter.

Aging or Morbidity Factors Based on actual CalPERS population data.

Salary Increases 2.75% (same as CalPERS). The salary increase is used to determine

the growth in the aggregate payroll.

Individual Salary Increases: 2018 CalPERS Merit Salary Increases.

Marital Status Current Retirees: Spouse coverage provided by District.
Future Retirees: 70% assumed to be married.

Participant Contributions Retiree pays any difference between premiums and the benefits
received as defined by the MOU (which varies by Date of Hire).
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Basis of Valuation

Actuarial Assumptions

Assumption Rates
Employer Contributions for Current Retirees: The District provided subscriber-level annual
Inactives contributions. For pre-65s, assumed a 50% drop in contributions at Age 65

to account for transition to Medicare Supplement premiums.

Trend Rates Medical Long-Term Trends from Society of Actuaries "Long Term
Healthcare Cost Trends Model v2018_c" using baseline assumptions.
Applied to both claims and premiums.

Pre-Medicare Medicare
Year Trend Trend
2019 7.00% 6.00%
2020 6.50% 5.50%
2021 6.00% 5.50%
2022 5.50% 5.30%
2023 5.20% 5.20%
2024 5.20% 5.20%
2025 5.20% 5.20%
2026 5.19% 5.19%
2027-2074
2075+ 3.84% 3.84%

PEMHCA Administration Fee 0.27% of retiree premium.

ACA Excise Tax Assumed that the District will pass the ACA Excise Tax on to the retirees.
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Appendix
About GASB 75

This section includes a brief summary of GASB 75, as well as definitions of some of the key terminology
used in this report.

About GASB 75

In General. In June 2015 the Governmental Accounting Standards Board released GASB 75, "Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”. GASB 75 replaced GASB 45 for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2017, for employers that sponsor OPEB plans. The provisions in GASB 75 are
similar to the provisions of GASB 68 for pensions.

Accounting. GASB 75 requires a liability known as the Net OPEB Liability (NOL). The employer recognizes
the NOL on its balance sheet. The employer also recognizes an OPEB expense in the income statement.
GASB 45 recorded the Unfunded Accrued Actuarial Liability (UAAL) in the notes to the financial statement,
whereas GASB 75 records the NOL, which is very similar to the UAAL with just a few technical differences,
on the balance sheet.

Financial Statement Impact (Employers). One of the biggest changes to the financial statements of
governmental employers that provide OPEB is the reporting of the OPEB liability on the face of the
statements rather than in the footnotes. Governments that do not provide OPEB through a trust are
required to recognize the entire OPEB liability in the financial statements. For governments that provide
OPEB through an OPEB plan that is administered through a trust, the government’s OPEB liability is
recognized net of the amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position.

Changes to the Measurement of the Total OPEB Liability. Measurement of the OPEB liability includes
discounting future benefit payments for current and former employees and their beneficiaries to their
present value and allocating the present value over past and future periods of the employee service (total
OPEB liability), less the amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position. The calculation continues to
include employee-related events, such as projected salary increases and projected years of service, if they
affect the amount of OPEB payments employees will receive, as well as provisions for automatic cost-of-
living adjustments (COLAs) and other automatic benefits. Additionally, ad hoc COLAs and other ad hoc
benefit changes, which are made at the discretion of the government, are included in projections as well, if
they routinely recur.

GASB 75 requires governments to discount projected OPEB payments to their present value. Under the new
standard, governments discount the projected OPEB payments to be made in each year and the amount of
plan assets (if a government administers the OPEB through a trust) available for providing those benefits to
current active and inactive employees and their beneficiaries. Similar to the pension standards, the
discount rate used is based on whether the plan assets are projected to be sufficient to make future
payments. If the plan assets are sufficient, governments discount future payments using the long-term
expected rate of return. If projected plan assets are insufficient to make all future payments to current and
inactive employees and their beneficiaries, or if there are no plan assets held in trust, the discount rate is
based on a high-quality 20-year tax-exempt general obligation municipal bond yield or index rate. “High-
quality” is defined as being rated AA or higher (or an equivalent rating).

Cost Method. The Entry Age Normal Cost method must be used.
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Appendix
About GASB 75

About GASB 75 (continued)

Factors that affect a government’s OPEB liability, such as actual earnings on plan investments when the
OPEB plan is administered as a trust, employee compensation changes, interest on the outstanding OPEB
liability, contributions from employees and employers, and actual demographic and economic changes that
are not in line with assumptions made in the actuarial calculations, are considered when determining the
government’s OPEB expense. A government’s annual OPEB expense is calculated with consideration for
factors affecting the OPEB liability within the reporting period. Several causes of changes in OPEB liability
are immediately factored into the calculation of OPEB expense for the period, such as benefits earned each
year, interest on the total OPEB liability, changes in benefit terms, and projected earnings on plan
investments, if administered through a trust.

Governments are required to recognize deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources and
then introduce into the expense calculation, systematically and rationally over the average remaining years
of employment (active employees and inactive employees, including retirees), the effect on the total OPEB
liability of differences between assumptions and actual experience.
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About GASB 75

Key Terminology

Actuarially Determined
Contribution

Actuarial Present Value
of Projected Benefit
Payments

Agent Employer

Closed Period

Contributions

Dates and Periods
¢ Census Date

* Measurement Date

» Measurement Period

» Report Date

» Reporting Period

« Valuation Date

Defined-Benefit OPEB

Govlnvest Inc. / Precision Actuarial Inc.

A target or recommended contribution to a defined benefit OPEB plan for the
reporting period, determined in conformity with Actuarial Standards of
Practice based on the most recent measurement available when the
contribution for the reporting period was adopted.

Projected benefit payments discounted to reflect the expected effects of the
time value (present value) of money and the probabilities of payment.

An employer whose employees are provided with OPEB through an agent
multiple-employer defined-benefit OPEB plan.

A specific number of years that is counted from one date, which declines to
zero with the passage of time. For example, if the recognition period initially
is five years on a closed basis, four years remain after the first year, three
years after the second year, and so forth until no years remain.

Additions to an OPEB plan's fiduciary net position for amounts from employers,
non-employer contributing entities, or employees.

The date of the census. It is usually the same as the Valuation Date.

The date on which assets are measured. The liabilities are rolled forward to
this date from the Valuation Date, should it differ, using actuarial roll-
forward techniques.

The year ending on the Measurement Date.

The date on which the amounts are reported in the financial statements. It is
the same as the fiscal year-end. It may be up to one year ahead of the
Measurement Date, with no roll-forward of liabilities or assets required.

The year ending on the Report Date. It is the same as the fiscal year.

The date on which the liabilities are valued.

OPEB for which the benefits that the employee will receive at or after
separation from employment are defined by the benefit terms. The OPEB may
be stated as (a) a specified dollar amount (b) an amount that is calculated
based on one or more factors such as age, years of service, and compensation,
or (c) a type or level of coverage such as prescription drug coverage or a
percentage of health insurance premiums. OPEB that does not have all of the
terms of defined contribution OPEB is classified as defined-benefit OPEB.
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Appendix
About GASB 75

Key Terminology (continued)

Discount Rate

Net OPEB Liability

Normal Cost

Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB)

Projected Benefit
Payments

Service Cost

Substantive Plan

The single rate of return that, when applied to all projected benefit
payments, results in an actuarial present value of projected benefit payments
equal to the total of the following:

a. The actuarial present value of benefit payments projected to be made in
future periods in which (1) the amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net
position is projected to be greater than the benefit payments that are
projected to be made in that period and (2) OPEB plan assets up to that point
are expected to be invested using a strategy to achieve the long-term
expected rate of return, calculated using the long-term expected rate of
return on OPEB plan investments.

b. The actuarial present value of projected benefit payments not included in
(a), calcutated using a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general
obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher (or
equivalent quality on another rating scale).

The liability of employers and non-employer contributing entities to
employees for benefits provided through a defined-benefit OPEB plan that is
administered through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
75.

See Service Cost.

Benefits (such as death benefits, life insurance, disability, and long-term care)
that are paid in the period after employment and that are provided separately
from a pension plan, as well as healthcare benefits paid in the period after
employment, regardless of the manner in which they are provided. OPEB does
not include termination benefits or termination payment for sick leave.

All benefits estimated to be payable through OPEB plan to current active and
inactive employees as a result of their past service and their expected future
service.

The portions of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that
are attributed to valuation years. Also called Normal Cost.

The plan terms as understood by the employer and the plan members at the
time of the valuation, including only changes to plan terms that have been
made and communicated to employees.
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Appendix

Decrement Tables

The valuation used the following decrement tables from the CalPERS OPEB Assumption Model, revised
December 20, 2017.

Mortality Source Table
Miscellaneous Employees Mort and Disb Rates_PA Misc

Disability Rates
Miscellaneous Employees Mort and Disb Rates_PA Misc

Terminated Vested Rates

Miscellaneous Employees Terminated Refund Rates_Misc + Terminated Vested Rates_PA Misc
Salary Scale Rates
Miscellaneous Employees Salary Scale Rates_PA Misc

Service Retirement Rates
Miscellaneous Employees

e 2.0% at 55 Rx PA Misc 2% @ 55
» 2.0% at 60 Rx PA Misc 2% @ 60
» 2.0% at 62 Rx PA Misc 2% @ 62
» 2.7% at 55 Rx PA Misc 2.7% @ 55
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Appendix

Sample Mortality and Disability Rates

Public Agency Miscellaneous

Pre-Retirement Mortality Post-Retirement Mortality Disability
Male Assumptions Female Assumptions Male Assumptions Female Assumptions Male Assumptions Female Assumptions
Non Non Non Non Non Non
Attained | Industrial | Industrial | Industrial | Industrial | Healthy |Industrially|industrially] Healthy |[Industrially|Industrially| Industrial | Industrial | Industrial | Industrial
Age Death Death Death Death Recipients | Disabled | Disabled | Recipients | Disabled | Disabled ] Disability | Disability | Disability | Disability
1 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00023 0.00555 0.00128 0.00015 0.00346 0.00098 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
5 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00023 0.00565 0.00129 0.00015 0.00350 0.00099 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
10 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00024 0.00572 0.00130 0.00015 0.00354 0.00099 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
15 0.00023 0.00000 0.00017 0.00000 0.00024 0.00584 0.00132 0.00016 0.00361 0.00101 0.00017 0.00000 0.00010 0.00000
20 0.00031 0.00000 0.00020 0.00000 0.00025 0.00604 0.00135 0.00017 | 0.00372 0.00104 0.00017 0.00000 0.00010 0.00000
25 0.00040 0.00000 0.00023 0.00000 0.00029 0.00637 0.00141 0.00021 0.00392 0.00109 0.00017 0.00000 0.00010 0.00000
30 0.00049 0.00000 0.00025 0.00000 0.00039 0.00693 0.00153 0.00028 0.00428 0.00121 0.00019 0.00000 0.00024 0.00000
35 0.00057 0.00000 0.00035 0.00000 0.00060 0.00788 0.00178 0.00046 0.00492 0.00143 0.00049 0.00000 0.00081 0.00000
40 0.00075 0.00000 0.00050 0.00000 0.00110 0.00949 0.00225 0.00091 0.00605 0.00138 0.00122 0.00000 0.00155 0.00000
45 0.00106 0.00000 0.00071 0.00000 0.00227 0.01221 0.00318 0.00200 0.00804 0.00281 0.00191 0.00000 0.00218 0.00000
50 0.00155 0.00000 0.00100 0.00000 0.00501 0.01680 0.00501 0.00466 0.01158 0.00466 0.00213 0.00000 0.00229 0.00000
55 0.00228 0.00000 0.00138 0.00000 0.00599 0.01973 0.00599 0.00416 0.01149 0.00416 0.00221 0.00000 0.00179 0.00000
60 0.00308 0.00000 0.00182 0.00000 0.00710 0.02289 0.00754 0.00436 0.01235 0.00518 0.00222 0.00000 0.00135 0.00000
65 0.00400 0.00000 0.00257 0.00000 0.00829 0.02451 0.01122 0.00588 0.01607 0.00838 0.00210 0.00000 0.00118 0.00000
70 0.00524 0.00000 0.00367 0.00000 0.01305 0.02875 0.01635 0.00993 0.02211 0.01395 0.00180 0.00000 0.00114 0.00000
75 0.00713 0.00000 0.00526 0.00000 0.02205 0.03990 0.02834 | 0.01722 0.03037 0.02319 0.00142 0.00000 0.00118 0.00000
80 0.00990 0.00000 0.00814 0.00000 0.03899 0.06083 0.04899 0.02902 0.04725 0.03910 0.00142 0.00000 0.00118 0.00000
85 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.06969 0.09731 0.07679 0.05243 0.07762 0.06251 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
90 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.12974 0.14804 0.12974 | 0.09887 | 0.12890 0.09887 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
95 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.22444 0.22444 0.22444 | 0.18489 0.21746 0.18489 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
100 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.32536 0.32536 0.32536 0.30017 | 0.30017 0.30017 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
105 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.58527 0.58527 0.58527 0.56093 0.56093 0.56093 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
110 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
115 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
120 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 1.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
Notes:

1) Pre-Retirement and Post-Retirement mortality rates include 20 years of projected on-going mortality improvement using Scale BB published by the Society of Actuaries.
2) Miscellaneous Plans usually have Industrial Death rates set to zero unless the agency has specifically contracted for Industrial Death benefits. If so, each Non-Industrial Death rate
shown above will be split into two components: 99% will become the Non-Industrial Death rate and 1% will become the Industrial Death rate.
3) The Miscellaneous Non-Industrial Disability rates are used for Local Prosecutors

4) Normally, Industrial Disability rates are zero for miscellaneous plans unless the agency has specifically contracted for Industrial Disability benefits. If so, each miscellaneous non-

industrial disability rate will be split into two components: 50% will become the Non-Industrial Disability rate and 50% will become the Industrial Disability rate.
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Appendix

Sample Termination Rates

Sample Terminated Refund Rates

Entry Ages Public Agency Miscellaneous
Service 15 20| 25 30] 35 40| 45 50| 55 59
0] 0.18120§ 0.17420] 0.16740] 0.16060] 0.15370] 0.14680] 0.14000f 0.13320] 0.12620] 0.12080
5] 0.02320f§ 0.02120] 0.01930] 0.01740] 0.01550] 0.01360] 0.01160] 0.00970] 0.00780] 0.00620
104 0.01550f 0.01380] 0.01210] 0.01040] 0.00880] 0.00710] 0.00550] 0.00380] 0.00210] 0.00080
15] 0.00700f 0.00600] 0.00510] 0.00420] 0©.00320] 0.00230] 0.00140] 0.00040] 0.00020] 0.00020
20] 0.00450] 0.00370] 0.00290] 0.00210] 0.00130y 0.00050] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010
25] 0.00240] 0.00170] 0.00110f 0.00050] 0.00010{ 0.00010] 0.00010f 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.0001 OF
301 0.00110f 0.00050] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010f 0.00010] 0.00000| 0.00000
35| 0.00010] ©0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010f 0.00000f 0.00000! 0.00000
401 0.00010] ©0.00010] 0.00010f 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000
45] 0.00010§ 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000
0.00010] 0.00010] 0.00010f 0.00010] 0.00000] 0.00000f 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000 0.00000I
Sample Terminated Vested Rates

Entry Ages Public Agency Miscellaneous
Service 15 20| 25 30] 35 40] 45 50} 55 59
0] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000f 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000{ 0.00000] ©0.00000
5] 0.07140] 0.06560f 0.05970] 0.05370] 0.04770] 0.04180| 0.00000] 0.00000§ 0.00000] 0.00000
10] 0.05940{ 0.05300] 0.04660] 0.04030] 0.03390] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000
15] 0.05110] 0.04430] 0.03730] 0.03050] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000§ 0.00000] 0.00000
20{ 0.04050f 0.03330] 0.02610] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000
25| 0.02880] 0.02120] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000f 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000
300 0.01500f 0.00000fF 0.00000f 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000{ 0.00000] 0.00000§ 0.00000] 0.00000
35| 0.00000] ©0.00000] 0.00000]F 0.00000] 0.00000f 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000
40] 0.00000f] 0.00000f 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000
45] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000
50] 0.00000F 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.0C000] 0.00000] 0.00000f 0.00000] 0.00000] 0.00000

When a member is eligible to retire, the termination with vested benefits probability is set to zero
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Sample Salary Scale Rates

Entry Ages Public Agency Miscellaneous

Service] 19] 200 29| 30] 35] )| 25] 50 55 60| 65 70 75 79)

o] 0.1220 0.1220 0.1220] 0.1160 0.1090 0.1020 0.0950 0.0950 0.0950, 0.0950 0.0950 0.0950 0.0950 0.0950

5 J 0.0640 0.0640 0.0640 0.0600 0.0550 0.0520 0.0480 0.0480; 0.048 0.048 0.0480i 0.0480 0.0480 0.0480

10 0.0460 0.0460 0.0460 0.0430 0.0410 0.0390 0.0370) 0.0370] 0.0370 0.0370, 0.0370 0.0370 0.0370 0.0370

15 0.0420 0.0420 0.0420 0.0400 0.0380 0.0360 0.0340 0.0340] 0.0340 0.0340] 0.0340 0.0340 0.0340 0.0340

200 0.0390 0.0390 0.0390 0.0380 0.0360 0.0340F 0.0330 0.0330] 0.0330 0.0330] 0.0330 0.0330 0.0330 0.0330

25 0.0370 0.0370 0.0370 0.0360 0.0340 0.0330 0.0310 0.0310] 0.0310 0.0310] 0.0310 0.0310 0.0310 0.0310

30 0.0350] 0.0350 0.0350 0.0340 0.0330 0.0320 0.0300 0.0300] 0.0300 0.0300] 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300

35 0.0350 0.0350 0.0350 0.0340 0.0330 0.03201 0.0300 0.0300; 0.0300 0.0300, 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300

40] 0.0350 0.0350 0.0350 0.0340 0.0330 0.0320 0.0300 0.0300] 0.0300 0.0300] 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300

45 0.0350 0.0350 0.0350 0.0340 0.0330 0.0320 0.0300 0.0300; 0.0300 0.0300| 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300, 0.0300

50 0.0350 0.0350 0.0350‘ 0.0340 0.0330 0.0320i 0.0300 0.0300, 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300

Entry Ages Public Agency Police

service] 15 20] 25] 30] 35] 40] 45 50] 55 60] 65 70| 75] 79

0 0.1027| 0.1027 0.1027| 0.1027| 0.1027 0.1027| 0.1027| 0.1027| 0.1027| 0.1027| 0.1027| 0.1027| 0.102 0.1027|

5 0.0300] 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300] 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300 0.0300; 0.0300

10 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145| 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145 0.0145

15 0.0150] 0.0150] 0.0150 0.0150 0.0150 0.0150]  0.0150 0.0150] 0.0150 0.0150] 0.0150 0.0150 0.0150 0.0150

20f 0.0155 0.0155 0.0155 0.0155 0.0155 0.0155| 0.0155 0.0155 0.0155 0.0155 0.0155| 0.0155| 0.0155 0.0155

25 0.0160] 0.0160] 0.0160 0.0160 0.0160 0.0160] 0.0160 0.0160] 0.0160f 0.0160] 0.0160 0.0160 0.0160 0.0160

3OJ 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165| 0.0165| 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165| 0.0165| 0.0165

35 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165

40| o0.0165] 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165] 0.0165| 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165| 0.0165 0.0165

45 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165| 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165| 0.0165

50] 0.0165] 0.0165] 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165| 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165 0.0165| 0.0165 0.0165
Miscellaneous Salary Scale is used for local prosecutors
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Matrix of Sample Service Retirement Assumption Rates

Attained Ages Public Agency Miscellaneous 2% @ 55

Service 50 55 60} 65 70| 75 79

o} 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

5 5.0000 0.0180 0.0450 0.1130 0.2000 0.1500 1.0000

10 10.0000 0.0220 0.0550 0.1290 0.1800 0.1710 1.0000

15 15.0000 0.0260 0.0660 0.1650 0.1800 0.1920 1.0000

20| 20.0000 0.0300 0.0970 0.1960 0.1980 0.2390 1.0000

25 25.0000 0.0340 0.1150 0.2230 0.2280 0.3040 1.0000

30) 30.0000 0.0380 0.1440 0.2490 0.2460 0.3300 1.0000

35 35.0000 0.0500 0.1780 0.2750 0.2500 0.3300 1.0000

40] 40.0000 0.0000 0.2500 0.3300 0.2500 0.3300 1.0000

45 45.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.3300 0.2500 0.3300 1.0000

50] 50.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.2500 0.3300 1.0000

Attained Ages Public Agency Miscellaneous 2% @ 60

Service 50 55 60 65 70} 75 79

of 0.0000 0.00001 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

5 0.0200 0.0190 0.0700 0.1400 0.1400 1.0000 1.0000

101 0.0200 0.0260 0.0740 0.1780 0.1780 1.0000 1.0000

15 0.0200 0.0330 0.0890 0.2150 0.2150 1.0000 1.0000

20} 0.0200 0.0920 0.1130 0.2640 0.2640 1.0000 1.0000

25 0.0200 0.1360 0.1370 0.3210 0.3210 1.0000 1.0000

304 0.1500 0.1460 0.1610 0.3770 0.3770 1.0000 1.0000

35 0.1500 0.1500 0.2460 0.4120 0.4120 1.0000 1.0000

40] 0.0000 0.1500 0.2960 0.4200 0.4200 1.0000 1.0000

45 0.0000 0.0000 0.2960 0.4200 0.4200 1.0000 1.0000

50} 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.4200 0.4200 1.0000 1.0000
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Matrix of Sample Service Retirement Assumption Rates

Attained Ages Public Agency Miscellaneous 2% @ 62

Service 50} 55 60 65 70 75 79

o 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

5 0.0000 0.0100 0.0310 0.1080 0.1200 1.0000 1.0000

10] 0.0000 0.0190 0.0510 0.1410 0.1560 1.0000 1.0000

15 0.0000 0.0280 0.0710 0.1730 0.1930 1.0000 1.0000

20 0.0000 0.0360 0.0910 0.2060 0.2290 1.0000 1.0000

25| 0.0000 0.0610 0.1110 0.2390 0.2650 1.0000 1.0000

30 0.0000 0.0960 0.1380 0.3000 0.3330 1.0000 1.0000

35 0.0000 0.1520 0.1830 0.3480 0.3870 1.0000 1.0000

40 0.0000 0.1800 0.2040 0.3600 0.4000 1.0000 1.0000

45 0.0000 0.0000 0.2040 0.3600 0.4000 1.0000 1.0000

50} 0.0000i 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000

Attained Ages Public Agency Miscellaneous 2.7% @ 55

Service 50 55 60] 65 70 75 79

0 0.000C 0.00GC £.0000 0.0000 ¢.0000 0.0000 $.0000

5 5.0000 0.0200 0.0500 0.1160 0.1500 0.1500 1.0000

10 10.0000 0.0270 0.0700 0.1470 0.1810 0.1810 1.0000

15 15.0000 0.0350 0.0900 0.1780 0.2120 0.2120 1.0000

20| 20.0000 0.0540 0.1220 0.2210 0.2550 0.2430 1.0000

25 25.0000 0.0560) 0.1580 0.2540 0.2870 0.2910 1.0000

30L 30.0000 0.0730 0.2240 0.3080 0.3390 0.3500 1.0000

35 35.0000 0.1130 0.2800 0.3420 0.3600 0.3900 1.0000

40| 40.0000 0.0000 0.3000 0.3500 0.3600 0.4000 1.0000

45 45.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.3500 0.3600 0.4000 1.0000

50} 50.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.3600 0.4000 1.0000
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CIP Committee: December 10, 2019
Sanitary District No. 5 of Marin County

DECISION/ACTION ITEM LOG

ACTIVE ITEMS SHEET

Item #11

Item

Submission Date

Responsible Party

DECISION ONLY
Dus /7 Completed

'\ {Comment/Reference Document

28

2019 Sewer Rehab Project

3.12.19

Nute/TR/CIP

~ [Recv'd Proposal for Project Eng. From Nute, 3.11.19;

Currently Reviewing Plans, 5.14.19 - will bring to SD5
Board for approval, 5.16.19; Recelved Lowest Bid from
Glossage Engineering, Inc., 6.7.19; Gontract-fully-
enecuted-&-NTR-issuad-on-8r2-19-{wotk-to-begin-within-
10-days-of-netice)-Project currently under way, 8-10:18,
10:8:18, 1i+12+16y 12.10.19

29

Cove Rd. Force Main Replacement Project

3.12.19

Nute/TR/CIP

Nute Preparing Bid Docs, as of 3.12.19; Waiting for
CalTrans response re horizontal drilling, as of 5.14.19;
Still working w/ CalTrans, waiting for approval, as of
11.12.19; Design Review from Nute, 12.10.19

CIP Mtg. 12.10.19 R Dohrmann
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